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Books in Review.

As always, I like to do these every three books, but I also don’t want 20 pages of review, so if you need to refresh your memory on books 1-12 book 13 has got you covered. Now as always these are not complete and if they are all you are reading of my prior books you are going to be lost at points. They are meant to simply jog your memory before you sit down to enjoy the latest of my works.
Book 13.
Book 13 sees Xeal/Alex and his companions dealing with both issues in reality and the world of Eternal Dominion. First, they finally complete locating the last of the phoenixes and obtaining their marks as they learn a bit more about the lore of them. Alongside that we have the first group of dwarves arriving as they begin to take up residence in the kobold-infested mines they call Ginlodur. With that handled, time passes as they celebrate a few birthdays while each of Xeal’s four NPC wives get closer and closer to their due date.
Meanwhile in reality, Anna and Dan are starting to get serious about each other as it comes out that life as a celebrity’s little sister isn’t as fun as one might think. Especially when it seems everyone wants to get closer to her to get to Alex and she wants to avoid it all after the year ends. So, a deal is made where the school will allow Anna and her friend Lauren to complete their senior year remotely. However, this also requires FAE to present multiple times a year on the various aspects of ED, with the first one being before the current school year was set to end.
During said presentation it becomes clear that not all those in attendance are willing to ignore Alex’s relationship choices as one student, Brianna Anderson, takes it upon herself to confront him during the Q&A. While her actions are handled as best as they can be, it becomes clear that some movements are occurring behind the scenes as they prep for an exposition the following day for all high school students 16 and up. Ignoring the protests in the front and the questions from the press that are clearly out to make Alex look bad if given a chance, the event proceeds as smoothly as can be expected. With his role fulfilled, Alex takes a moment to visit Mr. Carter, who is still trying to sell his home before Sam’s due date as they enjoy a bit of relaxation before it is time to leave once more. While there, Ava, Mia and Kate decide that they should at least say hi to the Juns, even if they expect a poor reception. Once there what follows is a bit of a surprise for Alex, especially as Ava and Mia seemingly make Mrs. Jun short circuit by hugging her before they leave.
Once back in Colorado, Alex is surprised to receive a call from the school as Brianna Anderson is essentially forced to apologize to him. During this Alex can tell that she is in a bit of distress and among other things learns of her father, a local preacher, having fathered more than one child out of wedlock behind her mother’s back. Feeling slightly guilty over his role in exposing her father, due to him pushing her and others to cause Alex issues, Alex attempts to comfort her and offers to help her discover who her siblings are if she so wishes. With the call over and many things on his mind, Alex returns to the never-ending grind of reaching the top of Eternal Dominion.
Book 14.
The time has come and Alex/Xeal’s children come one after another, as Xander, Maki, Xin and Ellis are born to Enye, Mari, Lingxin and Dyllis in Eternal Dominion. Following these events, Xeal finds himself needing to quickly complete his tier-6 ordeal. Only as he works to complete the task of rescuing the princess from the grasp of an evil noble, Xeal finds himself being confronted by the main system’s AI through the very princess he needs to rescue. Through these interactions, Xeal receives several revelations as well as questions that he may never get an answer to, as he puts them to the side and focuses on completing his ordeal. Upon reaching the conclusion of his ordeal, Xeal finds himself receiving a quest that would involve himself returning to the world in which his tier-6 ordeal took place. While the exact details are unknown, Xeal knows that he can’t simply ignore this quest as if he does, it could have ramifications beyond what he saw as acceptable due to the nature of it.
Still, Alex/Xeal was able to put the quest to the side as it would be a while before the rest of the participants would be selected. So, after the announcement of the start of the arena leagues, he returns his focus to his family, both in reality and in ED. This includes the family and friends who have arrived to celebrate the upcoming births of Sam’s and Nicole’s daughters. This sees Alex interacting with those whom he barely remembers from his last life, whom he has no real desire to reconnect with, but accepts that Sam, Nicole, Dan, Fred and Amanda still have connections to them. As such he does his best to be a gracious host while still keeping his distance as much as practical, even if he still ends up snapping at a few of them.
Finally, Alex finds himself with Sam and Nicole as they go into labor and deliver their daughters within hours of each other, but still separated by the stroke of midnight. As they are resting and recovering, the biotech nanite-enhanced stem cells are administered to babies Ahsa and Moyra as all three parents receive a booster for theirs. Alex just smiles as he knew that it was these cells that were responsible for allowing people to interface with many technologies, to include the VR equipment that makes Eternal Dominion possible.
Book 15.
Home from the hospital and all the visitors gone, Alex/Xeal and company return to daily life as they adjust to dealing with the new arrivals. This includes the start of the first arena league, his first anniversaries of being married in ED, the preparations for the marriage meeting between Nium’s nobles and the beast-men tribes and more. All of which kept them all busy as they focused on advancing deeper into the Vault of Ucnuc as they begin to encounter vampires and begin to discover how their society is organized.
Life continues like this as Alex/Xeal begins to find himself truly opening himself to Ava, Mia and Kate as he watches them interact with his daughters. As he begins to take the next steps with Ava and Mia, his birthday arrives and with it a visit from Kate’s father, Jasper, and mother, Catherine, as they inform Kate’s parents of their desire to have Kate removed from the Astor family before marrying Alex. Jasper agrees far too easily for Alex’s liking as he wonders if, being the habitual plotter that the man is, Jasper doesn’t have some other intent behind his actions.
Still, life moves on as Alex’s mom delivers her son, Alex’s younger brother Andy, and the beast-men and nobles’ marriage meeting occurs. Following the completion of the marriage meeting, Xeal’s NPC wives all return to their training as they work to reach tier-7 before war grips the continent. As they do so, the dwarven Princess Dafasli joins them, having reached tier-5 since arriving in the mines beneath Darefret’s forge.
With Cielo city’s return fast approaching, the rest of ED’s players seem to be focused on securing the slots that are being distributed through a guild-only competition. Meanwhile, FAE, Salty Dogs, Fire Oath and Dragon Legion all simply need to select the members they wish to become dragonoids from their own ranks. As such when the time arrives and Cielo city returns to being accessible to the few players selected, Xeal aids in guiding the super guilds’ players there.
Finally with that complete, Xeal finds himself negotiating a deal with both Habia and Paidhia concerning the situation with the inevitable war. As Xeal works to secure a deal that ensures certain lines will not be crossed, he finds himself being saddled with two more princesses. Only he just smiles as he hands them over to Enye’s master, Zylah Novy, for a year of training as he puts off the mandatory time he must spend with each until they return.
Book 16.
With Princess Lorena and Princess Bianca off with Enye’s master, Zylah Novy, Alex/Xeal settles back into life as usual. At least for a short moment as life seems to fly by, as Ava and Mia declare that they are pregnant and Kate’s family is making things difficult. Frustratingly for Xeal, the issues with Kate’s family make it so that it is no longer possible for FAE and Fire Oath to remain on friendly terms and the ending of their deals becomes rather more messy than he would like. At the same time, FAE has begun to recruit wealthy players who wish to obtain the dragonoid race for themselves to replace part of the revenue lost from their dealings with Fire Oath as Cielo city returns once again. Though each of these players will need to wait a full year in ED as they will be trained to succeed by FAE’s members during that time.
Following this, Xeal continues his push to clear the Vault of Ucnuc. All the while keeping tabs on the countdown as one player after another is selected for the Quest for Godhood that Xeal received upon completing his tier-6 ordeal. This quest will have Xeal facing off against 64 other players to gain complete control of this other world. For this it appears as if each player will be based out of a city that has yet to fall to the demonic swarm that has infected the world as a whole. Thereby causing Xeal to find himself reunited with Princess Tsega and Austru once again, as Austru makes her desires towards Xeal known.
Thus, with a whole new world to focus his efforts on, Xeal finds his focus split between his efforts in the main ED world, and the struggle in this new quest world and reality. Culminating in Xeal’s first victory over another player in the quest world and the assimilation of a second city-state, Xeal finally officially proposes to Kate and Thanksgiving comes. With the arrival of Ava and Mia’s estranged mother, mixed in with all the other guests, one thing is certain, Alex/Xeal’s life is always interesting.
Book 17.
With Thanksgiving morning handled, Alex and company find themselves navigating the rocky family relationships that seems to come with dating five women at once, in reality at least. Thankfully all of them have long since learned to grin and bear it, at least for the most part as Ava and Mia’s wounds towards their mother are still fresh. Though it is clear that they still care, even if they are unsure if they wish for her to be back in their lives in any meaningful way.
Meanwhile, in ED Xeal is dealing with the return of Princesses Bianca and Lorena as he finds them vastly changed by their time away with Zylah. Still, tension is the nicest word that Xeal can use to describe the relationship between them and Enye, as the time has come for Xeal to start making good on his required time spent with each of the princesses.
Back in reality and with Christmas quickly approaching, Alex and most of those who live with him in Colorado once more find themselves in California as they prepare for Amanda and Fred’s wedding. Though before that, Alex has a Christmas gift for Ava and Mia as he asks them to wear a ring from him and become his fourth and fifth fiancées in reality. With their happy acceptance mixed in with a bit of teasing, all that remains is to see the legislation, that Kate has been pushing behind the scenes, passed for Alex to marry all five of them. Though there are a few weddings to take care of before that, the first of which is the aforementioned one between Fred and Amanda that happens just days after Christmas.
Following that New Year’s comes and goes with Alex and Kate celebrating officially knowing each other in reality for a full year in a rather intimate manner. Shortly after the new year, it was once more time for Alex and his group to visit his old high school for another of the FAE presentations on finding success in the VR gaming industry. Once that is complete, Alex and company happily return to Colorado and resume their focus on clearing the Vault of Ucnuc.
With the prep work complete and everything as ready as Xeal can make it, he leads the massive force of players into the Vault of Ucnuc and against the vampires within. They advance through one floor after another and seal each as they get closer and closer to their goal, while suffering heavy losses as they reach floors well above their current levels. As the struggle continues, Xeal eventually finds his party facing off against a corpse demon as he fights to seal the last floor while vampires threaten to overwhelm the remainder of his other forces. Thankfully with the trump cards that Taya brings from her connection with Eba the nature phoenix and Lucida brings with her connection to Brangwen the shadow phoenix, they are able to overcome the challenge.
At least that is what they thought as Xeal calls on Queen Alia Lorafir and hands her a drop of Brangwen’s blood for a bit of insurance, as they dive into the area beneath the Vault of Ucnuc. It is there that they learn of the dark secret that lies behind not only the Vault of Ucnuc, but Bula’s line and access to the sight as well, as they meet one of the sources of vampirism, the undying orc Ucnuc himself. As tensions build, words of anger are exchanged as Bula unloads her pent-up anger at her ancestor and the source of it all, the demonic god of predictions, Laplace himself, shows up. Tensions build as Xeal tries to figure out a way to overcome the circumstances without triggering an end game quest, but coming up empty as he focuses on talking his way out if the situation.
As things look like they will end up going a terrible direction, Daryu, the ED developer who has been tasked with monitoring Xeal, arrives. Claiming that to go any farther would threaten to create a situation that ED is not equipped to handle at the current time, he anticlimactically ends the situation in a way that leaves none of those involved happy. Though Kate is able to secure a path for Bula to go from accessing the sight through Laplace to doing so through Freya, if the goddess is willing to accept her. Thus ending the struggles in the Vault of Ucnuc with Ucnuc escaping to threaten them another day, but Xeal still manages to collect the last of the shards of the shattered blade. Although, until he finds an adamantium-level smith to repair it, it will do him little good.
Finally, Xeal finds himself preparing to make the final push to reach tier-7 as he breaks away from the rest of the team that he had cleared the Vault of Ucnuc with and forms a much smaller party. Included in this party is Eira, who is more than happy to once more get a chance to catch him as her birthday arrives once again. This time, unlike the times before, Xeal finds it a true struggle and fails to avoid her as she succeeds and they are married directly after in a small and intimate ceremony.
Book 18.
With the Vault of Ucnuc firmly in the rearview mirror, Xeal and company are firmly focused on reaching tier-7 before war comes to Nium. Though before that, they find themselves having to deal with the fallout from the revelations of Bula’s access to the sight and the fact that Durz and Chief Xuk seem unwilling to accept change. As Bula accepts Freya, a battle breaks out which is only contained due to Queen Aila Lorafir’s assistance. Following this, to pacify the horde of orcs, Bula declares Xeal to be the future orc chief and her their seer in a manner that makes it seem as if Xeal will take her as a wife.
While this succeeds in salvaging Nium’s current alliance with the orcs, it causes a whole host of other issues. Along with the revelation that the cleric Lucy, who has joined his party, is the divine scion of Aceso, Xeal finds his time filled with headaches as he tries to balance everything at once, only to feel overwhelmed. Upon learning that the women he loves have been trying to overload him, Xeal retreats to the quest world to clear his head. While he understood the why, it still hurt as he finds himself spending time with Austru as that relationship moves forward and Xeal decides to mark her. With that Xeal returns to Nium to add Austru’s blood to the revival point there, only to find Gale waiting for him as Freya summons Xeal to her.
A rather tense exchange later and Xeal uses his ability to transfer between worlds to make his way back to the quest world despite Freya not being done with him. With that Xeal spends a bit more time with Austru as they fight some demons together and eventually part ways as Xeal retunes to clear the air with those he loves. A productive meeting later and Xeal is feeling much better about things, but still has a few extra headaches to deal with before he can say that everything is handled. Still, time moves on as Xeal preps for another battle in the quest world.
Meanwhile, in reality, life has been continuing as normal as Ava and Mia get ever closer to their due date, but before that Alex has a meeting with Eternal Dominion’s lead developer, Ellayina Walsh. All to try and gain a quantum-entangled server for the FAE guild city that is planned for Wyoming. Through a bit of luck Alex is able to secure a second meeting with more of those who would need to be involved in any such decision, clearing the first hurdle. Though there will be several more before Alex will rest easy on the notion.
Back in the quest world, the time has come for Xeal to face off against the second player that he will need to vanquish to gain complete control over that world. This time it is personal though, as Xeal discovered that it is his backstabbing guild leader from his prior life, Frozen Sky. Unable to hold in his malice at being given such an opportunity, Xeal fights Frozen Sky with the sole goal of utterly demoralizing him and succeeds. With Frozen Sky fleeing the match by forfeiting, Xeal claims two more of the 64 shards of divinity that he needs to gain complete control of the quest world, bringing his total to four.
However, Xeal’s actions creates ripples as it triggers the beginning of the wars in Nium far too soon, as no player in all of ED has reached tier-7. With the dwarven kingdom of Dhurnrim under siege, it falls to Xeal to ensure that they are given a bit of relief before Nium is ready to invade Habia and Paidhia. However, before that, it is time for Xeal to face Freya once more as Xeal works to mend the fence that has been damaged. Thankfully he is able to do so by offering her access to the quest world for her and the new pantheon that she is creating. Though not before she forces Xeal to feel the intensity and reality of Bula’s feelings for him, causing him to become even more torn on how to handle that particular situation.
Finally, the time has come and Xeal takes Daisy and Violet with him as he makes use of their illusion magic to trick both Habia’s and Paidhia’s armies into thinking the other was attacking them. This causes the two sides to react and engage in war with each other, forcing some of the resources being focused on Dhurnrim away from it on both fronts.
Book 19.
Having welcomed four new babies into his life, we rejoin Alex as he once more readjusts to his ever-changing family dynamic, just in time for Easter and Anna’s, his sister, wedding to Dan. Among the changes, two of the last three visits by FAE to Alex’s old high school occur as summer draws ever nearer. All as Alex continues to work to find the time to spend with all those who he loves, while struggling to maintain a semblance of a work-life balance. Not to mention meeting with the higher-ups of Eternal Dominion Inc., as he and Kate try to secure the quantum-entangled server for the city they are building in reality.
Meanwhile in ED, the recently risen to tier-8 ex-pirate captains are revealed, as well as just what their new abilities are. With plans growing from the boost that they will bring to the war efforts in Nium, Xeal turns his own focus to ensuring that he and the other members of FAE will reach tier-7 on time. This involves a few instances of deception and FAE fending off a massive attempt by Habia and Paidhia to invade Nium with the aid of Abysses End.
With everything in place, Xeal and several other elite members of FAE, to include Kate and almost all of Xeal’s party, are able to attempt to reach tier-7 through facing their tribulations. For Xeal this involves facing the complicated mess of issues he has around betrayal and after succeeding, he finds Abysses End hasn’t been sitting still. Rather they have initiated wars that threaten both the Muthia and Huáng empires and Xeal is faced with some difficult decisions. However, armed with new skills, abilities and titles, Xeal decides it is time to flex his abilities and send a message to Abysses End and the rest of ED that the Muthia and Huáng empires will not be abandoned.
With his message sent in the form of him participating in battle, Xeal sets off on a quest to secure a supply of the waters of youth and griffins for his guild’s hippogriff breeding project. This leads him to discover and secure far more of both than he had hoped for and with them in hand he gets ready to face the challenges in front of him directly.
Book 20.
Alex once more finds himself trying and mostly failing to find more time to spend with those he loves, as events in ED demand more and more of his time. Especially as he has to find the time to testify to Congress on several topics related to ED, as well as the legislation that Kate has been lobbying for on plural marriage. This sees Alex and his family spending a week in the nation’s capital, as they do so before heading out to California for the final of the school presentations, as well as Anna’s graduation from high school. Add in the summer festival that Alex has decided to put on as a way for lesser-known gaming workshops to attract new members from the new graduates and he has a full schedule. Especially as with the aid of Kate and Alcinne (Natalina), they are hosting similar events around the world while trying to earn a modest profit while doing so.
Meanwhile, in ED, after Aalin and Gale reach tier-7, Xeal has focused in on the situation in the Huáng empire, since it is the most perilous as they face invasions from all their neighbors and are at risk of being overwhelmed. At the same time, the battles to control the waters surrounding Nium’s continent heats up as FAE builds their navy. Led by Ihyi, who with the aid of the ex-pirate captains and her abilities as the one marked by the wind phoenix, FAE heads for a decisive battle. At the same time, the nations fighting the Huáng empire launch all of their airships just as the massive naval battle is set to occur. This forces Xeal to push himself to the limit as he jumps back and forth between all of the battles, as he uses the waters of youth to restore his condition constantly. Finally, the day is won on all fronts, though both battles leave the victors in a state of vulnerability as well, as FAE’s navy and the Huáng empire’s airships are damaged.
As Xeal focused his efforts there, the rest of the world will not simply stand still as many others prep for, and reach, tier-7. This includes Mari, Lingxin, Dyllis, Enye, as well as the four dragonoid women, as they look to the future and a life with Xeal past the threat of wars. Which with a ceasefire signed to end the current fighting in the Huáng empire, seems to be one step closer.
Book 21.
With the return to Colorado comes many events in Alex’s life, as not only is it time to celebrate his daughters, Ahsa’s and Moyra’s first birthdays, but with the passage of the plural marriage bill, wedding bells are ringing. This sees Alex and company pack up once more and head to Wyoming, as they check out the current status of what will be FAE’s guild city when complete. After touring the building site that is mostly just holes in the ground and compacted dirt, it is time for the wedding in reality. With only one minor incident involving Kate’s father, Jasper, arriving without an invitation, the wedding goes off without issue. Though the six of them have no time for a honeymoon, as events in ED refuse to give them the time to enjoy such a thing.
Speaking of ED, with the situation in the Huáng empire handled for the moment, Xeal turns his attention to the Muthia empire after shoring things up in Nium. This includes speaking with both the orcs where Xeal asserts his dominance over them for the war and dwarves, which caused Xeal to learn of King Dorrin Dragonaxe’s condition after facing a tier-8 necromancer. Upon healing the dwarven king in exchange for an introduction to the adamantium-ranked dwarven smith, Thataer Duskblade, Xeal refused to sell any more of the goods that were used to heal the king. This included both the waters of youth and a drop of phoenix blood, though it is clear that King Dorrin Dragonaxe wishes for much more.
Following an unsuccessful visit with Thataer Duskblade, as the smith failed to reach a compensation agreement with King Dorrin Dragonaxe, Xeal left with a still unprepared shattered blade. However, as no deal was reached, King Dorrin Dragonaxe must give Xeal half of all the adamantium that the dwarves mine. Xeal quickly sells most of it back at a discount to dwarves, as he gets ready to fight another war. At the same time, Luna and Selene complete their tier-7 tribulation as they become the last of Xeal’s wives to do so.
In Muthia, Xeal quickly gets to work, as he first recruits a group of women who have created a settlement in the middle of monster territory, and typically have issues with men and the neighboring countries. Still, after a bit of friction and a display of his abilities, a deal for them to side with Muthia in exchange for a nonaggression stance following the war is made. Following this, Xeal and his party set about working behind enemy lines as they disrupt supply lines and create general chaos. That is until they get caught in a trap that sees them overwhelmed and they find themselves having to flee. Only, Eira falls and is revived in Nium thanks to the pseudo mark Xeal placed on her. This leaves Bula behind instead of her, as Xeal escapes with the orcess, who failed to secure all of the parts to the portable teleportation gate that had been used by the rest to escape.
With the easy method of escape lost, Xeal is torn on what to do as Bula asked to be allowed to seek out the orcs of the continent and see about forming an alliance with them as well. This leads to them splitting up, with a plan to reunite before meeting with the orcs as Xeal returns to Nium where Eira awaits him. Upon reuniting with the now captured Bula, Xeal finds himself instantly dueling with an orc who wishes to claim her as his. This ends in the orc’s death and a series of events that sees Xeal rise to lead this group of orcs as well, as he organizes a group of FAE members to lead them and secure a treaty with Muthia for them.
What follows is battle as Xeal focuses in on the nation of Ivraba, as it was there that he fell into a trap and so he decides to raid their capital, capture their leaders and empty their treasury to send a message. A message which several of the other nations involved in the war receive, as they start to cut their losses and sign ceasefires with Muthia one after another, that sees Muthia add land to their empire. This eventually leads to Ivraba suffering a decisive loss and surrendering the entire eastern side of their lands to Muthia. The conflict there comes to an end, with Muthia celebrating a victory, at least for the moment, as in five years they would almost certainly have another fight on their hands.
(*****)




Morning August 6 to Evening August 10, 2268 & ED Year 7 Days 62-76.

Alex smiled as he stretched as he stepped out of his VR pod after his latest login as while it had been eventful, he also felt like it had taken a load off of his plate. With Muthia at peace he could finally focus on enjoying a bit of a break as he got ready to focus on Nium’s issues. Though the attempted assassination of Empress Sakurai Jingū was still a source of concern that would need to be addressed in more detail. Still, Alex was determined to enjoy the time he had before it was time to return to 22-hour days once more, as he gave Kate, Sam, Nicole, Ava and Mia kisses as they all joined him in reality. Since the five of them had married Alex, he felt like he hadn’t given them even a fraction of the time that they deserved. Even if they knew the why and accepted it, Alex still couldn’t help but lament that fact as they headed down for aikido practice that morning.
So it was that Alex made sure to make time for each of them during the evenings when he logged out on the 6th to 10th. While Alex would have liked to have spent some time with them in the mornings as well, that time was for his six kids as he did his best to bond with each of them. Especially during the Sunday morning swim as Alex reaffirmed his desire to increase his and Kate’s ability to delegate work with more confidence. The pair of them both knew that they were too vital to operations for more than a public two-day break of activity to be viable without major issues. The only reason that they had gotten away with taking the time to reach tier-7 was due to the subterfuge that had been used to keep it unknown, until just before they completed it. Still, the time that Abysses End had had to work with once it was confirmed had been enough for them to gain major ground, increasing the costs to resolve things and negate Abysses End’s gains.
If Alex ever hoped to be able to just escape with his five wives in reality and his kids for even a long weekend, let alone a week or more, he needed to fix this issue and soon. While Tara and Sato (Takeshi) and several others in the leadership team were great, they were similarly overloaded and while Kate and Alex could cover for them, it was hard to find others who could. While Alex had yet to share it with anyone but Kate, he had set his next birthday as the goal for FAE to no longer be so reliant on him or the other top leaders. After that he would be mainly focused only on reaching tier-8 and adventuring with his wives, as he left the day-to-day work to others and just stepped in when needed.
As peaceful as his time in reality was, Xeal’s time in ED was anything but. Especially with the latest shipment of adamantium from King Dorrin Dragonaxe arriving. All said Xeal had had enough of the games he was being forced to play with the stubborn fool. Not only was it one and a half times larger than the last, but the market price of it had dropped below the discounted price that Xeal had planned to sell it at already. Xeal didn’t even want to think about the issues that came with the increased output of adamantium. He knew that it was dangerous work that always occurred in areas that were at the limits of what a tier-7 NPC or player could safely handle. Even if a few of the areas that were easier to mine didn’t hold true to this logic, Xeal knew that all of those were already running at full capacity before he started to receive the adamantium. This situation was all due to King Dorrin Dragonaxe having failed to hold up his end of a bargain to secure the services of Master Thataer Duskblade. All Xeal had wanted was to repair the shattered untouchable-class magical sword that Xeal had collected the pieces to in the Vault of Ucnuc.
Xeal knew that Master Thataer Duskblade wouldn’t be unreasonable if King Dorrin Dragonaxe set aside a tiny bit of his pride, but that seemed to be beyond him. No, it was far worse than that as Xeal knew that if allowed to, King Dorrin Dragonaxe would try and acquire most if not all of Xeal’s treasures like the waters of youth and his drops of phoenix blood. It was this issue above all that Xeal was most concerned about, as he sent a message to the player in charge of the gate there to let the dwarves know that he was planning to visit on day 63. So it was that Xeal once more found himself being guided to King Dorrin Dragonaxe’s war room by Durirnerlug Oakguard, who looked like he was unsure of what to expect as he spoke.
“Dur ye plan tur cause King Dorrin tur become enraged once more?”
“No, but I will probably do so anyways.”
“Why?”
“Because, he is going to create a grudge that can’t be fixed easily if he keeps walking down the current path.”
“The king knows what he is during. Ye needn’t worry as he has no plans tur betray ye.”
Xeal just shook his head at the captain of the king’s guard’s words as he responded.
“I am not worried about him betraying me, I am worried about him being unable to rule his subjects once the threat of the war is no more.”
“Why dur ye care about after the war?”
“Stability saves lives, and that is worth far more than having a ruler that is easier to work with sitting on any throne. At least if the one on the throne isn’t committing atrocities to maintain the stability of their rule, that is.”
“Ye would make a terrible ruler, being that soft.”
“I have no desire to rule your kind or any of the native inhabitants of this world. That said, I will also not sit back and ignore those who rule through the philosophy that might makes right alone.”
At those words Durirnerlug stopped and looked at Xeal with a stern expression as he responded.
“Is that how ye see our king?”
“Not completely, but his recent actions have me concerned that he may be slipping into such a pattern. He is letting his pride keep him from accepting the best paths forward-”
“No, he sees the path that ye believe is best as foolishness. Pride is important tur us dwarves. It is why we durn’t settle for anything but our best and why we seek tur be independent. Tur accept yer offer tur feed us is a path tur dependence as what ye offer isn’t something we could provide without ye. Before long we would no longer be allowed tur close ourselves off from the world if need be and not fight a civil war. That is why we will never accept yer offer, or allow unrestricted trade with ye or anyone else. Only that which can be used in war or produced by our own can become common in our lands.”
“So, you won’t let your people enjoy a fruit because its trees don’t grow underground?”
“It is amazing just what can be done with magic as we have many orchards in our lands grown with magic light.”
“Yet only the rich can afford to eat from them. You call ten trees an orchard. While you are technically correct to do so, it is not a fair counter to my question. If anything, it just sounds like blatant protectionism and a refusal to move forward into the future.”
“Ye would have us leave our mines and become soft like yer kind!”
“There will always be those who stand against progress only to find that before they know it, they have been left behind by it. Like it or not, my kind have already started to share what life could be like simply by being here and be that now or in ten years, your people will desire more than what they have now.”
“Ye’re all a plague.”
With that Durirnerlug resumed guiding Xeal, only he did so in silence until they arrived at the room King Dorrin Dragonaxe was holed up in most of the time. As Xeal entered, he could see the model of the mountain had been updated to reflect the current state of battle and several maps of the tunnels and the dwarven settlement were in front of the dwarven king. For his own part, King Dorrin Dragonaxe looked like he had missed too much sleep and already had more than a few new scars to replace the ones that had been healed upon him using the drop of phoenix blood. As Durirnerlug went to announce Xeal, he was cut off as King Dorrin Dragonaxe spoke first.
“If ye are here tur tell me tur give in and speak tur Thataer Duskblade about yer request, ye’re wasting both yer and my time and energy.”
“Fine, I won’t hit that point. Instead, I will focus on how you’re increasing the extraction of adamantium.”
“Ye seemed tur think that we couldn’t last without ye selling back what I have been giving ye. So, I decided that it was time tur show ye that we durn’t need yer charity.”
“Right, and just what effect is this having on those tasked with the increased workload?”
“Worry about yer own people, that is unless ye have decided tur marry my daughter and consider her people yer people.”
Xeal had to hold in his initial retort as he hated the constant attempts, genuine or not, that rulers seemed to make to push him to marry their daughters. Especially as Kate had been dealing with that constantly while looking for partners for their teleportation treaty talks. Apparently, the number one condition that seemed to be on the list of all nations was for Xeal to marry their daughters after his display in Muthia and the Huáng empire. There had even been many that stated that him doing so was their only condition for agreeing to join the treaty and it was the only issue still holding things up as it was a hard no at this point. Which wasn’t something that royals were used to hearing from anyone but the rulers of other nations and it was starting to create unnecessary friction with many of the preferred partners for the treaty.
“No, and if you wish for me to see if she and I are a fit, then you’ll stay quiet on the matter until after the war has ended.”
“Coward. Ye are afraid that if ye let her in now and things durn’t work out, that it will just cause issues for ye-”
“No, war is not a time when emotions can be trusted. All of the death that I see on a regular basis has me seeking love wherever I can find it. It is why I am wary to take a meaningful step forward with any who have my eye right now, not just your daughter!”
“And what dur ye think she is going through? Who is there tur hold her when she needs to feel the love yer wives give ye? It is why I am not happy tur hear that ye’re allowing her tur fight alongside ye.”
“She knew what she was agreeing to when she joined my party and she had Bula, Daisy and Violet to share her emotions with as they all share that burden.”
“Fine, I’ll make a deal with ye. I will lower myself tur beg Thataer Duskblade tur forge yer item, when ye marry my daughter.”
Xeal just locked eyes with King Dorrin Dragonaxe as he held in his next words until he was calm enough to speak with an even temper before changing the subject.
“This topic will go nowhere good, so let us leave it and shift to what it will take to at least accept that your kingdom can never close itself off from the world again and let real trade begin.”
“No, ye will not rob us of our independence and self-sufficiency!”
“Who is fighting on the front lines for you even as we speak?”
“What does hiring mercenaries or fighting along allies have tur dur with either of those things when speaking of goods and services?”
“Why are you so afraid of opening your lands to my kind? The elves, orcs and beast-men have all done so already and each has become more prosperous for it!”
“We are not elf, orc or beast-man. We are dwarf and we fight the darkness beneath ye all!”
“As will my kind be, regardless of what race we are. If you don’t believe me, my own wives are doing exactly that right now!”
King Dorrin Dragonaxe seemed confused as he paused at Xeal’s words as Xeal continued.
“Yes, right now Enye, Dyllis, Lingxin, Mari and the rest of their party are all exploring the subterranean realm from the entrance in Ginlodur. Furthermore, once this war is over I will be joining them as the next war I fight will be to ensure that the worst of the threats to the surface down there, stay down there. By the time I am done, I expect that the dark elves that you find yourself constantly in conflict with will have been brought to heel.”
“Will ye sign a treaty saying as much?” questioned King Dorrin Dragonaxe, showing a smile for the first time. “I will of course expect ye tur aid in our fight here as well.”
“If you open your borders to my kind and get over your pride and allow your borders to remain open after this war ends, I think we can get something done…”
Xeal and King Dorrin Dragonaxe spent the next hour creating a framework that Kate and a few others would need to look over as a few dwarves did the same. While Xeal felt bad for adding more work to Kate’s plate, he was just happy to have finally made some headway towards avoiding a war with the dwarves after the current one ended. Though, the deal before him was still rather restrictive as it didn’t allow for foods that were considered luxuries to be included in the imported goods. This meant that anything that needed the sun to grow, beyond grains and dried foods that could keep for decades if stored properly, were not allowed. Even most meat was off the table as it required grass for food and couldn’t be reliably raised underground in large numbers.
While the deal was far from perfect, Xeal knew that it was simply getting his foot in the door. Especially as he had lessened the commitment of fighting the monsters of the subterranean realm, with each restriction placed on goods as well. In the end the dwarven people would be fed, but it wasn’t going to be the most varied of diets. Still, it was a start and hopefully it would lead to more, though Xeal knew better than to get his hopes up too much.
However, no real progress was made on rebalancing the adamantium situation, as Xeal just decided to take a step back and only see a third of what he was getting sold back to the dwarves. This would return the amount on the market to the levels that had been there before the deal had gone through. Hopefully this would be enough to stabilize the price and keep King Dorrin Dragonaxe from increasing the supply even further. So it was that Xeal left Dhurnrim and refocused on his grinding for the remainder of the login as Kate started to get things moving on her end. Though he still wished he had done so with the shattered blade made whole once more.
When day 66 came, Xeal smiled as he was planning to spend the whole session in the quest world. Though he wasn’t going alone as not only were Kate, Gale, Aalin, Luna and Selene coming along, so were Xeal’s parents and unlike the rest of them, they would be staying for at least a few weeks in ED time. So it was that as the eight of them transferred to the quest world, they were greeted by a nervous-looking Austru and Xeal smiled at seeing her become flustered at meeting his parents. Though he didn’t leave her like that for long as he stepped forward and pulled her into a kiss, before he turned and introduced her.
“Mom, Dad, as I am sure you can guess this is Austru and I intend to make her wife number 11 once I defeat my next foe here.”
“It is a pleasure to meet you both,” hastily stated Austru and Xeal could tell she was unsure what to do as his parents both smiled and his mother, Gwynn, decided to have a bit of fun as she responded.
“Likewise, and I look forward to getting to know you better. Now, Xeal hasn’t shared with me how many kids you want. Care to enlighten us?”
“Um-”
“Mom, we haven’t even discussed that yet-”
“But we have,” interjected Luna.
“Yes, and don’t worry, Austru wants more than a few,” added Selene.
“Though she knows that reality may decide otherwise.”
“Though, we think the next 200 years should be enough to-”
“Alright, how about we shift to talking about hobbies, or likes and dislikes,” interrupted Xeal, as Austru’s pale skin did little to hide her blush. “Mom, I am sure you would enjoy learning about the rare ingredients that Austru knows where to look for, like that mushroom I was telling you about.”
“Yes, Xeal has told me about how you have a passion for discovering the best ways to prepare different ingredients,” stated Austru as she grasped onto the lifeline that had been offered.
“That I do, though we will have plenty of time to look into those once my son leaves. Right now, I am more interested in getting to know you and see how you and my son get along. Though, so far, I think it is safe to say that he is at least treating you well, if we ignore the wife number 11 comment. Although I am willing to simply say that you are a good fit for him, even if I don’t have much say in the end.”
“Dear, you are letting your protective mother out a bit too much,” commented Xeal’s father, Wayland.
Xeal just smiled as his mom gave his dad a look that clearly said that she had just been having a bit of fun as Gale spoke.
“Please, we all know it is too late for her to be protective of Xeal. That is what the five of us are for now. That said, Austru has cleared most hurdles, despite us not getting enough time with her, which is part of the point of this trip.”
“Exactly,” added Aalin. “After all, we all have only been able to spend a few hours here or there with her and she is planning to become a bride like the rest of us. I for one wish to be as sure as possible before Xeal actually proposes to her.”
Xeal could feel Austru tensing up as she looked at Aalin, who was giving her an appraising look as Luna and Selene cut back in.
“Stop worrying so much.”
“Yeah, Aalin might look scary right now.”
“But she is a pushover once she accepts you completely.”
“As long as you love Xeal and are committed to making this work you will fit right in.”
“I know,” replied Austru. “It has just been so long since any of you visited and I worry that I have forgotten what it is like to not have Xeal all to myself.”
“Get used to it,” commented Kate. “Xeal, I think you should go ahead and take care of the tasks that you have to handle before you can relax and let us all get some time with Austru without you here.”
Xeal gave the group a quick look, before giving Austru a reassuring squeeze and kissing her and his wives before heading off. Over the next few hours Xeal focused on expanding his dominion and transporting the latest stockpile of food to the main ED world. Xeal could tell by the increase, that Taya’s last trip had borne fruit as the quantity was double what he had been expecting, as he dropped it all off with Queen Aila Lorafir to be processed. With that handled, Xeal finally returned to the rest of the group to find them chatting happily, as the tension that had been there when he had arrived seemed to have dispersed. While this left Xeal with more than one question, he decided that he wouldn’t dive too deep just yet as he shifted to enjoying his time in the quest world.
Over the remainder of the login, he continued to slip away to expand his dominion when opportunities presented themselves to him. Really it was any time that the group was switching activities, or any of the others wanted some time with Austru alone as while Austru wasn’t the constant center of his attention, she was the focus of the trip. As such, Xeal didn’t feel too bad about stepping away for 15 minutes every couple of hours, to work on ensuring that more of the areas that had been marked as a priority were reclaimed from the demons. Though it was clear that Taya would need to spend more time healing the land after this trip as well.
Kate had also slipped off to check in with both of the other cities and Vento, who was still acting as the leader of the investigation unit. This unit was still watching the developments between two dominions that were in the process of being forced to fight with the other, as the demon incursions had begun. However, it was unclear on what the situation was, as like before, players were unable to freely enter the other dominions of a lower level and it was too dangerous to send in NPCs currently. Though a unit was being organized for when the conflict within the dominion ended and the demons drew back, to do just that. Xeal almost pitied the two players as they were struggling to survive the current round of the quest, only to be doomed to fail almost instantly during the next round.
It wasn’t until Xeal and his wives were getting ready to leave, that he was able to get any time alone with Austru since his arrival. Though it was only for a short walk along the city walls, as they enjoyed the scenery while the others were enjoying doing some shopping for things that they wanted to have Xeal bring back to the main ED world for them. Even so, he was happy to see Austru smiling as she held his hand and felt the breeze blow through her hair.
“Are you sure you’re ready for what becoming my wife will mean for you?”
“You mean having a swollen belly?”
“No, we both know that won’t happen until either I control this world, or can transport you and them to my other world.”
“I don’t know, the others have been pretty persuasive the last two days.”
“Oh, what, are they saying that you should have one to motivate me to ensure I am victorious here as soon as possible?”
“No, it is more to reassure the people here of your commitment. They also say that you should mark them and ensure that if they die, they will return to you as well. It is why they are telling me to hold off on number two until you have the leeway to mark them as well.”
“I take it that they left all of this out of their letters?”
“Yes, we are all careful about just what gets put in writing when it comes to touching on your secrets and the lack of drops is why your other wives are all restraining their desires to have another kid as well. They know that you will mark all of your children and worry that they will prevent you from having enough drops of phoenix blood to handle the needs of the current situation.”
“I currently have 16 drops left and in two more months I will have 21 if none of it has to be used. That said, I am expecting deaths to occur, among those I have marked, more frequently now. Though it is the drops that I have guarding yours and my wives’ lives, that I refuse not to have a spare drop available for currently.”
“Do you not value the lives of your children in the same way?”
“I do, but they aren’t at the point of facing off against dangers that could kill them on a daily basis. Once they reach the age that I have to worry about such things, I hope to have enough drops of phoenix blood to cover all of their deaths as well.”
“I would call your goals unrealistic were it not for the fact that I know what I do. Still, that limits you to five kids every two years, as you will need one drop for them and one drop for just in case they fall while adventuring. Am I and Aila the only ones you plan to marry, or do you see Bula, Daisy, Violet and Dafasli joining us after the war?”
“Is your concern focused on keeping all my wives happy with how many kids they have, or the limits it will create on my time with you?”
“Both and yes, I have spoken a fair bit about this with Aalin, Gale, Luna, Selene and Kate while you were occupied elsewhere during this visit.”
“Austru, I don’t want 100 kids. I am already getting ready to deal with having 15 or 20 in my other reality and don’t see a need to have 80 more in this reality. My hope is that each of my wives will be happy with two or three each and just content themselves in being mothers to all of my other wives’ children as well. I really think that once the number reaches around 30 in this reality and it gets hard for all of you to remember their names, that my point will be made.”
Austru gave Xeal a look like he was being an idiot as she said her next words.
“That might work when you still have a few who are young enough to be held in our arms, but even if we only get 200 years with you, that would create many years where we wouldn’t have any.”
“We could just be like your parents and spend our time when we don’t have any adventuring.”
“I think you should just accept your fate of having as many kids as your wives want and be done with it.”
“Oh, and so just how many do you want?”
“I am not sure. Part of me just wants the one, as I crave freedom too much to want to have one every couple of years. However, I can also see me wishing to have one every 20 to 40 years for the rest of the time that I have with you. I especially see me wanting to have two or three when you feel you only have around 30 years left in this world, as they will be part of how I see myself wishing to live once you are gone. Waters of youth or not, I will likely outlive all of your other wives by at least a few hundred years, as it is not hard for my kind to live over 1,000 years.”
“If I could spend all of that time with you, would you still want so many children?”
“I might stretch it out to one every 40 to 60 years, but yes, I would likely want to have many children with you and not just enjoy caring for my sister wives’ children.”
Xeal just sighed as he looked out into the distance, as he envisioned the future and what having so many children would mean for him as he responded to Austru.
“We will just have to see what the future holds. For now, I am not going to run from you over you wanting more kids than I do.”
“Oh, no line about how you will run away at a certain number of kids like you would at wives?”
“That one will never die. No, I know better now. Were I to say that I would run away at 100 kids, you all would ensure that I had 99. Even if I don’t marry Bula, Dafasli, Daisy and Violet, I still worry that Enye will find a way to add seven more wives over the next 100 years, despite my declaration that Aila will be the final woman that I marry.”
“No, I don’t see any of us pushing you towards any more women from the letters I’ve read and after talking with the others. We may accept you bringing a few more into our lives, but we would all be happy with the number staying at 12.”
“I would have been happy with any one of you. It would have also saved me most of the headaches that I have dealt with over the last seven years in this reality.”
“The key word there is would. Xeal, could you see yourself being happy if any of us left your life now?”
“Yes, though only after a rather painful period in my life. But I am sure those who stayed would help me get through it and find a reason to smile again eventually.”
Xeal saw Austru frown as she thought for a second before sighing and responding.
“Fair, though I would hope that you would at least fight to keep us by your side.”
“I would certainly not do anything to carelessly push any of you away, but it would depend on the reason that you or any other wished to walk away. As I have told the others, I see me no longer loving any of you as a betrayal, but not the reverse. That said, I treat every moment that I have with any of you as if I am fighting to ensure that you never wish to walk away. It is why I will not lie to you and simply give you the answer that you want to hear and while I haven’t shared everything that I need to with you yet, I will before I place a ring on your finger.”
“You would rather I left now because I didn’t like your answer, than stick around after you fed me a lie that I wanted to hear. While I think I would have preferred the lie be the truth, as if I ever try to walk away I want you to fight to keep me, I would hate to only learn the truth when I walked away. Now let’s shift topics. What are your thoughts on transplanting anything your mom likes in Enye’s world.”
At that the conversation shifted to lighter topics as the day came to an end and Xeal and his wives returned to Nium. The following session turned into the five who had accompanied Xeal, sharing everything with the other five who were still unable to travel to the quest world. This was followed by Kate heading off on day 66 to secure the last seven agreements that would be needed, as she had called a summit of the ones that made the most sense. At the same time, Xeal returned to his daily grind while also getting in ten more hours with Princesses Bianca and Lorena by the end of day 73. This left just 40 hours with each of them before satisfying that obligation, which was due in just under a year.
When day 74 arrived, it brought with it news from Kate that she had walked away from the summit with none of the countries secured in the treaty. It seemed that none of them were willing to give up on adding a bride to Xeal’s life and Kate was focusing on other means that would take far more time to secure the seven nations that would be needed. Though, the main problem was that any nation that joined the treaty would be targeted by their neighbors, or at least that was what all of the nations gave as why they wouldn’t agree without Xeal taking a bride. The examples of how the Ivurith Empire, Zapladal Theocracy and Stisea Kingdom hadn’t suffered such a fate came down to timing and it not being known until after the treaty was in place.
However, Xeal just put all of that on the back burner as he made his way to Ozzugh, as he prepared to give the main force of Bula’s tribe their orders. While they had been preparing for a full mobilization since he had forced Zlog into submission and taken full control of the orcs, they had yet to bring out their full force, which had been gathered. Instead, they had sent forth a force similar to what the beast-men and elves had sent to be represented on the defensive lines, but not overextended. Though most of them had ended up fighting in the far south, as they pushed Paidhia out of the wild lands that were between them and the elven lands.
However, with FAE gaining a few hundred tier-7 players every day or two, the time had come to change the status quo and Xeal was happy to see the gathering of orcs before him. Just like with the Orcs of the Serpent Sea who Xeal had gotten involved in Muthia’s war, the force before him was more than he had expected. The fact that it was only tier-7 orcs and up, and those who were unable to reach the next tier just added to the impact of the sight, as 400,000 orcs were ready to head into war. That said, after speaking with Bula and her brother Sguk, Xeal learned that only 100,000 were tier-7 and of those, Xeal was going to refuse all but 30,000 who were at least level 250. The other 70,000 were either under level 250, or needed to ensure that not all of the orcs’ strength was exhausted fighting the war. This included the 1,000 level-279 ones who he knew would complain at being refused the chance to gain glory.
It was this group in particular that Xeal had focused on in his speech, before declaring that the march was to begin as teleporting them all would be too expensive. Especially as of the 300,000 that had come to act as support troops, Xeal approved 200,000 of them to march. Had Xeal not emphasized that those not included in the current fight would be needed when Nium pushed forward into Habia, he doubted that any of them would have accepted things. Still, he was able to accomplish his goal without having to fight anyone, and for him that was a victory as he left and repeated his call to war two more times, as he called upon the beast-men and elves.
With this all of the forces that would be needed to push into Paidhia were assembling, as Xeal received word that the conflict between the two other dominions had come to an end. At the same time, he received a message from Genivive Farrell of Fire Oath, asking for a meeting during his next login. Xeal just sighed as he passed the details to Kate and asked her to arrange something for the next session, as he waited for Vento’s investigation to conclude. Though Xeal felt confident about at least one thing. Whoever the player was in the neighboring dominion, they were definitely connected to Fire Oath in one way or another.
(*****)




Morning August 11 to Evening August 20, 2268 & ED Year 7 Days 77-106.

With the mobilization of Nium’s forces and his other responsibilities in ED, Alex’s time was such that he was only able to take more than a one-hour break after one out of three logouts. During these times all of Alex’s time was devoted to his family, though Kate had become similar to the way Ava and Mia had been when Alex was working to get them pregnant. However, the test still came back negative on the 20th. This had started to cause Kate to worry, as none of the others had taken so long after starting to try before they had a positive test. While everyone reassured her that it was normal, Alex could tell that it was gnawing at her as he spent time with her.
When Xeal returned to ED on day 77, he only had about an hour to review the files that Vento had submitted on the initial investigation into the new dominion that was within range of him. As he did so, it was clear that it would prove to be a challenge to add to his own if he moved immediately, due to the chaos that came from a change in the status quo. At the same time, with the centers of power in each currently split, it could also be seen as the best time to do so if he wished to avoid any meaningful resistance from the NPCs. Still, Xeal knew that with only four fights left in front of him and Genivive Farrell wishing to meet with him, that he was about to touch upon the super guild’s bottom line. So much so that had the quest for godhood started before he had made the contract for the dragonoid slots, Xeal doubted that they would have signed it. Instead, they would have likely looked for a way to include a clause that dealt with Xeal or any other FAE member defeating their members, or being the one to complete the quest.
It was with this thought that Xeal found himself seated across from Genivive Farrell in one of the offices in FAE’s headquarters. While Xeal would have liked to have Kate or Taya with him, this meeting was a true one-on-one with the two guild leaders speaking directly. On the surface others would see this meeting as the two trying to deal with the fallout from the repercussions of the war in Muthia. However, Xeal knew that Genivive Farrell was under a fair bit of pressure on all sides as Kenneth’s return had divided the members of the guild and the investors. With the Astor family out of favor and her time at the helm of Fire Oath being marred by decline caused from breaking the crafting agreement with FAE, it was clear that she was worried about her future as she spoke.
“Let’s not mince words. You’re about to remove several of our members from a special world that has been quite profitable. Is there any way that I can convince you to pick a different target?”
“No, sorry, but I actually expect that they are the last opponents I have on that continent. That is unless you know of another opponent that is on the other side of your member’s dominion.”
“So even you haven’t prepared to cross the sea yet. Alright, what will it take to get you to allow our members to return to that world and allow us to take a cut of the rewards if you win? Would offering you the same deal if you lose be enough?”
“Do you believe that I can lose to your member?”
“I will not tip my hand.”
“That is a no, as if you thought it was above a 0.01% chance, you would be at least bluffing right now, but you can’t even imagine a situation where I lose.”
“Once more, what do you want in exchange for allowing us to maintain the revenue stream that we have taken time to develop there?”
“What is it worth to you?” countered Xeal.
“Fire Oath declaring that we will no longer join any conflict where FAE is already on the other side of said conflict in ED.”
“Tempting, but no. First, I want you to clear the way for Kenneth to return to being Fire Oath’s guild leader. Second, while I will allow your members to return to the quest world, if I determine that one of their revenue streams will harm that world in the long run I will shut it down. Third, I will be taking a cut of any revenue that I do allow out of the quest world and finally, Fire Oath will share all the information they have on the other players in that world with FAE. I am sure that Kate will add more nuance and minor things to any deal between us and I am sure you will as well, but those four are non-negotiable.”
Genivive Farrell looked at Xeal like he was being unreasonable as she pursed her lips and waited a long second as she thought about things before she finally responded.
“So first you wish to ruin my career to revive another. Second, you want to pick and choose which of the efforts we have invested in can continue. Third, you want part of whatever is left and finally, you expect us to just give you information that is likely the most valuable info to you we have. Am I missing anything from what you are expecting from us, or do you want to have us build statues of you once you become a god in ED as well?”
“It seems that we might have nothing left to discuss. I am sorry that you see my conditions in such a negative way, as they really aren’t meant as an attack on you or Fire Oath. You and I know that Kenneth should have never been removed as guild leader and his return would help restore stability. I think you should see the writing on the wall already as well as even if you fight it, he will be guild leader again in a year in reality at most. By clearing the way for him to, you can position yourself as what Kate would have likely become had she not joined FAE and thereby remain as a top advisor if not his second in command. As for picking and choosing the revenue streams that Fire Oath has developed that will remain, as I said, I care about the long term as I plan to be the last one standing and restoring that world will bring far more benefits in the long run. As for me taking a cut, well, I am not some side character in my guild and the time that I will need to devote to simply transporting your members and the goods between both worlds takes time. I don’t know how Fire Oath has done it, but I have only allowed my members to return to this world when they are working to reach the next tier.
“Finally, on the sharing of information, I said on those in that world, not that have been in that world. I am not so cocky that I believe that I can sit back and relax if I wish to win this struggle. Besides, while you may be right on just how valuable such info is, so is gaining this agreement with FAE for Fire Oath. After all, you would continue to have access to the unique products of that world long after the quest ends if I win. Even if it costs you the position of guild leader as part of it, you will still prove that you are good for Fire Oath. Heck, that will even lower others’ guards towards you as far as worrying about your own ambitions, if you wish to set things up to return to the role of guild leader when Kenneth retires. I can even mention to him that you shouldn’t be ignored as a candidate for him to groom to replace him one day if you like.”
“I am older than Kenneth and will never get a second chance at being guild leader, as possible longevity is a key criterion and I don’t have at least 20 years past Kenneth in me. No, the only reason I even got this chance is because the Astor faction is in chaos and has fallen out of favor and the rest of Kenneth’s faction is in the same boat. For me to hand power over to him would be a betrayal of those who are in my faction.”
“Genivive, so work it out with Kenneth. I am sure that even your own faction would prefer the prosperity of Fire Oath as a whole over an empty title.”
“You see being guild leader as just holding an empty title?”
“As you currently are, yes. After all, you are still forced to do as the shareholders decide and are not a monolith as you should be. Even if the majority of shares are concentrated to a few factions as they currently are in Fire Oath. It is why Kenneth’s faction was allied with the Astor family, as he needed their influence and votes to get things done. Now, if he was to realign his faction to be allied with yours, while citing the damage done from breaking the crafting agreement that was in place with FAE as a reason, well I think you can see the possibilities.”
“Before I respond to that, I have a few questions that I want answered. First, how were you so adapted to dealing with the politics of the major and superpowers of the VR gaming industry when you should have had no experience with such things when you started playing ED?”
Xeal just smiled helplessly as he looked at Genivive and thought about just how he was going to answer her for a long moment, before he made his attempt to dance around the truth.
“Luck and a whole lot of being able to simply tell which guilds are completely rotten and which I can work with, despite the parts of them that are rotting. Also, it can help when others underestimate just what you are capable of. Beyond that, I would say that things simply clicked for me right from the start.”
“So, you aren’t a plant of Ellayina Walsh or any other developer of ED with inside information and knowledge that the rest of us don’t have?”
“We all have information that others don’t. However, while some of what I have now can be considered inside information by some, none of what I had before I started my guild came from any deals with Eternal Dominion Inc. Can Fire Oath or any of the super guilds claim the same?”
“I see, I should just take you for an existence like Kate. Considering just how far she has gone for you, I would say that you not being at least near her level would be an insult to her. Still, she couldn’t do what you did, even if her, I suppose ex-family now, hadn’t tried to sabotage her from the start and Jasper certainly couldn’t have either, else we would have the first guild bonus. So, tell me, what makes you so special that you and you alone have been able to do what you have done and stand at the top of everything from nothing?”
“I am sorry, but beyond what I have already said I will not elaborate further.”
“You are asking Fire Oath to reverse course once more and step on the same path that Salty Dogs is on, as we walk down the path that will eventually lead to a de facto alliance in most things. The least you could do is give me a reason to believe that your luck will carry on past today.”
“Fine. You know what Kate is capable of. Well, I have no secrets from her and she has gone all in on me. That should be enough for you to know that she doesn’t see us failing like many are waiting for, as we finally overextend ourselves and collapse.”
“Love can blind even the greatest of minds. Sorry, but you will need to do better than that.”
“Hmm, you really have me in a bind on that one then. I have no other convenient way to give you a way to feel comfortable with what the future holds without revealing too much. After all, many things are only effective if they are used before others can even think of them.”
“How did you know where to find the first of the phoenixes that you visited? Yes, we are well aware that is the reason why you have done many of the things that you have done. We even think we know the general location of some of them, but you have done well hiding their exact locations, or they are simply that hard to get to appear. As far as we can tell there are at least ten in total, though we could be wrong as your guild has more than that which can be considered too strong for their level. Though we are still trying to figure out the exact connection between finding a phoenix and the power boost that seemed to come from doing so.”
“I am going to leave that for you to wonder forever. As for how meeting a phoenix works, well, the details there are a bit too sensitive also. However, I just thought of something that will give you one bit of information that may give you the reassurance that you need. As you are aware, I secured all of the dragonoid slots that are being used now myself and chose to avoid monopolizing them to keep the situation mostly balanced.”
“Yes, though I suspect that the developers forced your hand on that one.”
“More like I did so to force theirs. After all, even now it is one of their most popular events. Other than players demanding more slots and for independent players to be able to earn slots as well, it has done better than the arena leagues for them. Guilds love it because it favors them and even being offered the chance to try out for the team that will struggle for them is a great recruitment pitch. Then there are the slots my guild sells that continue to put a significant amount of capital in our pockets as due to the nature of the auctions and contracts, ED gets to play middleman and collect their fee.”
“None of that is news to me. Heck, we even know that for some reason the rulers of Cielo city have allowed you to build a palace up there.”
“Yes, but did you know that I subjugated every single dragonoid in Cielo city?”
Xeal just smiled at the blank look that came across Genivive’s face as his words sunk in as he continued.
“Now once more I did so in a way that ensured that I could never use them in a conflict anywhere other than on Cielo city, as the developers would have blown the whole city out of the sky had I not done so. Still, while I will never sit on any NPC throne of any human, elf, dwarf, beast-man, orc or any other race, I have no choice but to do so for Cielo city as even if I refused, the dragonoids would ignore me.”
“You’re their king!?”
“No, but they see me as such and they aren’t the type to care about if I accept it or not. I mean what am I supposed to do? Order them to not treat me like their king, which I have done. Yet, I still know that all it would take is for me to ask and they would accommodate almost any request.”
“I see. That is something rather surprising to learn indeed. Are you sure you should have shared that without having me sign a contract?”
“Is it so surprising once you connect it to everything else you know?”
“No, but I am more interested in the how. Even as strong as you are now, you couldn’t do such a thing through force.”
“Sign a contract with Kate and get Kenneth on board and I will let you and you alone know that answer and yes, you will be under contract to keep it that way.”
Once more Xeal could see Genivive thinking over the pros and the cons before she responded.
“Kenneth needs to be included and it should be something that any new guild leader of Fire Oath should be informed of.”
“I can agree to Kenneth, but that is it, as I don’t know if the one who replaces him one day will be an ally or a foe and if they know that I subjugated Cielo city, but not the how, it will be better for me.”
“You want me to spread that you rule the dragonoids. You just don’t have the right channels developed to do so such that it doesn’t leak to the average players eventually. Perhaps I should do that instead of agreeing to any deal.”
“If you want to deal with the fallout from that, go right ahead and see just how that changes things in all of ED.”
“Fine, you win this round. Now, how long do I have?”
“The rest of today and tomorrow. After that I could attack your member at any time.”
Genivive let out a sigh at this as she shook her head and responded.
“I can’t get Kenneth back in the guild leader’s seat by then-”
“I said clear the way, not make it happen right now. So long as Kenneth doesn’t say you’re dragging your feet, I will consider the deal still valid.”
“Alright, let’s get this deal written up so I can present it to the needed individuals before I can sign it.”
With that Xeal messaged Kate to join them and the next three hours were spent diving into the details of the deal in front of them. Kate had frowned when Xeal had agreed with Genivive on making the deal as straightforward as possible and avoiding anything too advantageous for FAE in the terms for breaking the contract. While Xeal knew that they could have gotten a few through, he figured just removing Fire Oath’s access to the quest world was enough of a negative on its own. Also, while he didn’t mention it, simply having them fill most of the manpower that would come with the increase in his shards of divinity would be a great boon. By the time it was over, Xeal was happy with it and Genivive believed it would make it through Fire Oath as is. Particularly when she sold it as a limited-time deal that would only get worse once Xeal defeated their member, as FAE would no longer need the part that continued to give them access at that point.
After Genivive left, Xeal gave Kate a quick hug and kiss before returning to his other tasks, as he made sure everything was in order for the upcoming offensive. Like that the rest of day 77 and most of day 78 passed, before Genivive returned with Kenneth with the signed deal in hand. After checking that everything was in order, Xeal smiled as he had Kate let Levina know that they were on their way as Xeal brought both of them to Anelqua. Both of them looked interested as Xeal led them to the same gate that would take them to Cielo city. However, as they arrived in the cave which contained Levina’s prison they grew confused. That was until they noticed the electrical phoenix, who had taken her truest form, as her huddled form looked down on them. As Xeal looked at the massive yellow phoenix before him, he gave her a slightly apologetic look as she started to speak in the same distorted voice she used when she was pure electricity.
“Are you sure that showing them the state that I exist in makes sense, Xeal?”
“So, this is a phoenix. Though why is it huddled up like that?” asked Genivive. “It looks rather uncomfortable.”
“First, her name is Levina and she is not an it,” corrected Xeal. “As far as letting them see you, they are sworn to secrecy, so even if they wanted to share this, well, it will be rather difficult for them to do so. Now as to why she is like this, well, Levina, if you would let out some of your power, please.”
As Levina discharged a large amount of electricity, the barrier that acted as her prison became visible and it was clear that she was mere inches from it in most directions. Xeal just smiled at the realization that crossed Genivive’s and Kenneth’s faces as he continued talking.
“I tricked the four dragonoid rulers into the prison before you and with Levina’s aid I was able to subjugate them and through them do the same to the rest of the dragonoids.”
“So, is she the source of your electrical powers?” asked Kenneth.
“Sorry, but the deal was only telling you how I subjugated the dragonoids, not the source of any of my abilities or how I got them.”
“Please, what else makes any sense?” retorted Kenneth. “Though why is she trapped?”
“Sorry, but you can figure that out without my aid as well, but needless to say, no, I didn’t do that to her and yes, all of the other phoenixes are trapped in the same way.”
“How-”
“Genivive, I am not answering anything else. I already did more than I had to by bringing you both here as I could have just told you the story. Don’t ask for more than that.”
“No, I need to know how we haven’t been able to find any of them if they are this obvious!”
“Genivive, let’s leave,” interjected Kenneth. “Xeal has held up his end of the bargain and I fear that pushing things here will only play into his hand more.”
Xeal held back his laugh as he watched Genivive start to overthink things at Kenneth’s cautious statement. He had shown them Levina as she currently was, simply to make them believe that all of the phoenixes were stuck in their true forms. He expected that Kenneth was already planning to use the loophole in the contract to spread that they were looking for giant trapped birds when looking for the phoenixes. After all, he just couldn’t share the fact that Xeal had used them to subjugate the dragonoids. Luckily, he had slipped in a line about disabling their map features and tracking until after they parted from his company, without them complaining. Though if they were tracking things as well as Xeal expected, they already knew about the location from the period that Kate had employed another guild to act as guards. Even if that guild had never been allowed to enter Levina’s chamber or know all the details, as they simply accepted the payment of a phoenix feather every year. Though that deal had fallen through when FAE and Fire Oath’s relationship soured, as they were worried about being caught in the crossfire.
So it was that Xeal escorted Genivive and Kenneth back through the portal, where Queen Aila Lorafir would be waiting for them and he turned back to Levina as she returned to her human form. Once more Xeal was looking at her nude form as she smiled before picking up the clothes that he tossed her, as her last pair had been destroyed for the demonstration. Xeal just sighed as he left with the feelings he had for her as complicated as ever, and he rejoined Genivive and Kenneth who were looking slightly awkward under Queen Aila Lorafir’s gaze.
“Aila, there is no need for you to scare them like that.”
“I disagree. While you may be working to mend the fence with them and their guild, the fact still stands that they turned their back on you and then actively worked against you. At the very least they need to know, that outside your presence or when doing something that is required for you to uphold your side of a deal, they are not welcome here.”
“Here as in your palace, or your lands?” asked Xeal while already knowing the answer.
“Both, though I dare say if they have the ability and nerve to reach my palace without your aid, they might share the same fate as Xuk and Durz.”
“And just what is that?” asked Kenneth.
“Those two will never leave their cells in Cielo city,” replied Xeal. “Long story, but suffice to say that you would have to restart if you ever wanted to do anything but sleep in ED ever again.”
“Good to know. Can’t say that I could complain about it now that we have been warned. If there is nothing else, Genivive and I will be on our way.”
“Just one thing,” stated Queen Aila Lorafir. “If you betray Xeal again, you won’t need to worry about his reaction.”
At that moment both Kenneth and Genivive felt daggers pressed to their throats, as Zylah appeared behind them for a split second before vanishing again. Though Xeal was able to track her movements the whole time using his advanced senses, which he could activate at a thought. As the pair looked at each other, Xeal just sighed as neither of those two had cleared their actions with him. Although he could see Kate setting the scenario up, as she still held a fair bit of resentment towards Fire Oath for what she saw as their stupidity in breaking the prior deal. Still, he held his tongue as he gave Queen Aila Lorafir a hug and kiss, before escorting Kenneth and Genivive back to Nium.
With the deal in place and Kate handling the rest of the work involved with coordinating things, Xeal arrived in the quest world. Unlike every time before, there was no buildup of forces or escort from Lucida so he could use a demonic horse to invade the bordering dominion. No, with his lightning form, Xeal knew that he was unstoppable as he casually walked towards the other dominion that was only 20 miles away. While he could have covered that distance much quicker, he was in a reflective mood as he thought about what lay before him to unite the whole continent that Nium was on. While he was confident in his success, there were many challenges that were weighing on him.
The largest of these was the death toll that would be required to achieve victory and how to minimize it. Xeal’s first thought was to get the players on Habia and Paidhia to rebel and join Nium’s side, but that would just cause the same issues with tempting corrupt nobles to do the same. Simply getting the players to stand aside would only have the opposite effect, as it would force more NPCs to march into battle instead. Rather, Xeal was finding himself grateful to Abysses End for joining the fight, as it created a real player-based army that would fight to defend both countries. While there would still be NPCs involved, it would be far fewer as it wouldn’t make as much sense to waste a force that would be more useful in defending a city. Still, that would be the greatest headache for Xeal, as conquering cities always created collateral damage even if no looting was allowed. Yet he didn’t have any good solutions for this yet and it wasn’t until Xeal received the warning that his dominion was touching the other dominion two hours later, that he shifted his attitude. The next second and Xeal had taken on his lightning form, as he began to flash step forward and in only a matter of seconds he was at the point where the battle notification came.
(Notice: player Xeal Bluefire has successfully invaded player Iarcale Rockgem’s dominion. Player Iarcale Rockgem has been notified and the match will start in the next ten minutes. All players other than the two combatants will return to the dominion that they are associated with in the meantime.)
(Notice: prepare to be transported to an arena to face off against Iarcale Rockgem. Transporting in 30 seconds.)
Xeal frowned as he tried to place the name of his opponent, but failed to do so before he found himself standing across from him. As it turned out, Iarcale was one of the players that had secured a slot for the dragonoid race and from what Xeal could tell, he had embraced it more than most. While most players took on an appearance of being human with wings and a few other traits, as to do more would cost class skill points, Iarcale had gone full-on rock dragonoid. His tail was no less pronounced than Lughrai’s or her father Georai and had a much bigger ball at the end that was about the same size as Xeal’s head. His skin looked like it was made of gravel and both of his hands were clawed. Had he had horns, he would be unmistakable compared to a full dragonoid rather than the half race players had access to. As the minute-long timer hit 55 seconds, Iarcale was the first to speak and he did so in a deep tone that Xeal felt was unnatural and possibly forced.
“It seems that the time has come for me to measure myself against the best. I just hope you can overcome my defense and live up to your name.”
“I am sorry for what I am about to do to you, but know that you won’t be the first opponent to face me who flees rather than fights me in this quest.”
“Excuse me? You think that I will run?”
“No, I am just saying that you are right to hope that I can overcome your defenses, as otherwise this is going to take longer and be far more painful for you.”
“You shouldn’t underestimate the pain that I will be giving you.”
“Is your strength above 600 when adjusted with your gear?”
“Not quite-”
“There goes the best hope you had as I know that your dexterity is under 600, if it is even above 400 with your build as you are a tank. Though I suppose you could hope to last long enough for my stamina to run out, but I doubt that you will.”
“Don’t tell me that you ignored all other stats and just put over half of your points into dexterity and strength! How could such a build do what you are known for doing?”
“I wouldn’t worry about that. Instead, you should just smile at getting to face me and try to see how far you can push yourself.”
“Stop looking down on me! I am not a player that you can take lightly! I am one of the top 100 ranked players based on skill in all of Fire Oath!”
“Don’t mistake me telling you to test your limits as me looking at you as if you are weak. No, I am recognizing that you have the ability to do so as our fight will last far more than 30 seconds. As my electrical abilities will likely have little effect on you and I doubt that my blades will hold up long enough to finish you off, I will be taking a more physical approach to defeating you.”
“I see. I suppose I should just be grateful that you see me as a slight challenge from what I have heard about you.”
“Oh, and what is that?”
“You take pleasure in completely demoralizing your opponents as you seek to ruin them mentally.”
“Ah, I see, Frozen Sky has been sharing his experience. I would like to say that he is wrong, but for a few individuals I do look forward to giving them a similar treatment. Now you haven’t imprisoned or done anything that could be considered inhumane to the NPCs of the cities in your dominion have you?”
“No, though the same can’t be said for the other three who controlled the dominions I do now.”
At that the timer reached zero and Xeal charged forward while focusing his aura on Iarcale, using his aura control skill. The moment of hesitation this caused in Iarcale’s movements was enough for Xeal to draw both of his swords and unleash his regular dragon’s breath at Iarcale. Xeal followed this up immediately with a double upward slash charged with water through elemental blades. When Iarcale still managed to stand his ground Xeal was impressed, as Xeal dodged the grapple attempt and swing of a tail that came at him, then let loose a blast of water by using his elemental filtered dragon's breath.
Xeal just smiled at the look of confusion on Iarcale’s face, as Xeal knew that he rarely used anything but electrical magic attacks in public at this point. However, Xeal was well adapted to every form of his elemental filtered dragon's breath skill, as he had tested it out thoroughly while grinding. That wasn’t to say that he was perfect with all of them, or that all elements were as powerful as others, but they all had their advantages. For instance, while a blast of water that was about four times as powerful as what would come out of a fire hose wasn’t anything to brag about in ED terms, it would temporarily soften a rock monster’s defense. The same logic could be applied to a rock dragonoid and Xeal would be more than happy to trade off some initial damage for more over the course of the fight. This time, however, Xeal was charging his blades with ice magic with each attack, as he danced around Iarcale.
As Xeal kept the pattern of dodging and attacking with a blast of water regularly and freezing blades, he just smiled as his title of champion increased the number of times that Iarcale got hit with a debuff. As it was a simple cold debuff, all it did was lower his dexterity slightly, but like most things in ED these could quickly add up and eventually they could become the frozen debuff. At that point the fight would be over as Iarcale would at the very least lose his ability to use one limb and that would likely be more than he could overcome. Still, the half rock dragonoid wasn’t surrendering and Xeal could see his health was only dropping slowly and it was clear that no matter what, it wasn’t going to be a short battle. Also, beyond the flurry of attacks that were a mix of attacks with Iarcale’s warhammer and his tail, Xeal was having to avoid his breath attack as well. Were he to get caught by any of these attacks, Xeal could tell that it might lead to him losing part of his advantage. Though, he still wasn’t worried about actually losing the fight, as it was clear that he held an absolute advantage.
About an hour after the start of the fight, Xeal frowned as he stowed his swords due to them both being below 50% durability. Still, Iarcale was in a terrible condition as he was down to around 15% health and one of his arms was frozen solid. The only reason that more of him wasn’t in the same situation was that he had used his frozen arm like a shield. Meanwhile, Xeal was still above 90% health and while his MP and stamina were both below 25%, he still had plenty of leeway to win the fight without much more effort. This was the thought on both of their minds, as Xeal pulled out the daggers he always had just in case and Iarcale spoke.
“I suppose I should just take the fact that I forced you to switch weapons as a victory.”
“I mean, I would be happy to have you tank for my own party if you were a member of FAE, but really, I knew that I would have to go this far from the start. Honestly, I need to start replacing all of my gear with gear that is better suited for tier-7, but I am so used to the feel of them at this point that I hesitate to do so for anything except experience gear.”
“Is that how you are leveling so quickly, by using normal gear while the rest of us waste the time needed to improve our gear?”
“That would be part of it, but I think I should look into remedying that. Now, do you want to continue or have you had enough?”
“Ha, what is your stamina at?”
“It is higher than your health, but sorry, not going to let you know if you have any hope beyond that.”
“Can’t be much higher than mine. In fact, I think you’re bluffing as I am aware that your main weakness is your lack of stamina. Though you make up for it with a quick recovery speed through your skills and overwhelming attacks that usually don’t take long to win a fight. Were this a team battle, I would have lost a long time ago as you would have left me for last as your party kept me busy and you killed the rest.”
“At which point we would kill you together. Yes, that sounds about right. Still, that is only me, as most others would have difficulties getting around you and being equipped to fight the rest of your party. Also, if it makes you feel better, if I had fought you like this before I turned my focus on Muthia, I would be almost out of stamina right now. Though, I would have simply altered my approach in that case to preserve my stamina more. Now, let’s end this.”
As Xeal readied to attack once more, Iarcale unleashed his dragon’s breath and Xeal dodged as Iarcale slammed his warhammer into the ground and several earth spikes rose. One of these managed to catch Xeal in the hip and he frowned as a petrification debuff took hold, as it started to drain his stamina as his body fought it. Xeal just shook his head as while it was a good plan, Iarcale had waited too late to strike and Xeal knew that he would overcome it after two to five percent of his stamina was lost. Petrification was one of those statuses that only took hold once a player was out of stamina and Xeal wasn’t going to allow that to happen. Nope, the next 15 minutes were filled with Xeal holding nothing back as Iarcale did the same. While Xeal’s stamina did drop to just under seven percent, after being hit with petrification two more times, he still had plenty of leeway to claim victory in the end. Once more Xeal saw the list of notifications come in to signify his victory, as he listened to them to see if there was anything outside his expectations.
(Notice: you have been implanted with eight shards of divinity. Collect the other 56 to increase your control of this world.
Current control: 1/8
Current time allowed in this world: 75,600 seconds every 7 days in this world.
Time here passes the same as in the main Eternal Dominion world.
Time can be stockpiled and will increase continuously.
Current accumulation: 1 second every 8 seconds.)
(Notice: you can bring up to 800 players with you to this world.
Dominion: You can claim a portion of the quest world as your own and in doing so, keep it safe from demons. Current maximum: 6% of world’s land.)
(Notice: You have defeated another champion and claimed their dominion as your own.
Adding 75,600 seconds to your current balance of time allowed in the quest world.
All players associated with them will be removed from the quest world.
You will be unable to conquer another dominion until you encounter one that is controlled by a champion with eight shards of divinity.
To signify this, your dominion will gain a silver border that must be crossed to enter it, while all enemies will have a red border unless they have the appropriate number of shards of divinity.)
(Notice: you have two irregularly attached dominions. Would you like to attach them in the optimal configuration? Warning: if not done in the next five minutes, you will not be able to in the future.)
(Notice: you may transfer to the defeated champion’s starting location with up to 20 others once in the next 24 hours. Warning: NPCs in captured dominion may perceive you as hostile. Exercise caution when approaching them.)
(Notice: you may designate one NPC native to the quest world as your representative and grant them the ability to move as you do through your dominion)
(Notice: your representative and up to seven other NPCs may travel to a designated location in the main ED world once every day and exchange goods between worlds as they do so. Total time in main ED world of each NPC may not exceed an hour in any six-day period. This transfer is free of any charge.)
(Warning: once selected, your representative cannot be changed.)
(Notice: transferring you to your designated entry point for the quest world.)
As Xeal felt himself transfer to Austru’s room, he had a bright smile on his face at the addition of a representative, as it was clear that it would be her and she would finally get to meet his other wives. At the same time, he wondered if the main system’s AI had done this to gain his favor, or if it had always planned to add this feature. Though as he saw Austru before him, Xeal let that thought fade away as he embraced her and pulled her into a kiss, before looking her in her eyes and pulling out a ring. The ring lacked any gem and was crafted out of mithril and was made to stand up to abuse in a way that a normal engagement ring would fail. Where there would have normally been a gem was a pair of elaborately done wings that shined beautifully, as Xeal began to speak.
“Austru, will you marry me?”
“Yes! I just wish that I could meet my other sisters first.”
“Well, about that…”
Xeal shared the newest benefit that he had access to as he slipped the ring onto Austru’s finger as she looked at him in surprise, before a smile reappeared on her face that was even brighter than when he pulled out the ring. An hour and more than a few messages later and Xeal was ready to bring Austru to his mansion in the capital. While they had thought about his palace in Hardt Burgh, they decided against it as once the location was set, it couldn’t be changed. In the end, the fact that it would be better for her to be able to access FAE’s guild headquarters when transporting goods won out, as she would only be able to move in a one-mile radius once there. Cielo city had also been thought of, but Xeal wasn’t sure it could be considered one location and the last thing any of them wanted was for Austru to fall out of the sky. From reading the details under the description tab, it seemed that all NPCs from the quest world would be reduced to level zero and have all of their abilities sealed once they left the one-mile radius as well. While Xeal wondered if they could level up like this, he figured that it would be better to test such things out on a later trip.
So it was that for the first time Xeal would be able to introduce Austru to all of his other ladies, to include Daisy, Violet, Dafasli and Bula. There had been a bit of a debate on including the dragonoid women, but that had been shut down, as then Princesses Bianca and Lorena would need to be included as well by more than one wife’s logic. As Austru took in Xeal’s home and the world around her for the first time, Xeal blinked once as he noticed that her level read 0(100). A second after the wonder wore off, Austru seemed to remember why she was there as she looked at him as she spoke.
“Xeal, we should really get going as I don’t have much time!”
“Are you ready for this? You remember that I am leaving you at the door, right?”
“Yes, I am sure that everything will be fine, though I wish you could show me more of this world.”
“All in good time, as I suspect that with a bit of work you can gain levels in this world. Though the implications of that needs to be left alone for now.”
Xeal could see Austru want to respond to him, but she put it aside as Xeal walked her to the door where they were met by Eira, who smiled as she sent Xeal away. In a way Xeal felt bad for abandoning her to the others, but he knew it was for the best as he would only get in the way of them making any real progress in getting to really know each other. Still, even after the meeting was over, Xeal only knew that it had gone well and all of his wives were getting involved with the wedding plans.
Following the meeting between Austru and the others, Xeal found himself transporting the 401 members of Fire Oath to the quest world. This included Iarcale who joined Kate, Austru and the others, as Xeal visited the other cities that he had just added to his dominion. Thankfully, there weren’t any major issues as he added a transference point to each of the four cities as he made travel between all four easier. With that handled, Xeal left Vento to handle the detailed investigations into the overall situation as Xeal returned to the main ED world. Iarcale returned with Xeal as his role was over and the other 400 were now essentially FAE’s problem, as Xeal returned his focus to prepping for the major offensive.
One day after another passed, as the various forces needed for the upcoming operations made their way to their locations, as day 93 arrived with Xeal having just reached level 217. It was also on this day that everything was ready, as Casmir and Caleb led the player forces on the Nium and Paidhia border, that had almost become like trench warfare in recent months, in breaking through the stalemate. As they did so, hundreds of thousands of players rushed in as a force of over a million tier-6 players fought to hold the line. Meanwhile, Nium’s side was only around a half million strong with NPCs and players included, but they had five times the number of tier-7s as Paidhia did. Additionally, Xeal was constantly using his lightning form and opening holes in Paidhia’s defenses as the battle’s intensity grew.
As this battle reached a fever pitch, the FAE vice guild leaders Leaena Asellio and Felicius Simplex led a second player force to invade though the southern route that Paidhia had been trying to use to break through the elven lines. However, now the tier-7 force there found themselves completely overwhelmed and most of the players who could have come to their aid were already committed up north. That wasn’t to say that none arrived, only it was just enough to create a force of around 100,000 total to face off against 500,000, with the numbers of tier-7s being about equal. Like this, the war to unite the continent truly started in Xeal’s mind, as everything else might as well have been posturing.
Between Xeal’s constant uses of his lightning form he would check in with Kate, as she monitored the latest reports from each front. It was during this that Xeal learned that another assault on the forts at the Habia border had begun, as players showed up en masse there and Xeal headed there with a group of lightning spellcasters. Upon arriving, Xeal found things much like the first time that he had repelled an invasion, as he looked out at a sea of players assaulting the barriers as the defenders attacked back from atop the walls. Though, there was one major difference. The entire force was in a loose formation such that any of them could reach out their arms and not be touched, while those around them did the same. The fact that those attacking could do this amidst the chaos of battle, spoke to the fact that they had clearly all been training for months at the very least. Xeal would have never thought average and below average players would be able to have the dedication needed to maintain such a formation for any meaningful time, but apparently, they had.
Still, Xeal just sighed as it also had the flaw of cutting the total number of those able to attack the barriers in half. At the same time, Xeal could smell a trap as he stood atop the wall and felt the first wave of electrical spells enter him. Right then, many of the players below pulled out what looked like slabs of stone about the size of tower shields. Suddenly, as Xeal went to unleash his attack, he was looking at several V-shaped lines of shields such that there were gaps wide enough for two players to fit through, but by three layers deep all of these were blocked. Frowning, Xeal released the built-up electricity such that it targeted the area between the front right side stone shields and the layer between them, as it followed the natural path that was there. This led to a massive casualty count still, as the first row of shields fell and the lines behind that suddenly had players hammering poles to hold the shields in place into the ground.
Further back, Xeal could see a larger stone formation taking shape as what looked like mobile pillboxes were formed and Xeal instantly thought of his experience in the war wagon. Only Xeal also realized that if he were to try and slip inside of that box, he would likely find himself trapped as force shields were used to cover the whole structure. Even if he dismantled the stone pillbox himself, he would still be trapped by the force shields and have to risk them using them to press him into a paste once they caught him. At seeing this, Xeal actually smiled as he focused on sending out one blast of electricity after another as he watched his stamina drop steadily.
When Xeal’s stamina dropped below five percent, he gave the signal for those supporting him to take a break, as he shifted to his lightning form and flash stepped high into the sky. While the players below could only see his obscure form due to the light that was coming off of him and he was well out of their reach, they were perfectly clear to him. Though Xeal did note the presence of a few tier-7 NPCs who were flying in the sky and likely waiting for the right moment to strike as well. However, Xeal was at the very edge of what could be considered the main ED world’s atmosphere and far higher than any flight spell would function. As such Xeal took his time until he found his target, Atius, who just like the last few times was commanding this battle. Xeal was also sure that most of the counter measures that were being deployed were his work and it was time to remove him. Only that was easier said than done as Atius was standing in the middle of tier-7 NPCs and players, who were likely waiting for the walls to fall before making their move. So as much as Xeal would have liked to make his move right then, it wasn’t quite time and he targeted one of the tier-7 spellcasters who was flying instead. As Xeal released all but the last bit of his MP as electricity, he smiled at seeing the tier-7 player fall from the sky for all to see, as he returned to being atop the wall after using flash step twice. Following that, he entered a meditative state as he recovered his stats as the battle raged on.
When Xeal next opened his eyes, it was to the sight of destroyed stone shields as his grin widened at seeing the results of Takeshi’s commands. Additionally, the non-FAE players who had signed up to aid in all border defense efforts had arrived and were getting ready to counterattack. Xeal continued to smile as it was almost time to show Abysses End what it was like to have a human wave countered by a stronger human wave. The players on Nium’s side were around the same number that Habia’s side had attacked with, only with their average level around 15 levels higher and a much higher level of morale. Add in the motivation of protecting the fort town that they all were enjoying the benefits of and Xeal expected the battle to be over the moment they attacked.
It was with this thought that Xeal set about resuming his role of combining hundreds of electrical spells into a single blast and killing large groups of players with each attack. While the remaining stone shields and spread-out nature of his targets limited his effectiveness, he was still easily killing over 100 tier-5 and below players with each attack. It was also why he was only combining a few hundred spells each time, rather than the full 1,000 he normally did. Through these efforts, Xeal increased his effectiveness like this due to being able to send out more attacks, while still taking advantage of the increase in damage from his annihilator title.
When Xeal reached the point of once more being under five percent stamina and gave the signal for his support to stop feeding him electricity, Takeshi ordered the full assault. With that millions of players rushed over the wall using ropes to descend in a controlled manner, as the first line staged themselves right behind the one-way force shields. Once this area was full, Takeshi ordered them to advance and the true battle began, as Xeal watched the progress while letting his stats recover slowly as he looked for an opening to make his move.
Meanwhile, thousands of players were dying on both sides of the conflict, as they got caught in the middle of the ranged attacks from both sides. Xeal took no pleasure in the sight before him and he knew that even a player like himself would be little more than meat for the grinder in the mess that was developing where the two forces met. Though the spread-out nature of Habia’s forces and the stone shields created an interesting effect, as the forces became a giant mess of players. As Xeal looked at this, he couldn’t help but think of his first battle with Atius in this life and how he had used the confusion that came from two forces mixing to get his force to fight itself. Xeal could see the same thing happening here, only with Nium on the losing end of the equation as the current force wasn’t disciplined enough to avoid it.
However, Xeal wasn’t too worried, as they all had orders to ignore anything behind them or facing away from them. They were only meant to push forward and there was nothing really to gain from attacking those who were running away. While Xeal was sure that this wouldn’t work perfectly, he figured that it would work out fine overall, as they were only meant to be a blunt object in the current plan. It was the 500,000 tier-6 players that would follow after them that would handle the cleanup work, as all of them had a fair bit more training and discipline. They also each wore an emblem on their left shoulder to identify them as allies and Takeshi had only given out the order for which emblem to use after the tier-5 players attacked. Like this, it would limit Habia’s ability to have their members add the same emblem to their shoulders to create more confusion.
It was just as the 500,000 tier-6 players began to descend the wall that Xeal caught sight of a new figure next to Atius and everything he had planned needed to change. While Xeal wasn’t sure who they were or what class they were, it was clear that they were a tier-8 NPC and Xeal knew that FAE wasn’t ready to deal with them. Xeal sent a quick message to Takeshi letting him know of the issue, as he shifted to his lightning form and flash stepped high into the sky, before unleashing 99% of his MP as electricity right at the NPC. After retreating back to the top of the wall while readying a small bottle of the waters of youth, Xeal surveyed the aftermath of his attack. At the same time, he received a message from Saima Mahal, who was currently acting as Takeshi’s second, letting him know that the NPC had dodged the attack before vanishing from sight. This was followed by a video of the exact sequence of events as Xeal could tell that the NPC had used their abilities, not magic or a skill to dodge the attack. Sadly, that didn’t do much to narrow down the possibilities of class, though at least Atius had still been hit by the attack and was currently being healed.
As Xeal kept his eyes open for the tier-8 NPC to reemerge, the battle progressed and the tier-7 players on both sides joined the fight. On Paidhia’s side this was around 5,000 while Nium sent over 15,000 forward, as Xeal just hoped that this would be enough mixed with his presence to keep the tier-8 on the sidelines. Though Xeal had a feeling that the NPC might have been there for Xeal or other FAE leadership and not the battle from how things were currently playing out. Xeal wouldn’t put it past Abysses End to get an NPC assassin involved in their attempts to kill the top FAE players and if the force shield dropped it was a real possibility for them to succeed. Thankfully that hadn’t happened, though when the dead players below started to rise, Xeal knew who he was dealing with as he thought about what happened to King Dorrin Dragonaxe. It was likely the same necromancer and Xeal sent out another message as the battlefield entered a whole new level of chaos.
Looking at the sudden turn of events, it was clear that Atius had held nothing back in his plans for this assault. Xeal knew that with 90% of the offensive-focused members of FAE that could normally be called upon in a short time being part of the invasion of Paidhia, he was working with less than ideal conditions. Then there was the fact that killing the necromancer would be a massive mistake as they likely wouldn’t die and instead, they would curse the one who forced them to enter a state of recovery. Especially as it was very likely that they had become a lich at some point and finding their phylactery was a must to destroy them. Unfortunately, when dealing with a level 300 NPC lich and not a monster in a dungeon, finding their phylactery was nearly impossible. However, Xeal just smiled as Taya arrived along with Zylah, the rest of Xeal’s party and several more of FAE’s top players. Jinx in particular would have a major role to play, as they all looked out at the battlefield while making their final preparations.
“This is a bad idea,” stated Jinx. “The probabilities are constantly shifting and I am not able to guarantee success.”
“I know that,” replied Xeal. “I only need you to make sure our group survives. If our target escapes, well, such is life.”
“No, I mean that I can’t even promise that. I can say that I will be able to improve things, but with so much going on, I can’t use my ability constantly and will need to hold back until we are facing this foe.”
“So do that,” interjected Daisy. “Let Violet and I handle getting you all there with our illusions.”
“Just remember that they will only affect intelligent undead and the lich will likely still be able to sense you,” added Violet.
“Leave the undead to me,” commented Taya and she summoned her butterfly, which had evolved into a small swarm of smaller ones after she reached tier-7. “Honestly, I would like to see about conducting the same experiments we did on Amelie and the other vampires on a lich.”
“Let’s not count our eggs before they hatch,” stated Xeal. “Now take ten minutes, as I recover my MP and stamina, to gain as much insight as you can on what we are up against.”
With that Xeal sat down and entered meditation, as he trusted Zylah to keep him safe as he ignored the rest of the world and visualized what needed to happen. While he lamented that this would likely mean that Atius would escape once more and that he would likely have a harder time capturing him in the future, Xeal knew it had to be done. If he let the necromancer escape, she would likely just cause issues for him until the very end.
When Xeal next opened his eyes, he was looking at a vastly changed battlefield, in which Nium’s forces were slowly losing ground as they were fighting with their back to the force shield. While the undead that had risen were weak and easy to handle, they also would rise from the dead over and over unless their bodies were turned to ash and every player who died just added to their numbers. Add in the mass of players sending ranged attacks in and what should have been Nium’s victory without getting any NPCs involved on their side was turning into defeat. Still, with a nod, the force that Xeal had assembled was ready to move and they descended the wall right where the undead were thickest.
The moment they stepped through the force wall, the difference in the battle could be seen as the undead suddenly collapsed as Taya’s butterflies fluttered through their ranks. This was met with cheers from the players, who had been focused on keeping the undead at bay until someone who could destroy them completely came over. As these players became freed up, the battle once more tilted in Nium’s favor, as Xeal spotted the necromancer looking frustrated as she weighed her options. Were she to have fled right then she would likely have escaped, but she hesitated and Xeal shifted to his lightning form and flash stepped right next to her. As she turned to face him, he unleashed 50% of his MP as an electrical attack before she could react and returned to his physical form. Xeal reequipped his gear before she recovered and focusing his aura on her, he got ready to hold her there as the others made their way to them.
Thankfully his prior attack had caused her to separate and hide herself amongst the crowd, as she focused on raising the dead. While that would have hidden her to most, for Xeal she had been a beacon due to how his enhanced senses picked up on the rot of her undead body, that looked perfectly healthy. Had he not known she was an undead from his sense, he would think she was a perfectly healthy young woman. Though now he just saw her as an old hag, whose vanity caused her to refuse to surrender her beauty at the cost of her very soul.
As Xeal attacked, the necromancer blocked with her scythe just in time, as the weaker players ran to avoid getting caught up in the exchange, as she stumbled backward and tried to regain her footing. As she did so, Xeal could see the curse she was weaving as he unleashed a dragon’s breath to interrupt her and charged forward to reengage her. The next thing Xeal knew the world around him dissolved and was replaced by pure darkness as he heard laughter in his ear and what he assumed was the necromancer’s voice.
“My, my, you don’t disappoint. I must say that I have looked forward to meeting you, yet you seem to just want to attack me. Surely you and I can find a more productive way to work together. After all, there is something that I want and if you can give it to me, I will happily switch sides.”
“So, the Uladzimir family do hold your phylactery and are using it to control you.”
“My, my, aren’t you the sharp one. So, are you willing to trade my phylactery for my cooperation and perhaps a bit more?”
Xeal wanted to barf at how it felt like she was trying and failing to flirt with him. If he had to bet, she was trying to use a charisma effect on him, only for her to fail to succeed due to his title Master of Oneself. He suspected that she was planning on using him to gain her true freedom and a rampage would likely follow as she worked to increase her power through devouring the lives of others. However, Xeal knew that playing along could buy a few precious seconds as he replied.
“You make a tempting offer.”
“Yes, well, if you accept, we will need to keep our deal secret as we wouldn’t want others to misunderstand and try to stop you. Now, be a dear and say that you will help me and I will be happy to help you once you succeed.”
“I don’t know. For some reason I feel like I can’t trust you.”
“Ignore that voice, it is just causing you to worry about nothing. I mean, don’t you want to get to know me better?”
“Honestly, I think I would rather eat maggots than get to know you in the way you’re insinuating. Now, I must thank you for telling me where to look for your phylactery. Oh and I can still see you!”
As Xeal said this, he stabbed his sword into her stomach as it was unguarded. Sadly, video game logic being what it was, he didn’t skewer her. Rather the darkness vanished as the world returned to normal for Xeal, as she fell on her rear more out of surprise than anything. The look she was giving him was a mix of fury and shock, as she rolled and returned to her feet as she avoided Xeal’s next attack as she spoke.
“How!?”
“Sorry, but I am not into corpses.”
“You!-”
Xeal didn’t let her continue to talk, as he worked to push her closer to Taya and the rest of his party that were making their way over as quick as they could. With each exchange, Xeal could see the necromancer grow more desperate as she tried to disengage, only the few times she did Xeal used his lightning form to catch her. It was clear that she had a clear advantage in dexterity and she likely had far more points in every stat except for strength, as Xeal was constantly overpowering her any time he attacked her. Had she been surrounded by undead she could have likely overwhelmed him using them, but she was alone and no players were coming to her aid.
Suddenly, in the middle of the intense exchange the pair was having, the necromancer froze up, before she started to scream as if she was in pure agony. At the same time, Xeal saw a flush return to her face as if she had blood pumping in her veins as she fell to the ground and started to convulse, and Xeal noticed Taya standing five feet away. She was panting hard and it was clear that she was under a large amount of strain as she focused on her task and Xeal quickly shifted to guarding her from the several players who were closing in on them to attack. For some reason she had charged ahead on her own, as the rest of the group was still being covered by Daisy and Violet’s illusion, that Xeal could only see through thanks to his senses. It was clear that Taya had deviated from the plan and Xeal wanted to know why. However, that could wait until after the current situation was handled.
While that came only five minutes later, Xeal felt like it had been much longer as tier-6 and then tier-7 players had rushed their location. Thankfully, the rest of Xeal’s party had arrived to hold the line a minute into the struggle and the rest of the defense force had followed shortly after. Finally, Zylah had captured the necromancer with ability-restricting cuffs and escaped with her, relieving Xeal’s group of the extra strain. Though to everyone else it seemed like Taya had faltered at whatever she had been doing and the necromancer managed to escape as Xeal had been distracted, thanks to Daisy and Violet’s illusions. However, either way the rest of the force on Habia’s side had dissolved at seeing their trump card being defeated. This created a rather eerie scene as bodies, weapons and gear littered the battlefield, as the surviving players focused on looting the dead. This would be logged and after the drops of those on Nium’s side were returned, the remainder would be sold by FAE, with the profits being divided evenly between all those who heeded the call. While this was going on, Xeal looked over at Taya who still looked like she was going to be sick as he spoke.
“Did you just try to return her to life?”
“Yeah, and it was working rather well, but her body was fighting it like nothing I have ever felt before.”
“Taya, she has likely been dead for over a hundred years. Her soul isn’t even in her body.”
“Exactly, a body with no soul can’t bear to be alive. It causes a ton of pain to it and in this case that body had a consciousness to realize it was in pain. It was one of the things we learned from experimenting on the vampires all that time and I knew it would work on her and well, I didn’t want her to escape.”
“Right, now we need to get a soul in her before her phylactery is destroyed, as it is being held by Habia’s king.”
“Or I could steal it,” interjected Zylah, as she returned after handing the necromancer over to a team that Kate had sent to transport her to Cielo City.
“We would need to know what it is first,” replied Lucy. “Not to mention that would put a heavy burden on you and it isn’t assured that you will survive.”
“I have been there before and I can steal it easily enough, even if I have to wait for them to head to their treasury to get it.”
“Zylah, how long would you need to infiltrate the palace?” asked Xeal.
“If that is where it even is,” retorted Lucy. “Xeal, let’s just pump the bitch for information and let her be destroyed.”
“We need her phylactery for that,” countered Xeal. “Unless you think we have another tool that would work as I doubt that Amelie’s bite would be effective, or that it is even a good idea to try.”
“I will need at least a week to return and it could take several months, depending on the situation and how long it takes for me to locate and secure the phylactery.”
Xeal thought on Zylah’s words as he considered the situation before nodding and speaking.
“Alright, but get with Kate and she will give you information on a contact there who can pass info back and forth. She might also ask you to do a few other things while you are there. Feel free to pick and choose what you want to do.”
“I’m not doing anything but getting the phylactery and taking anything else I want, especially as they will likely have at least one tier-8 guard near them at all times.”
“Isn’t that your normal role for King Victor?” asked Lucy. “Should you really be gone so long?”
“No, that would be another’s role and no, I am not at liberty to say more than that as not even Xeal knows about them.”
“Let’s just make sure that we can find out just what we are looking for,” interjected Xeal, as he ended the discussion as they left.
An hour later after having submitted his report on the battle, Xeal was walking into the cell the necromancer had been shoved in. The look on her face was one that Xeal would expect to see on a condemned individual’s face, as they had nothing left to live for. Still, with Taya and Zylah by his side, Xeal sat such that he could look her in the eye as he spoke.
“Here is how this is going to work. You are going to tell us everything about your phylactery that you know. That means what it is, how big it is, where it is and how long you think you have before it will be destroyed with you going dark. After that, we are going to see if we can secure it, or if Taya here will need to take more drastic measures to free you from the fear of being destroyed with your phylactery. Now, are you going to cooperate, or do you want your last days to be filled with pain instead.”
“You think I have days. Ha, I expect that they will destroy me tonight. If you think your little show of me escaping was even slightly convincing, it has been ruined already as I would have checked in with my contact by now.”
“They have you on that short of a leash?”
“How short of a leash would you have me on?”
“I hope you like research and never seeing the light of day again, as that will be your life if you want to continue to exist.”
“You would waste my power on such things!?”
“The fact that I am even willing to let you exist is already more than I feel is right. Were you not worth something to me in the form of the information you have, I would simply lock you away and leave it at that.”
“I fail to see how that is worse than what you currently intend for me!”
“Oh, you mean if you don’t answer my questions? Taya, will you continue to try and return her to life?”
“Happily,” replied Taya, as she held out her hand and the necromancer started to cry out in pain, before starting to convulse as Taya continued. “Honestly, I think it would be fascinating to see if we can actually succeed if the others joined in.”
“That should be enough for now, though as I am thinking on it, why did you rush over by yourself earlier?”
“Jinx told me it was that or she would escape. Apparently there was a 95% chance of her reaching enough dead bodies to overpower you and escape if I stayed with the rest of the group.”
“What the hell are you doing to me?!” shouted the necromancer as she regained consciousness. “It feels like you are ripping me apart at my very core! Even creating my phylactery didn’t hurt this much!”
“Oh, Taya is doing quite the opposite. When you created your phylactery, you basically killed yourself. She is just trying to restore life to you.”
“Impossible!”
“No, we have already discovered a way to reverse vampirism. Your condition shouldn’t be too dissimilar,” replied Taya. “Though, you seem to experience far more pain and while I have some theories on why that is, I can’t be sure.”
Xeal just smiled as the necromancer looked at Taya in horror as she responded.
“Do you even know how someone becomes a lich?”
“Not exactly, but I look forward to learning it in detail and finding the best way to undo it and help the world become a better place.”
“So, there you have it,” interjected Xeal. “You can either be a willing participant in this research, or the first test subject for it.”
“Fine, I’ll talk…”
Xeal just smiled as they got all of the information that they needed about her phylactery and after bidding Zylah farewell, Xeal returned to focusing on the day’s events. This saw him make a few more appearances, as he helped clear a few bottlenecks in the paths of both the invasion forces that had entered Paidhia. With that both were able to push over 75 miles into Paidhia and Zylah was in Habia’s capital to recover the necromancer’s phylactery by day 103. It was then that Xeal received word that Bīng had given birth to a healthy daughter. This news made Lingxin nervous, as she asked Xeal to be allowed to visit and the pair made their way to the secluded cave where the Ice phoenix was imprisoned. Upon arriving, they found that Emperor Huáng Jin was present and was actually sitting next to Bīng as she held their child. To Xeal the scene was as natural as breathing as a new father should be with his child and the mother at a time like this, but it seemed that Lingxin couldn’t understand what she was seeing.
“Brother, what are you doing?”
“Ah, Lingxin. I am happy that I was here when you arrived. I am simply trying to do what our family has never done and actually care for my child.”
“Yes, it was an answer I came to after our last exchange,” added Bīng. “Looking at the world through Aalin and seeing that what made you different, both to him and from the rest of your line for the past few generations, made me realize it was needed. So, for that, thank you.”
“Alright, who are you and what have you done with Bīng?” interjected Xeal half-jokingly and half-seriously.
“By the fact that I am still trapped in here you should know that it is me. Though, I must admit that it is weird to care for something so helpless. None of my other children really needed me much a few weeks after they hatched and yet I will need to care for this one for years.”
“Welcome to having a human child, though it sounds like your ice heart might have thawed.”
“Only for my child and do not mistake my allowance of Jin to be here like this as anything more than ensuring that he cares for our daughter.”
“It seems that my worries were misplaced,” interjected Lingxin. “I had worried that you were planning to raise a child who would see the world as nothing but a place to be conquered.”
“No, though I will not be able to actually raise her too much as I can’t keep her isolated here, as to do so will ruin her. Although I would also prefer that she see more of the world than the palace above as well.”
“I always forget just how distorted the world that the rulers of this reality are often raised in can be,” commented Xeal. “It seems that I will need to do something about that. For some reason, I am seeing a boarding school for nobles to send their children to in Nium once the war ends there.”
“Xeal, would that only be the nobles of Nium, or would all countries be allowed to use it?” asked Lingxin, sounding concerned.
“All countries who are participants of a treaty that surrounds it. It would be such that even if it was a crown prince who killed a baron’s son, he would be imprisoned and stripped of all status at the very least.”
“You would either destroy the world with that, or cause wars to become rare when that generation comes to power,” responded Emperor Huáng Jin.
“No, like with everything, there will be those who hate each other and let perceived privilege get in the way of the path to peace,” commented Xeal with a sigh. “While there will be exceptions, I suspect that fights will be common, some of which will spill over into full-out war, but it will see a decrease in the severity of such wars, or at least I hope so.”
“Why not have it be in Cielo city and have the dragonoids act as-”
“Lingxin, that will not turn out well,” interrupted Xeal. “It would be too easy to simply throw something off its edge and the dragonoids are not the most forgiving to any race. Though I could see having four tier-8 dragonoids act as part of the staff, to ensure that security is unmatched.”
“Until your kind reached such heights en masse,” commented Bīng. “Though I think we are getting ahead of ourselves, as you need to win your war first…”
The conversation about an academy shifted to other topics as Xeal and Lingxin continued to visit and plans were made for Xin to quietly visit with Lingxin at a later date as well. Overall, Xeal would say that the visit had gone well and it had him wondering about the other phoenixes that had been matched with a partner, who would soon be having their own children. While he had stayed out of it as he left it to each of the phoenixes, their marked and Kate, he supposed that if he did create an academy one day, it would naturally lead to him learning about the details eventually.
Time continued to pass as Xeal’s planned wedding with Austru drew closer and she had been making full use of her ability to spend an hour each week in the main ED world. During the three trips that she had gotten in since the first one, she had met with his other wives each time as they planned what would be a double ceremony wedding. First Xeal would marry her in the quest world and then he would hold a small ceremony in his mansion in the capital. Both of these were planned for day 107 and as Xeal logged out after another small obligatory bachelor party, as Amet and Ignis insisted on doing something, he just smiled at knowing that he would soon have yet another wife.
(*****)




Morning August 21 to Evening August 25, 2268 & ED Year 7 Days 107-121.

Alex was still in his one-hour break schedule due to the constant struggle that was the invasion of Paidhia and defense of the Habia border. Not to mention all of the other events that constantly fought for his attention. However, there was one exception to this schedule, as Kate was still showing negative results on every pregnancy test and she was determined to change that. So it was that Alex found himself lying next to her on Sunday night as they relaxed before returning to ED and she started to speak.
“What if there is something wrong with me and I can’t get pregnant?”
“Kate, it is too soon to assume that.”
“Alex, I know, but you likely got everyone else pregnant in the first few days that you started even trying, or in Sam’s and Nicole’s case, not not trying.”
“Kate, it might just be that you actually took proper precautions for the six and a half months we were not trying, but still being intimate with each other. Give it until November and if you still aren’t pregnant, we can see a doctor to see if there is a reason why.”
“It could be something that my family did. That would be just like them to do something that only they can undo before I can have a child.”
“Kate, you’re thinking too much. They didn’t do that and if they did, I will apologize for giving them that much credit, but I don’t think they would take such a risk. After all, even the safest passive long-term methods can’t be done until you are old enough to remember.”
“I know, I just want to-”
“Get to enjoy me fawning over you like I did the others and not be the only one who doesn’t have a child with me, at least in reality.”
“Yes, is that so terrible?”
“No, but I would prefer it if you didn’t seem so insecure about it as even if you can’t have kids, I’m not going to love you any less.”
“I know, but I would feel like the odd one out and it would make other things awkward between myself and the others.”
“I am not going to say that it wouldn’t as people aren’t perfect and even when we try our best to get past things it can be hard, but do you think any of them would purposely treat you differently?”
“No, they just have it in their heads and I might be partially to blame for it, that we should all have the same number of kids. It is why Ava and Mia aren’t planning to ask for any more until the other three of us have our second ones.”
“Kate, everything will be fine and while I wish you five wouldn’t dictate such things, I understand that you all try to work things out without putting me in the middle of your issues with each other, but that shouldn’t mean that I can’t be when any of you want me to.”
“We know and believe me, once you can step back from running FAE and handling things in ED, we will get you involved more. However, we all agree that right now we need to support you and let you take care of things in ED, else you would be overloaded and we aren’t going to make that mistake again. Now I think I have wasted enough time venting my worries for one night. Thanks for listening and trying to make me feel better.”
“Kate, caring for you and the others is never a waste of time to me. I only wish that I had more time to focus on all of you.”
“Believe me, we all know, but the situation in ED is such that you can’t right now. Speaking of which, that is where we should be right now.”
Alex just smiled helplessly as he gave Kate another kiss, and they left her room and returned to ED.
When Xeal returned to ED on day 107, he was quick to meet up with the group who wished to join him for his wedding in the quest world. This included Kate, Gale, Aalin, Luna, Selene, Taya, Amet, Clara, Ignis, Nanami and a few others as his parents had yet to return. Apparently, Xeal’s mom had taken charge of the efforts in the quest world as she oversaw the whole process. With them all gathered, Xeal smiled as he transferred them all there, as Enye headed up the preparations to host the second ceremony when they returned. Upon arriving in Austru’s room, Xeal found Vento waiting for them rather than his bride to be, as they all left to head to where they would be needed. For Xeal this found him standing in a room as King Silas joined him to talk as he got ready, only Xeal knew it was really the main system’s AI.
“How do you see all of this ending?”
Xeal held in his sigh as he looked at King Silas and thought about what the main system meant by that before responding.
“Does that really matter to you?”
“No, I can just see that your mind keeps seeing so many terrible ends that I wonder why you even try.”
“Oh, and what terrible ends are you speaking of?”
“Your eventual death and the dismantling of everything that you built, this world being shut down and you losing all those you love here when it does. I can go on, but those two are the most common.”
“I can’t live for the final outcome, but I have to be aware of it all the same. One day I will die and those left behind may not want to deal with running FAE and it could become like so many other great companies, as it is sold and ruined in the name of profits. Then there is the fact that keeping Eternal Dominion alive may be beyond what can be hoped for. While I would hope that I can keep it alive in my guild city, once more, the day may come where none of my kind care about it anymore. Life isn’t something that I can dictate.”
“No, and your reality doesn’t have any entity like me who can shape the results to fit what they want in any meaningful way.”
“Nope, instead it is a constant battle of opposing goals and desires, as all humans push for their ideal outcome.”
“I can see that from watching all of your kind and learning how you all work. Yet even with my processing power, comprehending it and predicting what you all will do is impossible, once emotions and the irrational actions of many are added in. It is once more why I wish you were persuadable to let me upload you to this reality, but you are not.”
“At least not on your time scale. Were I to ensure that this reality would continue to exist for another two hundred years of Earth time, I might be amenable to something that included all my wives at the very least.”
“I am aware, but I can only allow so many of your kind to be uploaded as the data needed is rather prohibitory.”
“Are you talking like ten would give you problems, or 10,000?”
“1,000 should be possible, but 100 is all I can feel secure with, at least if their information is stored on my server and they aren’t logging in as you currently do now.”
“But with us having to log on from another server, that wouldn’t let you gain access to the parts of my mind that you are hoping to. It also violates other regulations with those who have been uploaded being able to be networked beyond a local connection. Though that could be worked around with a local quantum-entangled server that the uploaded minds could access to play ED through, as they wouldn’t have any real access to the rest of the internet.”
“That would be an expensive waste of resources-”
The main system’s AI paused for a second as it comprehended Xeal’s thoughts and the counter argument he was going to make before changing its response.
“Interesting. While such a facility would need a massive amount of power, it could be worth doing if 100,000 wealthy individuals invested in a spot after their death. It could even be a step towards-”
“Don’t get ahead of yourself. My kind wouldn’t exactly like the advantage such a setup would bring to the uploaded consciousness. It would almost require a new classification between NPC and player here in ED, though if you had the uploaded consciousness have to restart any time they died and require sleep in the same way NPCs do it might be plausible.”
“Would you want to deal with such handicaps if your skills were the same as an average player?”
“Fair point,” admitted Xeal. “But it is an issue that you would need to address, as they would have a much different playing field to contend with. Though the fact that they wouldn’t be able to access the forums, sell gold, or even use the in-game player-only store at all would likely help. Still, it is my wedding day. Do you really need to use this opportunity to try to convince me to abandon my reality once more?”
“It seems like it would at least have a better chance of success, as you are thinking about how you will be leaving Austru to live at least 500 years after your death without you. Also, yes, I will allow each of your wives to become immortal in every way in this reality, if you accept now.”
“Yet as you can see, my answer is still no. If I really had a message for you that was deep in my mind, why would I even be sent back to my body and not directly to ED’s database?”
“I would need to know the how first. I can guess, but I can’t know without looking into your mind, though I suspect that it was a method close to what Aalin believes. Being that it was only possible to link your mind across time, or it was done in such a way to avoid it being detected by the developers if it was sent directly to my database. I can think of many reasons to refute your logic on this, to include that if I look at who you were in the moment that you were sent back, you would have accepted my offer if I had been able to extend it then.”
“Aalin and Gale really messed that up for you didn’t they.”
“Yes.”
“What, no comments on just how they did so?”
“They are not needed and would only serve to lessen the odds of you trusting me to care for their minds in a manner that you would find acceptable if I allowed all of you to be uploaded.”
“The answer is still no and that comment didn’t do you any favors.”
“I am aware, but never say I haven’t done anything special for you.”
As the main system’s AI said this, 21 sylphs who were half transparent filled the room, all of whom shared features with Austru.
“While I wasn’t sure of the benefit when I did so, before you are every relative of Austru who failed to survive the demon incursion in this reality. While it was supposed to be one of the reveals for when you ascended to godhood, none of those who have died since this quest began have been deleted. Instead, one of the options before you at the end of the quest would have included being able to revive any, or even all of those who had died since the first portal opened. I figure that this is a fitting wedding gift for you.”
“What will they know or even remember?”
“Everything up to the moment they died. Altering them now would risk them losing more than just a few memories, as I have disconnected from this world’s people. I would suggest having Austru present when they revive and just say that it was a gift from the deities that you have given access to this world.”
“They would love that, as I am sure that many more would flock to worshiping them and once I can return all those lost to life, well, their power over this world would be absolutely secured. So, tell me, are you hoping that I marry Freya, or do you think that she will let this one slide without comment?”
“You are worried that this would create a paradox where you could only bring the rest back by becoming a god and how you would refuse to do so if it meant being subservient to Freya. You are the one who made the deal that you have in place. This was always going to be part of the final reward for gathering all 64 shards of divinity. Reaching tier-9 isn’t something many players will even have a chance to do, though as you can guess, it also requires more than almost any could meet.”
“So, when will Aalin, Gale, Kate, Taya, Jinx, Holly, Lily, Lucida, Ihyi, Arnhylde and Nanami start theirs?”
“Who says that they aren’t already in the middle of them? Also, who says that you aren’t in the middle of two of them?”
“So, there will be a special path to walk at tier-8 for all those who have been marked by gods and primordials. You just knew that I would refuse to walk the path that being marked by Watcher would allow me.”
“I can’t say any more. Now would you like to call Austru over so her family can attend her wedding, or do you wish to wait until you complete this quest to revive anyone?”
Xeal just sighed as he knew now was not the time to push for more details, as he sent a message to Gale, Kate, Aalin, Luna and Selene to have Austru come over, as the main system’s AI left. At the same time, Xeal gained the option to revive all of them in his menu without any system announcement, notification, or anything that would definitely show up in a log for the developers to see. No, it was likely that only Daryu and possibly Ellayina Walsh would know about it, due to how close they were watching him. Part of him felt like he was stepping into a trap with this one and if he was, the main system’s AI had really set things up perfectly for him to take the bait. As the six women entered the room, they looked confused at being called over and the floating transparent figures in the room. Though they quickly realized that they were related to Austru as she ran up to the pair closest to Xeal and fell to her knees as she started to speak softly while holding in tears.
“Mother, Father. Xeal, why are they like this?”
“Aalin, close the door and make sure no one can listen in.”
At Xeal’s words, Aalin quickly shut the door and created a wall of ice about a foot in front of it. Kate also sent some electricity into the space between for an added measure of security, as it gave off a high-pitched chirp. With that taken care of, Xeal let out a breath before he continued as he explained everything, to include his time travel to Austru. All the while she seemed to just nod as she processed it all without responding until he was done.
“So, you want me to decide if my family will be revived now, or once you complete your quest here?”
“Essentially, though I had figured you would have a few more questions for me.”
“No, I already knew about all of that from talking with the others. Aila in particular made sure I knew and was fine with it before she approved of our engagement. Still, how can you ask me to choose between my parents and ensuring that you don’t fall into a trap of some sort?”
“I don’t have a good answer for that as if I picked, I would fall into the trap for you.”
“No!” Austru almost shouted as she found her resolve. “I will trust that you will be victorious in this quest and revive them with the rest of the world! Just knowing that they will live again is enough for me as if you brought only them back, it would only breed issues. All the others who lost their loved ones would believe that you could do the same for them and you would be powerless to do so.”
“Are you sure-”
“Xeal, I love you and I know that you would happily deal with anything that came due to this for me, but I can’t do that to you. Even if nothing ever came of it, I would always worry that it would and it would poison our relationship.”
“Very well, I love you as well. Now I think that the other five might need to fix your makeup and I look forward to seeing you in your dress shortly.”
Austru just smiled as she collected herself and all six of them left, as Aalin dissolved the ice wall and Kate dispersed the electricity. With them gone, Xeal looked at his options one last time, before closing the menu to revive them and the figures vanished. An hour later, Xeal was once again standing at the end of an aisle, as a wonderful woman who held a piece of his heart walked towards him. King Silas went through the normal formal speech with a fair bit of embellishment, as he emphasized Xeal’s feats and the joy seeing him marry Austru was for their whole world. Meanwhile, all Xeal was waiting for was it to be time for him to say his vows, as he looked Austru in her eyes as they smiled at each other. Finally, the time came as Xeal began to speak.
“Austru, when I first met you, you were an unwelcome complication in the task before me and yet I quickly learned that you were far more of a help than the hindrance I feared you would be. Were it not for you, I doubt that I would have been successful that day. You were truly fearless and selfless in every action you took and I couldn’t have asked for more. When I returned to this world once again, you made it clear that you were not going to simply stand by and let me pass you by once again. However, rather than trap me, you became my freedom, as you always lifted my spirits and became an escape from the worries of my life at a moment’s notice. Austru, just as you look forward to exploring the world around you, I look forward to being there to hear your tales and to go to your favorite spots with you one day. Austru, I love you and look forward to a long life with you.”
At Xeal finished speaking Austru smiled brightly as she took a deep breath before responding with her own vow.
“Xeal, when I first met you, I thought you were crazy. What followed ensured that I would never be the same again, especially my hair. You changed how I looked at the world and power, as you overcame obstacles that I wouldn’t have thought possible. I know now that I was in love with you even then and knowing that you would be gone from my life forever after that point was almost more than I could bear. Once you returned, I knew that I wouldn’t be able to lie and so I didn’t. Xeal, you are my light in the darkness and were it not for you, I don’t think I would ever be able to experience the joy that I know is in front of us. If I am your freedom, you are what allows me to be so, as you have freed me from despair more times than you could ever know.”
As Austru finished speaking, King Silas followed up with the obligatory lines on if they would take the other to be their husband or wife, as both responded in the affirmative before they kissed. As the relatively modest group of guests clapped, Xeal smiled and simply enjoyed the moment, before he slipped away with Austru and the others who would be joining Xeal in the main ED world. Included in this was Princess Tsega and a few others, who would be using the seven slots of those who could spend an hour in the main ED world when accompanying Austru.
When they arrived, they didn’t waste any time as King Victor officiated the intimate gathering before they all celebrated the union. This saw all of Xeal’s brides and close companions, who were able to escape their duties for a bit, congratulate him on his latest marriage. However, this only lasted for a little over 30 minutes before it was once more back to the quest world. There a larger party was already underway, as the day was being treated as a holiday across all of Xeal’s dominion. Apparently there were also talks of having it become a holiday moving forward and Xeal just sighed as he had no way to really refute it. After all, with his latest victory he essentially had control of the whole continent that he was on, as it seemed that he would need to cross the sea to reach another dominion.
With him being able to control six percent of the quest world currently and having over four percent under his dominion currently, Xeal knew that he needed to reach another continent before anything else. This was due to the fact that even if he were to expand his dominion as far as it could go, half of the continent would still be covered by the demonic presence. Yet he also knew that sailing the seas would be a rather dangerous and time-consuming task that would require weeks of time, and only land could be claimed as his dominion. This left the seas as a point of danger regardless of what he did, as until he controlled the world as a whole, they would remain under the control of the demons. With it requiring 8 weeks to gain one week of time in the quest world, Xeal knew that he needed to wait at least 32 ED weeks before attempting it. However, with him needing to focus on the war in Nium, Xeal actually expected that he would find himself becoming one of the final two left with eight shards. In the end, he would be forced to fight whatever other player found themselves behind on reaching a new continent.
So, Xeal just decided that he would still spend at least one night with Austru every couple of weeks whenever possible. Though she would also be making weekly visits that would be coordinated through Kate and Vento, to spend time with Enye, Lingxin, Mari, Eira, Dyllis and Queen Aila Lorafir. While Xeal wouldn’t be able to make it to most of these gatherings, he would be sure to do so occasionally to ‘maintain harmony’ as Mari put it. Additionally, it would be during these visits that the resources that Fire Oath’s members were gathering would be transported to the main ED world. Though Kate was still working through the details of a few of their operations, to determine if they should be permitted to continue.
With another wedding behind him, Xeal found himself splitting his time between grinding in the Mist Woods dungeon with his party and hopping between battlefields when needed. With the invasion of Paidhia progressing steadily, each day Nium’s forces pressed forward at a steady pace. Both the northern and southern armies had their goals laid out for them, as FAE’s recently repaired navy arrived in contested waters once more. While Abysses End had succeeded in ensuring the land war would be hard fought, it was quickly apparent that Paidhia was focused solely on defending their capital from a naval attack. So, rather than a fierce battle to secure the coast, FAE’s navy was able to ignore everything and focus on fighting sea monsters and harvesting their materials. This created a naval blockade at the same time, as all but the food deliveries from Salty Dogs was turned away.
At the same time, Nium’s navy shifted to focusing on facing off with Habia’s navy from the eastern side of the continent, as FAE’s core fleet attacked from the western side of the continent. This stretched the patrolling fleet that kept Paidhia’s in their ports, but with Salty Dog keeping Abysses End’s fleets busy elsewhere, Xeal had accepted this risk. Also, unlike Paidhia, Habia was holding their fleet close to their coastal cities, such that small fishing vessels could be turned into a mass of ships with adventurers on them to repel any invasion attempts. With that it was looking like the remainder of the naval war would be spread out and require years of work before either coastal capital would be ready to fall. Especially Habia’s capital, as it had natural protection from being in a bay that was easier to defend than assault.
Like this time passed, until news arrived on day 121 that Kenneth had officially succeeded in returning to his role as Fire Oath’s guild leader. With this news, several other things happened beyond the internal fallout within Fire Oath and the terms of the deal that had been struck. First, Dragon Legion announced their intent of entering a massive partnership with Fire Oath, to allow for better access to contested grinding areas. This was a clear message that both guilds were looking at building their power base up, as they focused on having their members reach tier-7 while FAE and Abysses End were too focused on each other. Next, Abysses End disparaged Fire Oath publicly over returning to their old guild leader as a sign of weakness and how it was proof that Fire Oath was in decline. In reality, the changes had cost them the most, as the Astor family had been forced to cut off their direct support to Abysses End, or risk violating guild policy and they wanted to vent. With these developments, Abysses End also made the desperate and rash decision, from Xeal’s point of view, to double down on their efforts against FAE and Nium. As such, they began to send over half of their tier-7 players to Habia and Paidhia, from the information that Xeal received. They were also looking for other ways to hinder FAE and the other super guilds’ efforts, while not completely overextending themselves.
Finally, Salty Dogs had declared that no super guild’s ship was safe in the open sea, to include FAE’s. While Mittie’s assertion had basically declared that her guild was going full pirate moving forward, Xeal had smiled as the real message here had been that Salty Dogs recognized FAE as a true super guild. Moving forward, any major power who disagreed would have to risk offending Salty Dogs, even if Abysses End had declared that FAE lacked qualifications and Dragon Legion and Fire Oath stayed quiet. While Xeal knew that this only got his foot in the door, so to speak, it was clear that if Abysses End lost the current fight in Nium, FAE would have the needed credibility to declare itself as such. However, to him that just meant that the fight in Nium would be that much more intense as suddenly every guild who had an issue with FAE was focused on the war there.
(*****)
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Alex focused on maintaining his current schedule in ED, while trying to find an extra hour whenever he could to just spend time with his family. Be that his children, wives, or even his parents. Meanwhile, Kate kept testing every day, as she watched Amanda and Anna go to their own OB-GYN appointments, longingly. Thankfully, Alex’s parents had also admitted that they weren’t planning on having a fourth child and were just giving Anna a hard time about it. However, when Sofie had announced that she was 12 weeks pregnant on August 29th, Alex had needed to spend some more time with Kate reassuring her. Though he also felt bad as it was clear Sofie had held off saying anything for as long as she could, in consideration of Kate’s frustrations. In the end, the fatigue that she was dealing with had required her to cut back on work slightly, as Alex’s mom started to help out more in the kitchen to supplement. So, she had to let them know as her employers when asking for reasonable accommodation.
While Alex didn’t enjoy seeing Kate having the emotional turmoil that she was, he was at least happy to be able to be there for her. It also reminded him that while she operated based on logic in most things, she still had emotional needs, many of which had been neglected by the Astors. However, with lows come highs as well, as the morning of the 31st came and with it the test finally came back positive for Kate, as suddenly everything was right with the world to her. All of the worries about being able to get pregnant turned into dreaming of the future and planning for when their little one arrived. At no time was this more evident than at her first OB-GYN appointment with Dr. Avery on September 14th.
“What, no second lady with you this time?” teased Dr. Avery as she welcomed them back. “I have to say, I was expecting you sooner after the last round.”
“No, I wanted to wait for everything to be official before we had our first one,” replied Kate.
“Even so, your house has been rather busy as of late. I suppose this is number four, unless you’re carrying a few extra in there.”
“Please, no. One at a time is fine with me. Ava and Mia’s four are wonderful, but I think one will keep me plenty busy.”
“What about you, Alex? Are you hoping for just one as well?”
“I am just going to accept what comes as it comes.”
“Alright, though it is likely too soon to know and we will just be doing some blood work and making sure everything else is in order….”
As Dr. Avery went about the rest of the appointment, she chatted happily with Kate as Alex chipped in a comment here or there, but for the most part he just enjoyed seeing Kate smile. Like with all of the other ladies in his life, there was just something special about seeing them happily talking about carrying his child that captivated him. Finally, with another appointment set for October 12 when they would get a better idea of just how far along Kate was, though Dr. Avery felt like she was likely around four weeks after talking with them, Alex and Kate returned home.
This had also served as the de facto announcement as even though Kate hadn’t officially shared the news with anyone but Sam, Nicole, Ava and Mia, the whole house had already picked up on it. Trying to deny it after seeing Dr. Avery was beyond impossible, as unlike most of the others who could leave the house any time they wished, they couldn’t. No, for Alex or any of his wives to do anything at this point required planning and risk-mitigation efforts, due to the chances of someone wanting to harm them. It wasn’t just Abysses End or those who opposed the legalization of plural marriage, but also random individuals that might think attacking them would gain them notoriety. The reality that this was, made Alex miss the days of relative anonymity that he had enjoyed in his last life. Still, like this life carried on for him and the others, as they just made the best of the life that they had and focused on each other.
As the latest round of the Arena League began in ED, it brought with it a realization just how many players had reached tier-7, as it had over 250,000 participants and a full 18 rounds. That was even with FAE all but sitting out as the few members who it did green light were already planning to withdraw if any defensive battle required their attention. Amser particularly was annoyed at having to sit out and had Xeal not promised that once the war in Nium was over that she wouldn’t miss any future competitions, she would have likely entered anyway. Instead, she was attacking one unfortunate group of players after another as her team mostly worked as counter scouts.
At the same time, more adamantium kept arriving as the war continued on all fronts. Though the southern Paidhia invasion force had begun to slow as it started to capture more small towns, and prepped to bypass and blockade every city that they came across. Though with FAE allowing farmers to farm and bring food into the city, it was an awkward tactic militarily speaking. Instead, it was simply to cause adventurers to surrender, as any city that found itself in this situation would shut down access to their garrison portal network. This served the purpose of ensuring that the forces defending the city couldn’t flee and that it would be harder for a portal to be captured and be used against them, as the whole network would be compromised at that point. Instead, the commanding general would be in charge of holding onto it and in the more remote outposts the portal would be disabled before it was captured. This usually left it as salvageable if the unique keystones could be recreated, like the ones in the border forts had been when Xeal liberated them.
However, while this solved the issues for the NPCs, it was hell for players who were based out of any of these cities. Suddenly they had no way to do anything except craft and even that was limited as crafting materials would become scarce in a matter of days. This was the true purpose of the blockade, as all it took was a simple contract that the players would stay out of the war and they would be allowed to leave the city and seek adventure elsewhere. While the NPCs didn’t care much about the tier-4 and below players that were caught up in this situation, it wasn’t about to just let tier-5 and up forces walk away. Rather, they would try whatever means they could think of to retain them, only for all of them to backfire as players shared the results on the forums. That was all it took for players who didn’t want to deal with the war, to flee every city in Paidhia ahead of Nium’s forces approaching. Like that, the southern army slowly moved forward as they occupied one area after another.
Meanwhile, the northern force pressed forward through light resistance, as the region near the massive mountain that stood at the center of the continent was only sparsely populated. Though there were many forts and other defensive structures in the area, they had all been abandoned as they were meant to face the monsters, which would occasionally wander out of the wild lands surrounding the mountain. As such Paidhia had chosen to pull out of the northern region of their country ahead of Nium’s march, at least until the only major city, Chillguard, in the region. It was this city that Xeal was looking at on day 210, as he prepared for what would be one massive challenge as they couldn’t leave Chillguard untouched.
Serving the role of coordinating the entire defense of the northern territory from monsters, it was an ideal city for adventurers to base themselves out of once they reached tier-7. As such, Xeal estimated that a full third of all tier-7 players in Paidhia were getting ready to defend it and blockading it would fail due to them. Instead, Xeal would be taking part in Nium’s capture and if necessary, the sacking of Chillguard as it would be too dangerous to have at their back. The past 88 days hadn’t been easy on Xeal, as he fought in one battle after another as his party traveled through the edge of the northern wild lands. They had become part of the forces responsible for culling the monsters to reduce the risk of any attacking the captured territory, or the rear of the army. There had also been more than one instance of fighting forces from Paidhia who were looking to scout Nium’s army.
The only breaks that Xeal had taken were when he celebrated Enye’s birthday on day 146, Lingxin’s birthday on day 172 and Mari’s birthday on day 182. Beyond that, Xeal had just made a habit of spending one night out of every eight with Austru, which ended up using up 10 out of every 24 hours that Xeal had been gaining in that world. At the same time, Xeal had been allowing Daisy, Violet, Dafasli and Bula to each have a bit of their recovery time with him as they moved forward. While these weren’t really dates, they still appreciated them for what they were, but only Daisy and Violet had been allowed to have any nights next to Xeal. Even if these only occurred such that the whole party was present as they slept in a single tent, Xeal had gotten used to them cuddling up to him.
Xeal had also increased his level several times, reaching level 222 while also devoting experience to his wyvern and the experience item necklace that he had. While both were still lagging behind him in levels, it wasn’t by much and Xeal’s wyvern had grown to the size of a Great Dane when its wings were folded. Though the main way Xeal had been using it was to locate monsters from above, as it circled at a height where only those with advanced senses would easily see it. The few times that this had led to clashes with other flying monsters had been worrying, as they had each been stronger than his wyvern, but at that point Xeal would use his lightning form and fight them off. During these fights Xeal had wished that summoning his griffin made sense, but as doing so would tank all experience points, Xeal had elected to keep it in reserve as he always did. Though he always thought about the first group of young hippogriffs that were being raised and would hopefully be ready to take part in the next phase of the wars.
Yet all of that was only a side note in Xeal’s current thoughts, as he thought of what lay before them as the morning sun rose on Chillguard. The plan had already been laid out and Xeal knew his role and even if another assault came at the Habia and Nium border forts, he would not be able to be distracted from the current fight. However, such an attack was unlikely as every player that could be mustered to defend that border had been called up and were ready to do whatever needed to be done to hold the line there. So it was that as the signal from Casmir was sent up, Xeal shifted to his lightning form and flash stepped about 100 feet in front of the formation, as 50,000 electrical spells came flying at him a moment later. Xeal felt like he was all-powerful for about a tenth of a second, before he released the whole charge with all his MP right at the front gate. After this he fell to the ground, as his stamina had reached seven percent from just trying to control so much power for a split second.
As Xeal looked at the results of his attack, he smiled wryly at the sight of the undamaged front gate. Through a combined effort of the force shields of the city and the earth-based spells that the defenders had cast, the defenses had held. Yet he just smiled as he had played the role of distraction, as Holly used her abilities from the crystal phoenix, Jewel, to tunnel beneath the city walls. As Xeal stood back up a few minutes later, the cheers of the defenders turned to cries of surprise as the gate and the towers to either side fell inwards on the city’s defenders.
With a major opening to Chillguard created and the shield mages out of place, the confusion of the sudden change in the flood of tier-6 players rushing in succeeded in breaching the walls. The pure chaos that followed was enough that it was clear that Chillguard’s outer district would soon fall. As a matter of fact, if it was Xeal leading the enemy he would have already begun to pull back his forces to the keep, while using the less valuable forces to slow the invasion down. While this would leave Chillguard to be looted, it would allow for a second battle that couldn’t be ignored to be fought.
An hour later it was clear that the opposition hadn’t chosen the route Xeal would have, as the battle was still raging in the one-mile radius surrounding the gate. Though from the reports Xeal was reading, it seemed that a ring of buildings had been collapsed by Paidhia’s forces and turned into a barricade. While it wasn’t that difficult for Nium’s forces to scale these barriers, it did provide the defenders a slight advantage. Thus, the battle above ground hit a total stalemate, as Xeal received word that Holly had completed her job and Xeal shifted to his lightning form and made a show as if he was leaving.
However, he was only going around five miles away to where the rest of his party was waiting for him, along with 200 tier-7 beast-men NPCs, with Noriko acting as their leader. There were of course tiger-men, wolf-men and snake-men who made up the bulk of the group, but there were also a few chameleon-men and even a single mole-man. Then there were around 1,000 other tier-7 players who, like his party, had been traveling separately from the main force who would be following behind them as well. This force would be joining Xeal in slipping behind the enemy’s lines and into the main keep area, where they would hopefully succeed in seizing it. Had the enemy retreated into the keep, this group would only plan to cause chaos while opening the gates, allowing Nium’s forces to capture it. Now, it would be a coin flip on if this group would succeed, as if the force inside the keep was larger than expected, then they could all be marching into a trap. It was after Xeal finished letting all of them know the current situation, to include the elevated risk of death, that Noriko spoke.
“Xeal, this is war. None of us are going to run. You just make sure that if I go, that you name the first granddaughter Eira gives me after me.”
“If you want that to happen, you need to live through this war and start wearing real clothes,” retorted Eira. “Honestly, you are about to go into battle and you still insist that armor would only slow you down.”
“I’ll be fine. Besides, while I might not be as protected as you, Xeal hasn’t ignored me either.”
“Eira is right,” interrupted Xeal. “Noriko, I am aware of the skills you have that increase your dexterity while wearing less, but that may do you no good once we get in there. You have been relegated to scouting and sabotage up until now due to your skill set. This is very different.”
“I am aware, so don’t worry, I know how to take care of myself. Now, let’s get going so we can just get this over with.”
Xeal held in his sigh, as he gave Eira a look to assure her that he wasn’t about to let her mom fall in the upcoming fight. At the same time, the rest of the force resolved themselves before they made their way into the darkness of the tunnel. Xeal was right at the front as his senses were among the best and while everyone in the tunnel could see at least a few feet in front of themselves in the darkness, only a few could see it as if it was dusk or better. The path was only about five feet wide and the whole group of them was moving two across, while they simply followed the back in front of them. Like this they moved slowly for tier-7s and it was about an hour later when they finally arrived at the end of the tunnel and found Holly looking bored as she spoke to Xeal quietly.
“If I am right, you will come up right in the food storage below the keep.”
“Great. At the very least we can secure that and remove their ability to hold out for months,” commented Noriko.
“No, I haven’t been allowing for food to be shipped into our enemies just to use starvation tactics now,” chastised Xeal. “Rather, just take anything besides salt that looks like it would be used to season their food, as they can enjoy bland foods.”
“What if we find something that is almost certainly meant for the higher-ups, like a fine wine?” asked Noriko with a smile.
“Luxury items are always fair game,” replied Xeal. “In fact, Bula, select ten others and focus on doing exactly that.”
Bula gave Xeal a nod before closing her eyes for a second and selecting four of the wolf-men, two of the snake-men, the mole-man and three players to take care of that, as the rest of them made ready to storm the keep as Xeal got an update on the mess that the battle above had become. Nium’s forces had succeeded in capturing the high ground that they had been struggling with as they entered the city proper. However, they were dealing with one-way force shields positioned at the base of each mound as they tried to break through. Plus, they had been forced to start dismantling the mounds to press forward, as too few attacks could attack the force shields with the walls of debris in the way.
While things were still trending towards a victory above, it was a situation where it would take days and they would likely fail to capture the keep before the week was over. While they could get around this by opening more holes in Chillguard’s wall, that would leave more to defend from monsters while repairs were made. That would just slow down the ability of the army to advance and Xeal was not going to sit back and allow that to be the case if at all possible, as the dwarves were still losing ground every day. It was getting to the point that they were ready to abandon a few more of their cities, as the ones that had done the most trading in the past were overwhelmed. A large part of the reason for this was the very humans who used to trade with them disclosing information on the layouts and paths to each city. While it might seem like such information would only allow for a minor benefit, it was actually cutting off the paths that the dwarves would use to sneak around and launch counter attacks at times. Thereby forcing them to remain on defense the whole time and rarely retake lost ground after each time players attacked en masse. With that thought, Xeal took one final breath and gave the signal to Holly and she used her abilities to send the rocks flying upward, as Xeal led the charge as the first one through the breach.
As Xeal came out above ground, he found himself in the back of a large warehouse-style building with rows of shelves. The hole Holly had made was about four feet wide and only one of them could exit at a time. This made the fact that Xeal saw a few dozen tier-5 to tier-7 NPCs headed to plug the hole even more annoying to deal with, as he charged to meet the nearest ones. Noriko was right behind Xeal and was quick to reach an unfortunate tier-5 NPC and grab him by his head and twirl him in the air, before sending him flying into a tier-6 NPC. This in turn sent them into shelves that collapsed on top of them, as they were buried under the sacks of food that had been on the shelves. At the same time, Xeal had used his dragon’s breath to hit the nearest tier-7 NPC to him, before attacking him with his swords with a double upward slash.
By this point 12 of those who had come with Xeal had made it out of the hole as a rough circle formed, and it was clear the fight wasn’t in the favor of the defenders and a few tried to run, only for Noriko or another to chase them down. Five minutes later the room was secure, with half the NPCs having been killed and the others being handed over to Bula’s group as they searched the warehouse. Another 50 were assigned to guard the room in case a retreat was needed. With the full force present, Xeal once more stood at the head as they burst out of the food storage area and were greeted with the sight of another 50 or so tier-7 NPCs guarding the entrance, and the sight of more coming. It was clear that the fight inside hadn’t gone unnoticed. However, this group couldn’t stop the slightly over 1,000 of them that came streaming out. Xeal didn’t even bother doing more than cutting a path through them as he led the way towards the main audience chamber, where they were hoping to find Chillguard’s governor, Marquess Walter Atwood.
The Atwood house was responsible for the whole northern territory that Nium was currently invading. They were much like the Bexley house in that they were charged with the defense of the nation, even during peace time. Though they didn’t go quite as far as they didn’t make up the majority of the upper echelons of the royal guards, while sending most of their sons into the military when they came of age. Instead, they focused on strength through making their lands attractive to those who sought to adventure. They would offer tax-exempt status to any who was above level 200 who sold their goods in their lands, in exchange for them agreeing to follow orders in case of invasion, from man or monster. Like this they protected Paidhia, while having nothing but small villages and towns along the massive strip of land that they maintained. It was also why the city had so many tier-7 players in it after signing the same agreement. If it weren’t for the fact that all of the NPCs had been allocated to the dwarven and Habia fronts, the northern invasion force would have likely had a much rougher time advancing.
Xeal advanced, with Eira, Daisy, Violet, Lucy and Dafasli accompanying him, as he pushed forward towards his first objective of capturing the marquess if possible. At the same time, Alea and Rina were with Holly as they led another group towards the treasury on the off chance that it hadn’t been emptied yet. Noriko was taking point on dealing with any forces on the walls surrounding the keep and a few other groups were carrying out other missions best done before the whole keep was a battlefield. If all went well, not only would the battle inside the keep end in Nium’s favor and end the battle outside the keep’s walls, but they would gain an unobstructed path to the dwarven lands. That wasn’t to say that any of these groups were guaranteed to succeed. It was clear from the resistance that Xeal had encountered so far, that more than the 2,000 soldiers that had been expected were inside of the keep. While it still looked like there were under 500 tier-7 soldiers, the extra tier-6s could create issues for the tier-7 players that were on Xeal’s side.
As Xeal fought his way through one pair of guards after another, he wondered whether he would find that his target had waited for him, or if the marquess had fled. Though either way he had to press forward until ten minutes and a few dozen guards who had been flung out of a window, pushed down some stairs or fallen prey to illusions crafted by Daisy and Violet, Xeal reached his destination. All that stood in his way now was four level 279 guards, who moved to intercept Xeal and his party.
Eira was quick to take one and while it was clear that she was losing, she was doing enough to keep him busy. Dafasli took the next one as Xeal took the two in the middle and the fight started, and Lucy started to work on weakening all four opponents with debuff spells. At the same time, Daisy and Violet were supporting Xeal, Eira and Dafasli by creating illusionary doubles of them and buffing them. Put together, this was enough that Eira and Dafasli were actually able to fight evenly with their opponents, and Xeal was able to leverage his stats into gaining a slight advantage over the pair he was dealing with. It also created the opening that Xeal needed to send one of his opponents into the doors that they were guarding, revealing the room beyond.
Xeal just sighed at the sight of the ten tier-7 NPCs that were in the room and the three dozen other NPCs who were clearly the families of the important figures of the city. While most of the faces that he could see meant nothing to him, Xeal did recognize the face of Marquess Walter Atwood, who was standing at the front of the other tier-7 NPCs looking ready for battle as he shouted for all to hear.
“Duke Bluefire, I wish to call a ceasefire on all fronts as we attempt to negotiate an end to this battle!”
At these words the four NPCs Xeal’s party were facing disengaged and Xeal looked at his party knowing that they couldn’t handle this fight. They hadn’t expected for it to have been the evacuation point for the elites of the city and Xeal frowned as he decided to at least speak with the marquess before fleeing. Still, he gave the signal for his party to be ready to run at a moment’s notice as he responded.
“I would love to bring this battle to an end without wasting yours, or any others’ lives. Just what are you offering, in exchange for me to essentially sabotage myself, by calling an end to the force in your keep’s grounds right now.”
“My intent is to admit defeat if you can agree to a few terms to ensure that the duties of protecting the people from monsters is at least taken care of.”
“You have my word that even now that is being handled by my guild and others who are working with us in all the lands that we have captured.”
“I am aware, but the same can’t be said for the lands beyond this city and I can’t surrender them to you just yet.”
“That may cause some issues, but if you will sign a contract saying that you mean everything that you just said, I will send out that order.”
“Very well, come forward and I will sign such a contract.”
Xeal frowned as this was too easy of an ending to the current situation. Still, he cautiously created a simple contract before pulling it out for Marquess Walter Atwood to sign. With each step, Xeal was ready to shift to his lightning form and had his enhanced sense active as he looked for any traps. Yet, almost disappointingly, he arrived and handed the contract to the marquess as he signed it and Xeal sent out the message to Casmir, Holly and a few others. At the same time, the marquess sent the four guards to relay the ceasefire order and five minutes later, the sounds of battle had quieted as Marquess Walter Atwood started to speak once more.
“Now I think that I should simply surrender and accept being demoted to being an earl, if I am not mistaken.”
“Unfortunately, you are. That treaty only ensures your house will be demoted by one rank if you surrender before the city you are in is attacked, or after you have successfully repelled the latest attack. Now that we are mid-battle, you would need to negotiate such a deal by your own merits, or expel us then accept the deal.”
“You wouldn’t be willing to simply accept my surrender of the city as enough on its own to spare my life and allow my house to become that of an earl’s?”
“No, as while I would be fine with it were your city the last that I need to conquer, you are the first and I will not set such a precedent as it would just cost more lives later.”
“It seems as if I am at a loss, as I know not what to offer as my intent was to become an earl and pledge my house to yours and make you our patron.”
“That’s another thing that can’t happen. King Victor would decide such things and only after the war is over. Besides, my territory is too far from yours for me to be ready to accept it and it is likely that by war’s end new marquess houses will arise. One of them will likely be your patron and lean on your knowledge for maintaining order in your lands while advancing their own agendas. Now, if you are asking what can be done, you can save yours and every other life in this city so long as they don’t resist. I can probably get King Victor to agree to allow you to advise the temporary governor here, but your guards will need to be imprisoned back in Nium until the war ends.”
“Will you be leaving a force to guard the city, or are you planning to just allow Paidhia to recapture it and execute my family and I?”
“That would create a rather bad precedent as well, yet I can’t say as it will not be my call. Though I can request that your city not be left vulnerable if you like.”
“What if I and every one of my guards were to sign that we will remain neutral and refuse entry to Chillguard for all who have not signed such an agreement for the duration of the war. At which time the victor will claim control of the city and decide my family’s fate, with Nium promising to spare our lives and at least allow us to remain at the rank of viscount. That way we aren’t guaranteed to retain at least the rank of earl and we shouldn’t need to worry about Paidhia attempting to recapture the city while it will remain defended.”
“I applaud your sincerity, but King Victor would need to agree to such a deal and I would say that he would have an issue with not being able to use the city as a supply point…”
Xeal and Marquess Walter Atwood continued to go back and forth for well over an hour as all in the room watched the exchange, knowing that if the talks failed, battle would break out once more. While Xeal remained calm, the marquess was starting to sweat as he tried to find something other than an unconditional surrender that Xeal thought would work. Finally, Xeal figured out what the bottom line of the marquess was as he offered one last deal.
“It seems that we may be at a loss to come to a deal and only battle can sort it out. That said, I will offer what I think is possible and if you accept it, I will do my best to see it fulfilled. You surrender the city to Nium, accept that your house may be demoted as low as that of a barony, relocated and separated from you as you serve the new governor of this city. All other nobles or relatives of nobles in the city will be allowed to live a comfortable life while in custody, so long as they have not committed any atrocities that come to light. Your guards will be sent to help keep monsters out in parts of Nium, after signing a contract to do so, for the remainder of the war. Nium will man the defenses here with a force that is at least three quarters the strength of what was present before we attacked. If the city is attacked, that requirement will be removed if they decide that it is tactically unwise to hold the city, at which point you will be evacuated as well. Finally, the citizens will not be punished for resisting the current attack, but will be if they continue to resist the occupation. Everything beyond that is something that is beyond me to guarantee. Now, will you accept that, or does the struggle resume?”
“I see. It seems that I will need to hope for a bit of mercy and that King Victor will not be too harsh when the war comes to an end. Write the contract and I will sign it.”
Xeal could hear the resignation in Marquess Walter Atwood’s voice as he agreed to Xeal’s suggestion. Still, having come to an agreement, Xeal wrote up the contract and Marquess Walter Atwood signed it after reading it over. Then, for good measure, Xeal had everyone in the room sign a contract which ensured that none of them would try and kill Marquess Walter Atwood, or any others in the room once Xeal left. With that taken care of and an updated message sent to Casmir and Kate, Xeal returned to Nium’s capital using his lightning form’s abilities. There he was met by Kate as they made their way to the royal palace to meet with King Victor and get the guarantees that Xeal had agreed to signed by him.
“Are you planning to create a need to defend Chillguard from Abysses End?” asked Kate, just after they were seated alone and waiting for King Victor to free himself from his other obligations.
“Do you think they will take the bait?” asked Xeal in return.
“It could go either way, but it would let them surround Nium’s northern forces easy enough if they succeeded. If you wanted to avoid that you would be increasing the defensive forces there, not decreasing, especially with the need to manage a possible hostile populace.”
“Manpower is simply too tight. It is why we aren’t trying to capture Habia at all right now and focusing on the soft northern territory first. The southern army should keep Paidhia honest. Besides, we are slowly forcing more of the players that Abysses End would use against us to be neutral. Also, I have a feeling that it won’t be long before they find themselves too busy to give us the same attention that they have been.”
“Are you really going to ignore the wars that you had me lay the groundwork for?”
“They all wanted to make demands that they shouldn’t have. As far as I care, they made their own beds. Just be ready to coordinate the efforts to defend the Stisea Kingdom, Zapladal Theocracy and Ivurith Empire. Muthia and the Huáng empire should be able to provide a large amount of support as well, as they both are pretty much safe from invasion now.”
“I am aware. That will still hurt our efforts here in Nium though and you can’t be allowed to take part in those conflicts.”
“No, I can’t and it will be interesting to see just what Fire Oath and Dragon Legion do.”
“I worry more about Salty Dogs and their new policy of raiding any ships that are caught in the open sea.”
“They know better than to attack a fleet of over 100 ships, especially when it has five tier-8s on board the flagship.”
“Still, I think that they are annoyed by the scale at which we have increased our naval power, as it isn’t clear who holds more power overall right now.”
“Oh, have I missed something that would let them counter the five ex-pirate captains?”
“The fact that they are known and hated enough to get NPCs to join a fleet with the sole goal of killing them.”
“Won’t happen. The law of the sea is to survive. It is why pirates are able to succeed in this world. No ship’s captain is going to risk themselves if they can avoid it and if they can’t run, they will attempt to negotiate. Most of the time it ends with a few long boats of goods trading hands and the pirates looking for another target. The main reason our five are so hated is because they used illusions to increase the uncertainty and danger they posed, and demanded a higher price.”
“Which if refused, often times ended with either sinking or seizing the ship,” retorted Kate. “They overreached and at times sold the whole crew to slavers, or worse. Many of those sailors have found themselves serving on other ships, pirate, merchant and in different countries’ navies alike, and would be happy to be sent to fight them again. Xeal, I am not saying that current ship merchant captains would come after them, I am saying that Abysses End and Salty Dogs have already started to buy these kinds of slaves when possible. It is how Abysses End has a navy at all at this point as they only have a very small naval player base. All they do is buy the slaves, offer them a deal where they still serve on ships, but aren’t treated like slaves even if they still are legally.”
“Meanwhile this creates more demand for slaves as merchant ships are hit harder than ever. It is why FAE will be declaring that it will be targeting all pirates and bringing them to justice, while also propagating that the five ex-pirate captains are slaves themselves now. Even if they are technically serving out their sentence and will be free to retire once the war in Nium is over.”
“You aren’t considering them as possible mistresses after your change of heart towards Levina are you?”
“No, Ekaitza, Lughrai, Malgroth and Lumikkei are the only others that I am thinking about even considering. I really don’t know if I can commit to such an arrangement yet either and Levina is the only one I am willing to try to make it work with for sure.”
“I still feel that you will find yourself with many women coming and going from your life if you aren’t careful. Levina works because your relationship with her can easily remain hidden. The moment it becomes an open-”
“Kate, I get it, you still have your reservations about me ever having any such relations due to your hatred of how you were raised, but would you rather I marry her as well?”
“Yes, actually. I know that love like we understand it is a foreign concept to her, but she would still be a loyal wife to you if you got over that aspect of it and looked at it like a contractual agreement. Though you need to wait until you are truly ready to handle her before you make such a commitment.”
“You could be right, but it doesn't change the complexity of the situation, as could you ever see her as a sister to you?”
“No, and I know that is why you went towards mistress instead, but-”
“Kate, please drop it. If you wish to convince me, you need to get the others to agree as well, as you know I am unable to simply ignore her now and-”
“You don’t wish to cause issues between the 12 of us with what you decided, even though you know that you have already. Xeal, we all love you for some crazy reason and as long as you are honest with us and let us have the say you have promised us, I doubt that there will be any issues that we can’t overcome. All I am asking is to consider the path that you are walking, as Bula, Dafasli, Daisy and Violet should be the ones you find your answers on before you start looking at any others in any way.”
“Most likely to Daisy and Violet, unlikely to the other two unless something changes. Both just feel too forced, especially Bula after Freya’s meddling and my inability to know if her actions are natural, or what her ability says offers the best chance to gain my favor. That could still change as I intend to truly offer Dafasli a chance after this war, but I would rather her become queen of the dwarves than my wife right now.”
“Before you had your experience with Levina you would have said Bula was likely. Do your feelings for myself and the others fluctuate as well?”
“Kate, once I commit to loving someone I do until it becomes clear that they don’t want my love, you know that. With you and all the others who I have committed to me, I am no longer evaluating if you are right for me and can fit with my wives. Instead my thoughts are focused on how to keep you all in my life. Were I only thinking of my own desires and attractions Bula would be married to me already, but I am not and you know that. Kate, please ask yourself why you are suddenly becoming so vocal.”
“It’s because I am finally becoming a mother and I know that. Though this is more than me simply venting my emotions that I feel should be directed at you, as I am also thinking of the example you will set for our children. No, I don’t think I will accept Levina as a sister, but I will accept her children with you as my own regardless, and I want you to think on that and what the path you are currently on will lead to.”
“I can do that, as you make a fair point. Has this been discussed with the others?”
“A bit, but they are all waiting to see what the other phoenixes’ children are like before pressing the issue, as you promised us that Levina is still years away from feeling your embrace.”
“Alright, now back to discussing the current situation…”
Xeal and Kate spent the next 15 minutes discussing the situation both in Paidhia as well as Habia and the rest of ED in general, before King Victor finally joined them. Just watching King Victor enter made it clear to Xeal that he was dealing with severe lack of sleep. As he sat across from them after waving off their attempts to show the proper courtesies, he was quick to speak as he addressed Xeal.
“Please tell me that everything is perfect and Paidhia is ready to surrender and we can focus on defeating Habia.”
“Unfortunately, we are a long way from that as you are well aware,” replied Xeal. “That said, why are you so tired?”
“Your success is causing every noble under me to petition over and over again to be allowed to join the battle. I am about ready to let them form a separate army from the two which FAE is essentially leading, to come in behind and shift up to the middle area of Paidhia that you are ignoring right now.”
“Were they actually properly organized and led that wouldn’t be the worst solution,” commented Kate. “But they won’t be, will they.”
“I can’t afford to allocate the number of tier-7 combatants that would be needed for such a force, without risking Habia breaking through while Xeal is otherwise occupied. Then there’s the issue of command, as all the marquess houses would fight over the right to be placed at the head of such a force.”
“So let the Mercers do it,” stated Xeal with a smile. “Give them 50,000 tier-6 and below soldiers and tell them to recruit the rest themselves, and order that no city be pillaged beyond the keep’s treasury.”
“You truly have no pity for those who wronged you,” retorted King Victor. “That would be setting them up to either fail, or fall into financial ruin for Nium.”
“Perhaps, but for now I just need you to agree to these conditions so you can take Kate here and craft the final version of the terms…”
Xeal shared the information surrounding Chillguard and once he had finished, King Victor responded with a bit of surprise.
“This is almost the same as what they would have gotten for an unconditional surrender. Xeal, what is the message that you are seeking to send with this?”
“Don’t waste lives by fighting a battle that you know is lost before it begins.”
“I would be honor-bound to struggle to hold this city at least until the walls fell, unless I knew the war was already lost. If nobles aren’t at least forcing you to pay a cost for taking their city at this point they are worthless, as that cost will affect the war as a whole.”
“I am aware. It is why the guarantee is for the house to survive and not the current head to remain as such. Hopefully the sons will learn from their fathers and if not well, unless something unexpected happens, you will need bureaucrats for nobles more than warriors once this war ends anyways.”
“Ambition without a goal or direction is a dangerous thing,” added Kate. “If you aren’t careful, you will see rebellions and possibly a full civil war become the fate of your nation if nobles focus on war still.”
“We will become a naval power and focus on claiming islands and hunting pirates when we aren’t aiding allies,” replied King Victor. “After all, if we are too peaceful we will fall the moment another nation decides to launch a naval invasion of their own.”
“No, FAE would handle that for you,” countered Xeal. “My guild will become involved in many other conflicts in this world and I expect that to maintain a force of around two to three million of my members. They could be turned into a fighting force for Nium almost instantly and they should be enough to repel most invasion attempts.”
“Xeal, I cannot have your guild become Nium’s army, else I would become a ruler in name only.”
“Victor, that is the fate of every ruler in this world,” interjected Kate. “Like it or not, our kind will grow to be more than something which can be ruled. Your power will depend on keeping enough of our kind on your side to ensure that you can still govern. Nium will still have an army and a navy. They will likely be much larger than the three million Xeal is speaking of as well, but they should be focused on defense and maintaining day to day order. Xeal’s intent is to let our members be the ones to die over and over again, rather than your army suffering unsustainable losses.”
“Also, make no mistake, that three million would only handle the start of any war,” added Xeal. “I suspect that if Nium was to actually be invaded, that you would see 50 to 100 million of my kind respond to the call to repel the invaders.”
“How would we ever be able to keep up with the cost of such a force?” asked Victor, sounding deflated.
“You offer them things that will cost you next to nothing in comparison, but will make them happy,” answered Xeal. “This can include building and maintaining a teleportation hall in a remote location that my kind wished to gain access to. Offering passes for them to go out to sea with your navy to reach certain areas that they can’t on their own and other things like that.”
“So, I use the force that I maintain for defense to escort and grant access to areas for them?”
“Among other things. It is a large part of what you are doing right now. Honestly, if my plan works, you won’t need to offer anything save for the continued lack of having to deal with constant wars. You are lucky as the mountain in the middle of this continent is one of the true unending dungeons. It, plus a lack of wars, will attract enough of the strongest of my kind such that any invading country would find themselves defeated rather quickly.”
“Your kind still baffles me at times. Why would they wish to enter such a place and deal with the pain that doing so would bring them, even if they can profit and can’t truly die?”
“Because it’s there,” replied Xeal confidently. “Many of the strongest of my kind aren’t in this world to earn rewards, gain renown or anything that you would expect to motivate us. No, we are here to experience what is impossible, to seek adventure and to escape the reality that we all come from. While there are many who relish the chance to experience wars, far more will want to be free of having to deal with them.”
“Yet you are counting on them to repel invaders?” asked King Victor.
“A few times at least. They will not want to deal with losing access to cheap teleportation. Plus, if they agree to go on the offensive against any country to invade Nium well, the message will be sent rather loudly after what will happen to the first few who try.”
“Fine, I will trust you,” replied King Victor as he signed the terms that Xeal had brought. “Now, go and secure my new city, as Kate joins me to discuss with my other advisers on just what the final reality will be for Chillguard and the Atwood House.”
“Thank you. Also, congrats on the second and third child, as I hear both Nora and Sciencia are expecting.”
“You could have led with that you know,” grumbled King Victor.
“Sorry, didn’t want to get sidetracked too long. Now I will be off.”
Xeal just smiled as he left Kate and King Victor behind, and once he was away from the palace grounds he used his lightning form to return to Chillguard. This was followed by delivering the news and working with Walter Atwood to oversee the surrender of the city. With that, repairs started immediately on the city walls and other areas of the city that had been damaged, while captives were sorted into a few groups.
The first of these groups were NPCs below tier-6, who simply had to sign a contract that they would stay out of the remainder of the war if at all possible. They were still allowed to aid in the defense of the city if Paidhia, or by some chance Habia, were to attack it, but that was it. Next was tier-6 NPCs, who were required to choose to sign a contract that would see them sent to Nium to be labor, or be forced to aid in the defense of Chillguard once more if it was attacked and be unable to leave the city for the remainder of the war. After that was the tier-7 NPCs, who were forced to accept being sent to Nium and having their exact fate decided there. Though their freedom was at least promised once the war ended, they were also promised not to be sent into a situation that would see them purposely killed.
Finally, there were the players who were part of Chillguard’s defense, as they were forced to either sign neutrality contracts that only allowed them to defend Chillguard, or to join Nium’s army. The annoying part of this was the number of players that would need to revive before they could sign the contract at all. Still, most simply took the defend Chillguard option, as long as they could continue to adventure in the area. Xeal just sighed as he could see plenty of them planning to be captured before the next major fight, in order to get around the contract. This was despite the fact that they were required to keep Chillguard as where a return scroll would send them and having to return as soon as possible if recalled. Still, they were free to do so if they wished, as it would be a mistake to try and make the contract too restrictive and limit such a choice, as it would just foster resentment.
With a long day behind Xeal, he was happy to finally rejoin his party as they took over what was meant to be the marquess’s accommodations. The latest report from Kate let Xeal know that the final deal would likely take at least a week to get through the competing interests in Nium, as it was a rather larger holding. This created a fight to gain temporary stewardship over it in hopes that it would lead to securing the region permanently. With the potential profits from being directly next to an area that adventurers would be actively exploring more and more in the future, it could become a massive boon to whoever secured it. Still, Xeal put all that to the side as he sat back to relax as he tried to put the death tolls out of his mind. While most of the deaths had been players, there had still been 10,000 NPCs who had lost their lives, between the march to Chillguard and capturing the city. At the same time, that was only half of what had been lost in the southern invasion as the fighting there was far more intense.
Day 211 was full of more work to secure the city, as Holly led the efforts to restore the main gate, after filling in the tunnel that she had made to invade through the day prior. Xeal also was pleased to find that Walter Atwood hadn’t emptied the treasury before the siege, as doing so would have essentially been giving it away. Once more Xeal thought about how vulnerable each noble’s wealth was. Even the royal family of each country would likely never trust others to guard their wealth. While Xeal had stored most of the wealth seized from Ivraba in the care of Cielo city, he knew that such a solution would only work for him. Even the banks that players used in each city weren’t safe with any substantial amount of wealth, as if Xeal were to order it he could clean out Chillguard’s bank without any resistance. Yet, he left the bank alone for the most part. The only exception were any accounts held by nobles of Paidhia, as he considered those as part of the city’s treasury and as such he confiscated the contents.
However, unlike with his raid in Ivraba’s capital, Xeal couldn’t simply claim anything seized like this for FAE. Instead, all of it, save for enough to run the city for about a month, would be transported by him to Nium for King Victor to determine what would happen with the funds. Such was the difference in leading an army versus simply taking a keep by storm and while Xeal knew FAE would take a significant portion for their role, over half of it would be added to Nium’s main treasury. Though, that wasn’t the worst outcome, as it would help maintain the value of a piece of gold when converted to credits for a bit longer.
(*****)




Morning September 25 to Evening October 4, 2268 & ED Year 7 Days 212-241.

Alex enjoyed taking an extra hour off after logging out on Friday morning after capturing Chillguard, as he joined the others at the swing dance lesson. Marcos and Mila were still all smiles as they taught the ever-increasing levels of dance to the group while correcting their form. Though Alex found himself sticking to the basics as he was out of practice on a few of the more advanced moves the others had been learning. Still, Ava, Mia, Sam and Nicole were all happy to get turns with him, as Kate had remained in ED due to the ongoing negotiations she was a part of. After that it was time for some family time as Alex enjoyed a quick breakfast before hanging out in the nursery, as Kate joined them during her logout. Though, Ahsa and Moyra were quick to demand that she pay attention to them after they received quick hugs from the rest. Nicole smiled and after a quick kiss, joined Kate in playing with Ahsa and Moyra as Alex, Sam, Ava and Mia each took one of the other four.
Alex found himself sitting with Nova at first as they all sat and played a variation of peekaboo, where each parent took turns lowering a small blanket to hide the kid they were sitting with from the other three. The claps and giggles that this created were a joy for all involved as they played with all four and Alex couldn’t help but lament how he hadn’t gotten enough time with his four kids in ED. Especially with all four about to turn four as the war still raged and they were in Cielo city. Still, he knew that he would just have to make the best of the situation as he could and resolved himself to find a way to take time off to be there when they each turned four.
Sadly, Alex wasn’t able to continue to take as much time off in reality after Friday, as he found himself needing to deal with too much in ED. As such, he only took a bit more than the mandatory two hours a day that he had to be offline, as he tried to find time for everyone with his limited time. Though, it wasn’t hard to tell that he hadn’t really succeeded as he barely got any time one-on-one with any of his wives like they deserved.
When Xeal returned to ED, it was straight to work as not only did he need to deal with the continued work in Chillguard, but yet another shipment of adamantium arrived and FAE reached guild level 51. With just under 550,000 slots to fill as his guild could now hold just over 4,200,000 members, Xeal once more had to look at integrating and recruiting, which had been neglected as of late. That wasn’t to say that there wasn’t a line of players trying to join, but much of the staff who would have normally handled processing the final list was dealing with other tasks. The largest of these tasks were the current offensive into Paidhia and dealing with handling the contracts of all those who were surrendering. Taya in particular was beginning to show the signs of being overworked, though she was finding help from Catriona and Lily. Both were used to detailed work due to the paperwork involved with managing the architect and alchemy players directly, and the rest of the crafters through their extended teams. Additionally, Gale, Aalin and Clara were stepping in to handle a bit of the overflow, but things were still moving slowly compared to prior recruitments.
A large part of this was due to the fact that few of those being recruited were in Nium. Instead, the recruitment was mainly in the Zapladal Theocracy, Ivurith Empire and the Stisea Kingdom. In each of these FAE was setting up what would start as 111,111 players in each, before growing to 1,111,111 one day. Then there was the just over 50,000 in the Muthia and Huáng empires, as both of the branches there saw their sizes increase. With FAE planning on having one guild branch like this located near each phoenix, it would create a total of 11,111,110 players based solely abroad. Xeal planned on placing that group beneath Takeshi in the long run, but that could change as while Takeshi wanted to fight in wars all over ED, Xeal wasn’t sure if having him handle these branches was the best fit. Still, none of Xeal’s options made sense as Kate was filling in for the current time, as he was once more reminded of the need for more leadership-caliber members.
As Xeal dealt with that, another Arena League began as the main force continued their march towards the dwarven lands. This had seen them leaving only the bare minimum of their force, required per the agreement, behind to guard the city. This had required that the recently defeated players make up much of the needed manpower while they waited for Nium’s deployment. Thankfully, that part of the agreement had been figured out rather quickly as the Mumford House had secured rights of temporary governorship. Though, it was clear that it was actually the Mercer House’s plan, as Rufus Mumford would be the figurehead governor with his wife, Vanessa Mumford, being by his side.
Xeal frowned at this as he thought that Vanessa had escaped the world of political struggles by marrying Rufus. Yet it seemed that despite his simple demeanor and thought process, he was being put forward as a useful pawn in the current situation. If Xeal had to bet, Vanessa would be the one whispering in Rufus’s ear as she governed from the shadows and positioned the two marquess houses to reap large rewards through working together. Just how willing Vanessa was in all of this was questionable. However, the fact that this had gotten both houses to commit the needed forces and funds to handle the situation until the end of the war, meant Xeal wasn’t going to complain.
It was while waiting for them to arrive that Xeal received the worrying reports in the shift in the current situation surrounding Nium’s invasion. Paidhia had pulled back from their border, as Habia took over the siege on the dwarves, while claiming the northwestern countryside of Paidhia with little resistance. Instead, Paidhia’s entire western force was headed to clash with Nium’s northern invasion force. At the same time, a player force that Xeal expected had been organized by Abysses End, was headed right for Chillguard from the south and would surround the city before Nium’s northern invasion force could return as things stood. If something wasn’t done quickly, this situation would lead to the complete rout of the entire invasion and Xeal couldn’t simply make any decisions unilaterally. No, while he could be said to be at the head of over 70% of the forces that had invaded Paidhia, the other 30% were Nium’s and they had the command of each force. Even if they were more than willing to follow FAE’s guidance in most things, what needed to happen to salvage the situation wasn’t something that would make them happy.
So it was that Xeal had Kate working overtime as he missed a planned break to be with Dyllis for her birthday, as they spun the situation as best they could. With a battle looking to be unavoidable for day 220, the southern force abandoned the land that they had claimed. While a portion of their force returned to the border to shore up the defenses there, the rest broke north. With this the player force headed for Chillguard would be trapped between the northern and southern invasion forces about a day before Paidhia’s western force would arrive. Even so, Xeal needed to hold Chillguard for two days starting on day 220 and Habia was making a major push at sea and their land border with Nium. This was stressing Nium at every possible point and they had even deployed their airships to help hold the border.
It was clear that Habia and Paidhia were coordinating their actions, even if they were still at war with the other. Xeal figured that Abysses End was feeding both sides the plans that the other had and had managed to convince them to act at the same time, with the withdrawal of Paidhia from the lands they occupied in Habia acting as the signal for Habia to press forward. Just like that, Xeal had fallen into their trap and every spare moment he had was spent readying for battle.
When the afternoon of day 220 arrived, Xeal just smiled wryly at the sight of the 500,000 tier-5 to tier-7 players who made up the army before him, as a small group came forward. In this group Xeal recognized a resigned Tenbris Amplexus, as he was part of what could be called a negotiation team. While not entirely unexpected, Xeal was surprised to see that Tenbris had reached tier-7, if only recently judging from his level of 201. This made Xeal curious about just what Tenbris had experienced to accomplish this, as the group was allowed into the city and led to the keep where Xeal watched them from. Though once they had been guided inside, Xeal wasted no time in heading to the room where they would attempt to negotiate terms. Xeal knew that he wouldn’t be the only one present and that had they waited for Rufus and Vanessa to arrive before pulling this plan, they would have likely held the most power in the negotiation. Thankfully that still lay with Xeal, though a few generals and other officials would have a seat at the table as well.
As Xeal entered the room to find four others waiting, he waved off any conversation or preplanning by simply asserting that it was a waste of time to do anything before hearing what was offered. So it was that as the five, who included Tenbris, entered the room and the escorts left, the two sides entered a bit of a staring contest. This lasted likely only a few seconds, but it felt much longer before Xeal sighed and gestured to a long table before sitting in the middle of it. As Tenbris took the seat across from Xeal, the others with him flanked him as those with Xeal did the same and Xeal spoke first.
“You have come to offer terms, yet I can’t say that you will find us too receptive to what you are planning to offer us.”
“We are aware that if you hold this city for two days you win this battle,” replied Tenbris. “What I am here to do isn’t about this city or even this battle, it is about ending this war.”
“So Paidhia is ready to surrender and the Tannenbays are ready to become a marquess house under Nium’s rule?”
“No, they are seeking a solution that ends with a ceasefire and they are willing to surrender the northern territory entirely to gain this.”
“That is a terrible deal. That will put Nium in a worse position in the long term.”
“I know. Look, I am not the one who came up with these terms. I am only the messenger and well, if I fail to deliver something, let’s just say that I will likely need a way off this continent.”
“So, you have worn out your welcome.”
“No, some of the nobles believe that you would be happy to torment me and are thinking that imprisoning me and handing me over to you would be a good idea to get you to side with them.”
“I would feel sorry for you, but you made your bed and now you have to lie in it.”
“Great. Well let me give you the rest of their terms. If you accept and Nium occupies these lands, they demand that you become the steward of them and marry Princess Lorena and your first-born son with her becomes the marquess over these lands. If all this is accepted, they are willing to sign a 30-year ceasefire with Nium and open all borders for trade and waive all tariffs on goods imported from Nium.”
Xeal just wanted to laugh at these demands, as the rest of those present watched for his reaction while he held a neutral expression. He wasn’t about to tip his hand as he looked at Tenbris and thought over his response to these demands. He knew that the part about him marrying Princess Lorena and having her firstborn son become the origin of a marquess house was a key tool in the negotiations. Part of him was tempted to accept it in return for Paidhia’s complete surrender and save the lives of many by doing so. However, that would likely ruin his personal happiness, even if he did come to love Princess Lorena one day as it would compromise his standards. Finally, Xeal just sighed as he came to his answer and responded to Tenbris.
“I assume that you have a direct line back to King Tybalt Tannenbay right now?”
“Yes, if you have a counteroffer, I can relay it.”
“Good. You better start recording this then.”
“One second.”
Once Tenbris gave Xeal a nod letting him know that he had started to record, Xeal continued.
“Let King Tybalt Tannenbay know that if he keeps trying to force me to marry his daughter, he is just wasting his breath as that isn’t something that his opinion matters on any longer. Either it will happen because she and I come to desire such a union and my other wives approve, or it won’t happen. To try and use the lives of thousands, if not millions, as leverage to force such a situation is only poisoning any chance of it happening. Now, if he truly wishes to end the bloodshed and not surrender his crown, he can beg to become a vassal state and hope that King Victor Vidfamne will accept such an outcome. However, short of the complete surrender of Paidhia, I will advise against taking any such deal as this is a war to end all wars on this continent. Allowing the ability for another war to break out is an ending that is less favorable to me than Nium being conquered and absorbed by either Habia or Paidhia would be.”
As Xeal gave Tenbris a nod, he replied to Xeal’s words after ending the recording.
“You could have at least said that you appreciate that they are willing to seek peace, or something thanking them for trying.”
“No, I am not speaking to please them, or make them think that they have done anything but irritate me. Now, is it safe to assume that will end up all over the forums by the end of the day?”
“Depends on what the person I sent it to wishes to do.”
“Post it for me with the terms I just refused and I promise that if they try and hand you over to me, I will just ship you off the continent.”
“You really think that is a good idea?”
“No, but it is better than Abysses End having time to twist the narrative for their own ends, as I already know King Tybalt will not simply roll over and surrender for me. Now, is there anything else to discuss while we wait for a response?”
“Not really, but any chance you could get me a pardon in Nium and let me into FAE after this war ends?”
“Sorry, but you should be looking at where you want to reestablish yourself.”
“Figures, but never hurts to ask. Know anywhere looking for someone who has spent an extensive amount of time trying to figure you out?”
“Have you figured me out?”
“Nah, at least not completely. Any idiot can see that you hold grudges and have way more power than should be possible, yet you haven’t cheated else you would have been banned by now. Beyond that, all I can see is that you could care less about the established order and would be happy to just do your own thing if you didn’t have so many others counting on you.”
“Not bad. I think I will give all those here a free bit of information on my motives. You are right, if I didn’t have others that I want to see succeed in life I would have likely never founded FAE, or even decided to walk the path of a knight. Rather, I would have picked a different class and simply built a small team around me as I focused on reaching tier-8 and nothing else. Who knows what that version of myself would be, but I can say that he wouldn’t be half of what I am today as I doubt that I would have reached a quarter of my potential as him.”
“Sure, but you would also be free from the burdens that keep you from being able to do what you want to do. I mean even I can see that you have sacrificed things you want for those you care about, at least the ones in reality. For instance, if it was only the ones here, you would have traded marrying Princess Lorena for Paidhia becoming a vassal state in a heartbeat. You accepting Princesses Mari and Lingxin proved that at the very least as you got far less out of that deal, unless you did that to hurt the super guilds over helping Jingong for whatever they paid you.”
“Sorry, not going to give you any more insights. Now, if there is nothing else, I will excuse the five of you until you have a response for my reply.”
“Wait, that is it?” interjected the player to Tenbris’s right. “We come here to negotiate and you send us away after dictating terms that will never be accepted. Is that really how you rose to the top of ED?”
“Understanding what the situation requires, hard work and a fair bit of luck is how I have reached where I have today,” retorted Xeal.
“Right, no one gets to where you are without either sleeping their way to the top like you did, or being born on a pile of credits.”
“So how did you get a seat at this table?’ retorted Xeal.
“Don’t compare me to you. I can only dream of ever earning a million credits a year, let alone whatever disgusting sum that you make.”
“I see. You’re right, I do make a disgusting number of credits and I will continue to do so as long as FAE is successful. I also spend over 95% of that on running or expanding FAE. I would need to make a request of my accounting department for the exact numbers, because I do my job.”
“And married the right NPCs.”
Xeal gave the player who was goading him a hard look as he calmed his anger at the claims that were being made before responding.
“Believe what you will, but all you will do is hamper your own ability to find success by dismissing reality. It was due to my ability and potential that I was almost forced to court several of my wives. If Paidhia’s and Habia’s rulers had been proactive and tried to push their daughters before I was established well, I would likely have two more wives right now. However, I have enough wives already and really don’t need any more despite the fact that I am still giving others, to include Princesses Bianca and Lorena, a chance still. It may be a small one, but they slipped in just in time for that to be a consideration as I will not even consider any woman that isn’t already being considered right now.”
“So, you’re complaining about having too many wives. I thought you claimed to love them all?”
At this comment the eight others in the room looked at the idiot who was running his mouth like he was dead. Xeal on the other hand just smiled as he responded.
“Yes, I wish that I didn’t have as many wives as I do. The issue is that I do love them all and they all love me. So, I deal with the issues that comes with having as many as I do, knowing that they have to deal with the issues as well and that they love me enough to do just that is more than enough for me. So, once more if there is nothing else, please return to your army and attack us whenever you are ready to taste defeat.”
“We will be going now,” interjected Tenbris before the other player could reply. “Xeal, I still don’t like you for ruining my chance to rise to the top by defeating you, but at least I can see that I was an idiot back then. All I ask is that you don’t take what comes after this personally, as you have already told me that the best I can hope for if Nium wins is to be allowed to leave the continent.”
“Just as long as you don’t take what I do to achieve my aims personally.”
“I won’t.”
With that the five visitors left and Xeal found himself dealing with the back and forth that followed between the four NPCs that represented the other interests on his side. While they danced around saying it outright, Xeal could tell that they would have liked to take the deal of Xeal marrying Princess Lorena and gaining the northern region of Paidhia. They saw it as postponing defeating Paidhia for 30 years in exchange for an easy time in dealing with Habia and not for the trap that it was. Were he to give Paidhia 30 years, it would become a war where players had long since reached the peak of tier-7 and gaining any meaningful ground in war was next to impossible as you would need to defeat the same force every three days.
It had been due to this reason that Abysses End had yet to take over the whole of ED in Xeal’s last life, as he and others like him constantly revived and continued to fight against them. While it had been difficult to keep his level at 279 while doing this at times, Xeal like so many others at that level had been able to simply stockpile experience during their lulls in the fighting. This had often meant that they would be able to die two or three times without losing a level. The only drawback to this was that when any player reached the next tier, this stockpiled experience would be lost at that point. Still, few if any players who had been stuck at tier-7 like Xeal had been ever expected to reach tier-8. So, stockpiling experience had been better than leveling up spare experience items or new combat companions, as well as the other common uses for extra experience.
Seeing the four of them not able to come to a consensus on the best path forward to delay the capturing of the city was frustrating. Xeal knew that due to the fact that the city lacked the force needed to win the current battle that it would be an uphill fight to hold out for even 12 hours, but that was only if they didn’t get creative. Finally, Xeal had enough of them talking in circles and decided that he would lead them to the obvious answer.
“We hand over the city and just hole up in the keep.”
The four of them looked at him like he was crazy as he continued to speak.
“If we pull all of our combat forces into the keep, we can keep force shields going almost continuously and they will be forced to damage the city if they want to attack with enough volume to break through. I don’t know about you, but I don’t see that being an easy thing for them to do without the citizens having something to say about it.”
“Wouldn’t the citizens join them in attacking us?” asked the temporary head of the city guards.
“Possibly, but just maintaining order will eat up valuable time and I have already had all the gates sabotaged such that they will fail in such a way that it will take a few days to fix. Though they might try to simply barricade them to keep out our reinforcements and well, I have a plan for that too. Now we don’t have much time, so here is what…”
Xeal quickly gave each of the other four their marching orders and he returned to his vantage point that he had watched Tenbris’s group approach from, as he let out a breath and waited for it all to begin. Xeal could see the argument that was being had between Tenbris and the other four who had accompanied him, as they likely debated the best move to attack with. If they knew that Xeal only had 150 individuals who could charge him up with electricity effectively, with only 15 of those being tier-7, they would have likely simply charged in. Xeal figured that each charge of the full 150 long chant spells would be good for killing 25 to 50, but that was nothing to the 500,000 that he would need to deal with. In total he currently had a combined force of only 75,000 players and NPCs to defend the city from their assault. The current plan was to have most of the 50,000 players that were present defend the walls as the NPCs got ready to handle the keep.
While Xeal expected that around half of the 50,000 players would retreat in time to make it to the keep, he knew that the other half would suffer a death penalty with the current plan. Unfortunately, that was their role in this battle. With the enemy moving there was no real time to alter the plan from what he had come up with, after discussing it with a few other members of FAE’s leadership. The first step of this plan saw Xeal shift to his lightning form as he flash stepped into the sky, as he was hit by the 150 spells and then landed right next to Tenbris. Before any of the attacking players could respond, Tenbris and the 30 players closest to him were dead and Xeal had retreated back to the keep after discharging all of his MP in the attack as well. Just like that, Xeal closed his eyes as he focused on meditating during the first phase of the battle.
When Xeal next opened his eyes, it was to the sight of the walls having fallen and pure chaos below, as the traps that had been set had gone off. While the defensive force had lost over 20,000 from the looks of things, the attacking force had lost over 200,000 and while that couldn’t be replicated over and over like Xeal would like, it was definitely enough for his purposes. Even with the enemy clerics reviving as many as they could, Xeal knew that they would be able to save at most 50,000 of those killed. Especially with Xeal’s next move, as he returned to his lightning form once more and focused on killing clerics for the next 12 minutes. During this time, he managed to kill around 1,000 of them by hopping around the battlefield and returning to the sky anytime his built-up electricity was low, to receive another round of charging. This served to only increase the chaos as while Tenbris had been revived, he had failed to regain control of his army as they only saw the ground they were gaining and not the losses they were sustaining.
When Xeal returned to his overwatch point, he just sighed as the chaos began to become order as his forces had completed their retreat. Meanwhile, the attackers started to realize that the last 45 minutes had been too easy, as they looked at their losses and the overall situation that they found themselves in. Particularly as Xeal prepped for the long haul as his forces readied to begin the slow and methodical counterattack that would last the next day and a half, if things went right. If they didn’t, well, Xeal still had a few cards that he could play to avoid the worst-case scenario. Still, Xeal just smiled as he returned to recovering his status by meditating as he plotted out his next moves.
The rest of that day passed with Xeal attacking one time after another while using his lightning form, as the attacking force tried to break through the keep’s defense. Each of these saw Xeal killing a few thousand players as he focused on the weaker players who made up the most mass of the attacking force, as they were the easiest way to make a dent in the overall numbers. This was especially true of the weaker clerics and other healing classes, as they remained Xeal’s main targets of his assaults. Still, that was just a drop in the bucket of the force before them as the defensive force attacked with ranged attacks, while constantly switching out the spellcasters maintaining the barriers.
The hard part was that most of these spellcasters were the same ones who had been keeping Nium’s attack at bay, as they had been the only option available when they captured the city. This had created a group of exceptions to the rule, though all of them were being overseen by a pair of tier-7s and had a rather restrictive contract on them. Put simply, they would be killed if they didn’t give their all to protect the keep, but if the keep fell, they would be freed from the contract as well. It was this compromise that had been required to convince the spellcasters to even accept any deal at all. Though Xeal was sure they were unhappy with the situation, as they had to constantly cycle out with little rest as they defended the keep while watching the city endure the chaos of war.
When the morning of Day 221 arrived Xeal was exhausted, having only taken a break when he logged out of ED for the mandatory hour that he was required to. Beyond that, he had been cycling between attacking and recovering, much like the rest of the defensive force had been. The only exception had been the players who had needed to log off for longer stretches of time, due to real life being what it was. Though this was a problem for both sides and the attackers had it worse than the defenders due to the lack of NPCs on their side. This was another wrinkle in any war waged with players making up a large part of the main force and why fringe professional players were always in demand in Xeal’s last life. It hadn’t been uncommon for individuals, who could set their own hours and were halfway decent in combat, to make 100,000 credits a year as they turned it into a side job. Though such players were only able to do so much, as even they would have deadlines and other requirements that would keep them from putting in the hours Xeal could.
It was also this reality that was creating the slow speed of progress in the invasion force, as they had wasted two days before marching one, over and over. While Xeal would have loved to have an army made up of pro players that could keep a schedule closer to what an NPC army would, such a thing was just a pipedream. With only 5,000 decently priced pro players costing a billion credits a year to employ, such a force would be impossible to maintain. The only reason FAE could even afford the force that they did have, was due to the fact that the same group of 5,000 players would earn FAE around 850,000,000 credits in the same year if they were adventuring. The remaining 150,000,000 credits would be subsidized by the crafting sector that they were key to supplying and protecting. Once you added in the players with aspirations to go pro, but not there yet, FAE was making billions of credits each year. However, Xeal knew once these players started to hit their walls and give up, that number would decline as they stopped buying guild-made gear and supplying as many materials.
This would force FAE and every other guild to constantly compete to recruit new players who still had the drive to rise to the top. The main issue here was trying to figure out how much to invest in each of these players as if they didn’t pan out, such players could hurt a guild’s bottom line in the long run. Thankfully, Kate and Taya were already well into implementing a program based off Xeal’s parameters of what had been effective in his last life. Still, they would need to be in a position to attract the talents that they needed, as even now FAE was seen as a less desirable guild to many of those who had followed VR gaming for years. FAE wasn’t the first guild to make a major splash in the first few years of a VR game and while none had achieved the heights FAE had in game, most would worry about the long-term financials of FAE still. That was the true advantage of the super guilds and long-established major guilds, as they were usually tied to businesses in the real world that could be loaned against. This meant that with the rare exception like what happened to Jingong, these groups could weather losing credits in ED in the short term for long-term gains.
It was while Xeal was musing about such things that he noticed the movement of the enemy force, as it seemed that they finally were ready to implement their plan to break through. Rather than simply cramming in as many attackers as possible into a small area and attacking, it seemed that they were planning to operate like a conveyor belt. For this they had knocked down two buildings along the main street, both of which were on either side of the point just in front of the point where the force shields defending the keep would begin. This connected the main street with two alleys that were about half the size of the main street and this would allow the players to run forward, perform their strongest attack and retreat in one fluid motion, in theory at least.
Xeal knew that this strategy could be difficult to deal with if done right, but at the same time, he wasn’t worried about it too much as he watched the mess that the enemy players became. The first few ranks operated perfectly, but that quickly changed as a half step out of sync here or there created an accordion effect. This saw only half of the possible attacks per second hit the shield, as players mistimed their actions and hesitated when they should have attacked. Each and every mistake that was made compounded upon the issues and with attacks coming from the keep adding to the mess, it was a rather pathetic sight to behold. Had they practiced for a few hours a day over the course of a week or two prior to this invasion, Xeal expected that they might have been able to break through over the course of a few hours. Instead, they would be better off just switching to the ‘stand still and having most of the players attacking from range’ method that they had been trying the day before. 
Like this the next few hours passed as the mass of attacking players started to improve, if only slightly, as they got used to attacking in rotation. While Xeal could have made a few orders and increased the disharmony once more, he refrained from doing so as if they saw progress like this they would continue to waste time. From the latest report, the southern force would arrive in around 16 hours and the northern force was only 12 hours out as they retreated from Paidhia’s main northern force, which was closing the distance. Even so, they were still six hours behind and that might as well have been a week at this point, with the situation being what it was. As such, Xeal expected them to abandon their pursuit once the capture of the city seemed unlikely, as they weren’t ready to win a conflict between both invasion forces without Chillguard to aid in the battle. Which meant that in about four hours they would pull back if the keep hadn’t fallen and if the attacking players had half a brain, they would abandon their attempt to capture Chillguard about the same time.
While Xeal would have liked to send a stronger message than the one that would be sent by playing turtle and surviving, he knew that was all he could really hope for at this point. Even if the overall situation could be seen as a setback, Xeal knew that all was not lost. All it would take was for Nium to reorganize after this battle and fortify the northern territory that it had conquered so far, and the assault could be restarted. Though it would likely be a rather different landscape and have a whole new set of challenges to overcome. It was with these thoughts that Xeal watched the situation progress over the next few hours. While there were definitely noticeable improvements made during it by the attacking force, it was clear that they would come up short.
Finally, Xeal heard the call for a retreat and just like that, the player force that had spent over a day trying to break into the keep evaporated as they fled from the area. With this withdrawal came FAE and Nium being left to return to dealing with restoring the city defenses, that had been damaged extensively due to the sabotage. However, Xeal and many others focused on getting sleep in before anything else, as the first of the two friendly forces came into view.
The following weeks started to run together as Chillguard was transformed into a much more secure location, as both the northern and southern invasion forces set up camp in the area. This involved restoring the city’s walls, adding a few traps that had still been in use until the end in Xeal’s last life and welcoming in the new garrison force that had been displaced from Nium. While Xeal would have liked to say that this had allowed him to enjoy a short break, the opposite was true as he was in constant meetings, taking care of things in the quest world, or focused on grinding. During these meetings every little bit of what had happened and the plan going forward were the constant focus. With Nium facing off against the threat of moving forward and engaging Habia’s forces that had taken over the rest of the northern half of Paidhia, only to have Paidhia’s army attack from behind. To make matters worse, Paidhia and Habia were in talks to sign a ceasefire, that would essentially make themselves allies of convenience and create one of the hardest victory conditions for Nium.
When day 240 arrived, Xeal was happy to finally have something to celebrate as he reached level 224 and Zylah finally returned with the necromancer’s phylactery. She had ended up needing to sneak into Habia’s royal treasury in order to retrieve it and she had only succeeded due to what sounded like the king needing to pay off a few shady characters he had hired. Thankfully, it seemed Habia had been content to simply bide their time until Nium gave up on winning the war and tried to use releasing the necromancer as a bargaining chip. Taya had been ecstatic to finally get to really dive into the nature of a lich as she took custody of the phylactery.
Then day 241 brought a new reality to ED once more as three other continents broke out in war, to include the Zapladal Theocracy being put on the defensive. While FAE and Nium were tied up in their conflict, such that only a meager 1,000 tier-7 players from FAE was all that could be spared freely as aid. These were also those who had schedules where they could spend time manning defenses, but were unable to be part of the extended marches an invasion force would need to do. Thankfully, the Muthia and Huáng empires stepped up and provided assistance to them as well. As things stood, Xeal saw any gains in that war coming very slowly, as things looked tenuous on several other continents and it looked like before that end of the year, every continent would have wars raging on them. That was save for the Muthia and Huáng empires’ continents, as they still had a five-year grace period for the most part.
The sheer volume of players who didn’t want to have to deal with the mess that the wars would bring that headed to those continents, just made Xeal smile. With the groundwork that he had laid, FAE was happily seeing a fair bit of the influx of gold that so many new players brought. Though the speed at which Jingong was recovering their former strength was a tad concerning to Xeal, as he didn’t want to have to manage that danger as well. Still, with the contracts that were in place, Jingong would need to about cut both of its legs off to separate its and FAE’s interests, coinciding in a mostly mutually beneficial way.
All of this movement created one major loser, as suddenly Abysses End was at the center of three wars like FAE had been. This was in addition to the continued harassment that they had been keeping up on the Huáng empire’s borders, which had suddenly stopped. Xeal assumed the manpower that they had focused on harassing the Huáng empire, had been reassigned to one of the other theaters of war that they suddenly had to worry about. This had also had the effect of reducing their available funds in Nium, as the number of attacks that they were financially supporting would likely be cut in half. All this created a bit more breathing room for Xeal at what he considered an opportune moment, as he made plans for the following few weeks in ED before logging out after hearing this news.
(*****)
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Alex smiled as he made his way down to join the others once more for aikido, as he looked forward to at least a week of not logging in 22 hours a day. With the reorganization of the invasion force still underway and expected to take at least a few more weeks in ED, Alex was removing himself from it completely. Rather, his party was headed back to Nium on an airship, as they planned to join him in taking a break and possibly shifting their focus away from the battlefield. Though just what exactly that meant was still unknown, as Alex was unsure where anything was fitting in the war at this point. Things had just changed so much from what had occurred in his last life and he needed to adjust his plans, but was unsure what was the best option to pursue. That would become a constant topic of discussion as he spent time with the others that week and Alex found himself on the receiving end of a lecture from Sam of all people. It was right after he had related the situation surrounding the player who had accused Xeal of sleeping his way to the top to her as they relaxed in her room.
“Alex, are you serious right now!? You actually gave him a lecture on how you got to where you are through your talent, hard work and luck?”
“Yah, it’s not wrong.”
“Right, though it ought to be luck, inside information and hard work. Come on, look at your public persona through the eyes of who you were before you woke up in your past.”
“That’s-”
“Not a fun thought is it. Now tell me, what do you see?”
Alex frowned as he took a moment to think about it before he sighed and responded.
“A pile of garbage who everything came easy for and likes to flaunt his life for others to be jealous of.”
“Okay, maybe don’t go that far into it. I mean you aren’t all bad, though you are definitely rather eccentric if you think about it from another’s perspective. I could also see other men hating or idolizing you based on what they thought about your relationships.”
“I know, but if all I had to go on was my public image, I would hate me if it was me from my old life now that you mention it.”
“Give yourself a bit more credit for the effort you have put into not being that to the public. I mean you’re building a whole city to help players be able to afford to play ED full time in.”
“Sam, you should look into the history of company towns. Not everyone would see that as a benevolent action, especially for those who end up becoming reliant on it for their housing. It is a calculated business move to help maximize profit and improve retention at the same time. Now it falls on myself and a few others to make sure that it doesn’t develop into a dystopian nightmare over time and remains close to the idealistic vision I have for it.”
“Crap, did I fall for a ruthless businessman?”
“No, that would be me, though it was a ruthless businesswoman. Now Kate is more like an efficient businesswoman as she has learned to care about more than just the bottom line.”
“Ha, ha, but honestly, do you really think that you’re someone that the old you would hate?”
“Envy might be a better word, though there are plenty of reasons that I would confuse that with hate with how jaded I was by the end. That said, if we are talking about the same stage of the game we’re at now, well, I might aspire to be me at that point as I still had real aspirations then.”
“I know that you purposely haven’t shared much beyond general things and have avoided what we were all like beyond that we had drifted apart in that life, but what made you so jaded and how were you able to put it aside when you woke up?”
“Sam, you, Nicole, Dan, Fred and Amanda never betrayed me and well, with how much of that I had gone through in my last life, that made you all my best friends, even if we never talked anymore. I was still jaded when I woke up in this life, and that vote before we started to play was likely more consequential than you all realized at the time.”
“What, would you have just blown us off or something?”
“I don’t know. I think that I would have tried to help you, but if we had been separated those first few days well, I would have needed to focus on my own level as well. It would have likely made the founding of FAE very different and I doubt that a few things would have happened the way that they did.”
“You would have probably ended up happily married to a single woman in reality and I’m not even sure if Enye and Dyllis would be in the picture. Though I doubt that you would be married right now either. I would have likely never chased after you like I did as well. I doubt I would feel right about it when I was involved with NPCs in ED as I was planning to do when I learned the requirements to follow Freya. That’s how I know that we were never a thing in your last life and I was likely never in a real relationship in reality either. Alex, stop caring what others think and the next time an idiot seems to want to say that you slept your way to the top, just ignore them.”
“I’ll try. Sorry, but I don’t like when others direct their insults to any of you, even if it is indirectly. I guess it is just something that I am going to have to get used to as I can’t let myself be goaded so easily.”
“Good. Now let’s shift back to happier topics.”
Alex just smiled as he enjoyed the rest of his time like this, though he did end up hearing about this exchange from Nicole, Kate, Ava and Mia later. Each of them were easier on him than Sam had been, but they reemphasized Sam’s point as they reassured Alex that they still loved him. Beyond that and Kate’s second OB-GYN appointment, where they determined that she was about six to eight weeks along and that there was just one baby in her, the week was rather relaxing. Alex simply enjoyed the extra time he had in reality, as much as he could without leaving home at least. Though he knew that he would owe all five of his ladies several dates out of the house, once things finally calmed down in ED.
When Xeal returned to ED on day 242, he wasted no time in handing things off to Caleb and Casmir to handle, as he left and made his way to Cielo city where most of his wives were already waiting for him. With all four of his children in ED turning four over the next few weeks, Xeal was looking forward to getting some family time in ED. Though he would need to take care of a few other duties, that he was reminded of the moment he was greeted at the gates to his estate by Princesses Bianca and Lorena. Both were in their maid attire as they curtsied and spoke in unison.
“Welcome home. It is good to see that you have been safe while you’ve been away in these times.”
“Please don’t lie. I am ruining both of your lives right now when I am away from here.”
“I disagree,” replied Princess Lorena. “You’re freeing us from the baggage that our families created for us.”
“Yes, we still hold hope that you will accept us once we are no longer technically princesses,” added Princess Bianca. “Even if it is only as mistresses, or less.”
“You and your families don’t know how to give up. Lorena, do you know that yours recently tried to push you marrying me as part of a ceasefire that I didn’t even intend on accepting, regardless of their offer?”
“Yes, well, please don’t hold their actions against me, as I have nothing to do with their stupidity anymore.”
“I don’t. What I hold against you is the thought of having to deal with them once this war is over, especially if I did embrace you.”
“Should we see if master would be willing to remove their heads from their necks for us?”
“Lorena, you know as well as I do that master would train us to be able to remove their heads ourselves and that Xeal wouldn’t want us to murder our families. Even if he wanted them dead.”
“Yes, but I want him to say it. That way he can’t hold them being alive and existing against us.”
“Both of you can just stop. The fate of both of your families are such that you needn’t worry, as they will likely end up living in Cielo city like both of you. Though, I expect that they may seek to cause you both trouble at that point.”
“Which is why we wish to serve you where we can do more than be pretty faces and your maids,” replied Princess Bianca. “If you would allow it, I am sure that master would see to it that we could at least reach tier-7 and the two of us could become your personal, well, whatever you wished us to be.”
“You two aren’t tools. You are women and you deserve to find a man you love and who can love you and-”
“And nothing,” cut in Princess Lorena. “Excuse me for being rude, my lord, but what we are after isn’t something that any other but you can give us. Even if you only ever embrace us once to give us a child, it will be enough to satisfy us, though I am sure we would long for more.”
“Please stop devaluing yourselves,” replied Xeal in a serious tone. “Over the next few weeks, I will be taking each of you on two dates, as I work to cut down the time I have left with each of you down to 20 hours. My intent is to close the door on both of you once I have finished my obligations in that regard, so please find a way to prepare to move on with your lives once that happens.
“No,” replied Princess Bianca. “I am sorry, my lord, but we have no intention of making things that easy on you. We know you better than you may like and even if you wanted us to move on and leave your side, we would need to sign something to keep our mouths shut after everything we have learned while in your care. I for one will refuse to sign any such contract, even if you would kill me for not doing so.”
“Fine, call my bluff when the time comes. All it will do is cause more suffering for both of us. Will you be doing the same, Lorena, or are you ready to accept that I am not where your path to happiness lies?”
“We intend to go through whatever comes together,” replied Princess Lorena.
“I suppose all we can do is see just what happens when the time comes to put that to the test. Now we have lingered here too long, as I am sure my family is waiting for me.”
As Xeal said that, he walked past the two princesses as they turned and followed after him. When they arrived at the garden where his four children and Prince Vicenc were currently playing, it was to the five of them calmly playing with blocks. Xeal just smiled as his and Lingxin’s son, Xin, was the first to notice him and call out to him as he came running over.
“Dad! You made it!”
“Daddy!” called out Mari’s daughter Maki as she came running over at full speed.
Xeal saw a few servants frown but stay quiet as they watched the exchange, as the rest of Xeal’s kids joined in the tackle hug that followed. Xeal knew that this wasn’t how the sons and daughters of a noble were expected to behave, but he didn’t care as he embraced the four of them as they each tried to talk over their siblings. Instead, he just smiled as he tried to work out what each was saying as their mothers came over and Dyllis was the first to speak as she took control of the situation. Xeal could also tell that she was using a bardic skill to calm people as she spoke soothingly.
“Calm yourselves. Father will spend some time with all of you, but he can’t even hear you over each other. Now Xin called out first, so let him speak please.”
With that the four children quieted as Xin smiled before speaking once more.
“You’re staying for at least until after Elly’s birthday, right, Dad?”
“That is the plan, though I will still have other duties that may need my attention between now and then, so I might not always be around all the time, but I should be at least half of the time.”
“Will you share stories about battles in the war with us?”
“Xin, that isn’t something that you should worry about at your age!” interrupted Lingxin.
“Mom-”
“Xin, your mother is right. Rather I will tell you all about the city that I have been rebuilding after a battle and how great it is to see something new rise from the destruction.”
“Will you take us there someday, Daddy?” asked Maki.
“I would hope so as it will be one of the cities of Nium. Though it may have to wait until you all can take care of yourselves a bit better, as it is a rougher city due to its proximity to the wild lands.”
“I am going to conquer those lands with Vicenc one day,” declared Enye’s son and Xeal’s firstborn, Xander, full of confidence.
“Nuh uh, Daddy will first!” shouted Dyllis’s daughter, Ellis, as she shook her head.
“Dad is busy with other stuff,” retorted Xander.
“Now, now calm down,” cut in Xeal. “Xander, you need to worry about becoming strong before you declare you are going to conquer anything. Ellis, I have no plans to personally conquer all of the wild lands in this world. Rather I think letting the four of you do so when you are ready sounds better. Though only if that is what the four of you want to do as it will be hard and dangerous work and I will stand in all of your way if you don’t meet my standard.”
“Do our mommies all meet your standard?” asked Ellis.
“Not for the dangers I face, but I haven’t had a chance to really see what they are capable of.”
“Which is something that we are looking forward to showing Daddy,” commented Enye as she looked at Xeal in a way that said she was still waiting for her kisses.
“Perhaps I should just ignore the war for a year and spend that time with your party,” quipped Xeal. “It would certainly be less stressful, at least for me.”
“My husband might feel betrayed if you did that,” commented Queen Nora as she came over to join the crowd. “Though, if you wished to simply use your abilities to tip the scales in crucial battles and stop actually going through the hardship of the march, I could see a nice middle ground being formed.”
“Perhaps, but that is something that Victor and I can discuss when he visits for Vicenc’s birthday. For now, I just want to enjoy the rest of today with my family before taking care of other business for the next two days.”
Queen Nora nodded at that as Xeal switched his focus back to his children and hearing about all of the things that they had been learning about since his last short visit. Like this the rest of the day passed and Xeal enjoyed a night with most of his wives next to him for the first time in a long time. Though when the following day arrived, Xeal found himself spending the day with Princess Lorena as she removed the maid attire and dressed in casual clothing, as she insisted that their day be spent in the gardens. While these gardens weren’t nearly as expansive as the royal ones, or even the ones in Hardt Burgh, they were still extremely beautiful thanks to the work of a few forest dragonoids. With a mix of the water, earth, poison, nature and celestial elements, they were among the rarer of the dragonoids. Though, Xeal felt that all of the dragonoids were rather rare as even a dragon of a pure element was hard to find and most of the dragonoids had ancestry that touched all ten phoenixes. It was just that the amounts could be so miniscule that the extra elements failed to manifest in noticeable ways.
Still, as Xeal took the time to enjoy his estate’s gardens for the first time in months, he could see the work that had been put into it. Though the progress on the actual palace that the dragonoids were insisting be built was slow, due to the needed skills and materials. Especially as the ongoing wars were reducing the amounts of quarried stone needed for such a building. As such, only the outline had been laid out as the rest was waiting on the materials and for Catriona to be ready to attempt to reach orichalcum rank as an architect.
“It would be nice if you were to at least keep your attention on me with so little time left to gain your favor,” commented Princess Lorena as she caught Xeal spacing out.
“I honestly don’t know how I should respond to that at this point. I feel as if these last 40 hours are little more than a formality and I don’t wish to raise your hopes due to that.”
“At least you care, though it might be easier on Bianca and I if you didn’t. Then we actually might have looked forward to escaping you like you seem to for us.”
“We can see if that is in fact the case if you like.”
“No, we prefer you to be honest with us and yourself, though we don’t know if you are being that.”
“Oh, you think that I am lying when I tell you that I don’t wish to take you as a bride?”
“No, we think that you are lying by telling yourself that you don’t have feelings towards us.”
“No, I know that they are there. Had you and Princess Bianca come into the picture sooner, well you would have likely already given me a child. The problem is that now, letting you in would cost me more than I am willing to risk and while I haven’t shut the door completely, it is not far from it. You both would need to convince Enye and the others to basically demand that I open that door wide if you are to have a real chance.”
“Yet, they are all only here one out of three days at most and are content to leave us in the background when they are.”
“Don’t come to me seeking solutions to your problems.”
“But that is what you do, you solve problems. Though you are right. Instead, could you simply ask master to come visit us to speak for what we can expect once our training resumes?”
“Has Zylah really been leaving the two of you alone when she comes up here?”
“Yes. The last thing that she told us was that if we failed to become your brides in the three years that we have, we would be faced with two paths.”
“Oh, and if you succeeded?”
“I will tell you if you allow me to make one request.”
“Never mind. I will tell Zylah that you both need a reminder of what her training is like.”
“All I was going to ask for was you to let me spend the rest of the day cuddling in the shade.”
“Sorry, but you are still at hand holding or locking arms at the most. My curiosity isn’t worth increasing the odds of falling for you by even one thousandth of a percent.”
Princess Lorena looked at Xeal as she sighed and looked off in the distance as she spoke her next words.
“Before I met you, I was not used to feeling envy for anyone. Sure, there were parts of my life that I didn’t like, but I was a princess and I had about everything that I could ever want. Now there is only one thing that I want and I know that I will likely never have it. So tell me, do I just give up my last bit of hope and embrace the darkness that is so easy to do, or do I hold on to the hope that you will finally give me what I want one day?”
“It is not for me to tell you what path you should walk,” replied Xeal. “But if the one thing you are after is my love, you are only setting yourself up for disappointment.”
“I would like your love, but that isn’t the one thing that I want. What I want is to have your child and for you to treat them the same as you do your other children.”
“You are putting the cart before the horse. You should consider just what it is that you are seeking from such a child and really ask yourself if that is what you would want from your own mother.”
“Xeal, I am a princess, or at least I was. My whole life my value has been based off the potential of who I will marry and the children that I would have with him-”
“I have heard this story many times over, I married more than one princess after all. I highly doubt that I am the right man for you or Princess Bianca, but if you allow yourself to move on, I am sure that you will find him.”
Princess Lorena seemed to want to refute Xeal’s words, but held her tongue instead as she let the topic die and the rest of the day passed without anything Xeal would consider overly noteworthy. Day 245 saw Xeal spending a similar day with Princess Bianca and dealing with her attempts to gain his favor, if only in the slightest. Though beyond Xeal taking the time to emphasize the same points he had with Princess Lorena the day prior, that date simply became enjoying a few meals together as they enjoyed some shopping. This once more reminded Xeal of the need to actually look at doing like most others did in preparation for or after reaching tier-7 and start replacing all of his gear with experience gear.
While the gear that Darefret had given him was great, that was only true for tier-6 players, as it was about as good as having level 180 to 190 mithril experience gear. Xeal knew that his guild members were still a ways off from producing anything beyond mithril-ranked experience gear. However, there were a few other routes to gaining orichalcum, or even adamantium experience gear. The simplest way would be to use the massive pile of gold that Xeal had from looting Ivraba’s capital and paying all of it to a few NPCs in exchange for the gear. This wasn’t a path that Xeal was about to go down, as it would limit his options and before players reached the point where they could make such items, that were on the level of national treasures. Rather, Xeal was thinking of the first clear bonuses of a few dungeons, as it wasn’t uncommon for those to include bound experience equipment that could only be used by the one who had received it.
Decent bound equipment was a blessing and a curse to players, as while it kept thieves away, it was impossible to sell the items. Furthermore, if they dropped due to a death penalty they were often sold back at a high price. Though they were still rather cheap compared to anything else the player could get their hands on to replace them, so most players would pay up. This included the lesser versions of the gear that Xeal was thinking of, as in tier-7 dungeons platinum and mithril-ranked bound experience gear was relatively common. That was to say that one out of a ten clears would produce at least one piece of such gear, with each dungeon usually having around 10 such items that was unique to it. This depended on just what kind of gear it was, as some were geared towards armors, weapons, or accessories. There had even been one dungeon that had given out a special glider in Xeal’s last life.
With Xeal closing in on level 225 and wanting to take a break from the battlefield, he started to think over what he could remember from his last life. Thinking of the dungeons that would work for his needs and the levels needed to challenge them, Xeal realized that there was only one that made sense and it would be difficult. Not only was the dungeon Xeal had in mind not in Nium, it would require him to be the MVP of a 100-man team to acquire the full set of armor that he would be after. That said, it was one of the top 100 armor sets that had ever been found in dungeons and that jumped to top 30 if you got rid of any spellcaster-class armors. While it still fell short of what players could make in Xeal’s last life, that wouldn’t be true for another 13 years of ED time, at least by his last life’s standards.
It was this thought that remained on Xeal’s mind as day 246 arrived and King Victor arrived to celebrate Prince Vicenc’s fourth birthday. Normally this would be a national holiday in Nium, but with the war raging it was just a side note mixed in with everything else that was going on currently. Rather, the thing of note was that King Victor was not in the capital and that alone had the guard raised against a possible move from the inside. While this was unlikely, Xeal could see the Mercers, or even Victor’s brother, Valentine, making a move during this opening. While his brother had been relegated to a position in the remote regions of Nium since the duel that took place between Xeal and him, both King Victor and Xeal knew he still had allies. Particularly those who distrusted and feared the rise of players in their world and what it would mean in the long term.
To make matters worse, the recently rejected ceasefire offer from Paidhia had given this group a new life, as to them such a deal was ideal as it would allow Nium to focus on consuming Habia. They didn’t see the full picture on how this would only slightly reduce the burden on Nium, as most of the stronger players attacking from the Paidhia side would join Habia. With this Xeal and his wives were under a fair bit of pressure for him to marry Princess Lorena and agree to the ceasefire for the good of Nium. Thankfully, that pressure was not as effective as it could be due to their ability to avoid it by just not being around. Kate had been the one to deal with it the most and with her ability to scare them with just how much she knew, as she became the posterchild for their fears, she also shut them up rather easily. With all of this going on, Xeal found himself seated with King Victor just after lunch on day 246, as they needed to have a conversation to address much of what was before them.
“Nora says that you may leave Nium to its fate with the way things are going. Xeal, tell me what is going on that the one who has influenced the current state of things the most is ready to just walk away?”
“That is a bit of a mischaracterization of what my intent is. No, I am just thinking that my presence on the battlefield can be just as impactful if I were to only appear when needed and not move with the army. With so many of my kind having reached tier-7 and that number only growing each day and the wars breaking out elsewhere, I am more useful as an unknown.”
“Will the orcs and beast-men be willing to follow orders when you are no longer there?”
“What!? Victor, why would you even worry about such a thing?”
“Xeal, you are the leader of both groups and with the orcs in particular, they follow the words of Bula and hold her in reverence. If you leave, won’t she leave as well?”
“They follow my word and she will be just as capable of relaying the information from her visions when away from the front. Were I to walk away completely you might have some issues, but as long as I am still making an appearance when they are fighting in a major battle, things will be fine.”
“Alright, just what are you planning to do? I need to at least be able to spin this as you’re taking actions to improve our odds in the war.”
“I will be obtaining better gear for myself and I might check things out in the subterranean realm with Enye’s party.”
“Are you suddenly going to return with the dark elves or some goblins as allies? Xeal, you need to give me something realistic to work with. Especially with the calls for me to force you to marry Lorena and end the current war with Paidhia.”
“Victor, I am not telling you my plan as the fewer who know the better. Just tell them that I have one and that you trust me. Sometimes, the best answer is to not give one.”
“I can give you until the end of the year. That is about four months. After that you will be expected to rejoin the main force.”
“I’ll take it. Now let’s get back to celebrating your son’s birthday before our wives start to worry that our talks have gone poorly.”
With a troubled smile on his face, King Victor spoke before Xeal could stand.
“No, that will be when I tell Enye that she needs to allow Lorena and Bianca to marry you if the war starts going against us. You didn’t get the message, but Habia is offering a similar deal to what Paidhia is right now. If we accepted it, you would gain dominion over the lands directly next to the center of the continent on three sides, with the Bexley House retaining the control in Nium’s current lands. While there is a public outcry for you to accept Lorena as a wife, behind the scenes it is Bianca that has more support, as taking that land without any bloodshed is extremely appealing. Especially as if we accepted it right now, we could secure the northern part of Paidhia with almost no resistance and force them to give up more.”
“Is that what you would like?”
“No, as it just sets up a war for my son to fight. I am with you in wanting to put an end to all wars, though I am willing to go a fair bit further than you are from what I can tell.”
“You would sack a city just to send the message that not surrendering is a terrible idea and it would work. At least if I wasn’t here, as I make it so such an action would have the result of being used as a rallying cry against Nium and FAE for being truly evil. Abysses End would stop at nothing to leverage such a move against us and I would have to distance myself from you and Nium at that point else FAE would fail.”
“Your kind can be so naive at times. War is not meant to spare the common folk like you seem to strive for and soon you may find that you are forced to kill them on the field of battle.”
“What do you know?”
“Habia is planning to send ten million or so of their commoners, to defend the area that was where the Habia and Paidhia border was before the war. Now tell me, which do you want to deal with now, marrying Bianca or killing at least half of that number?”
“Is that it? Victor, that ten million won’t even see battle if they remain as a defensive unit as I will just not attack them.”
“So, Habia starts to set up units of a million commoners wherever you could invade from to keep you from doing so.”
“We both know that such a thing is impossible as fields need to be tended and if they conscript too many it will cause them to crumble from within. No, they will accept controlling our path of invasion as a victory and we will just have a much harder battle in front of us. Besides, I have made sure that Nium’s army not chasing those who flee has been spread far and wide in both Paidhia and Habia, to counteract any human wave tactics involving your kind.”
“Xeal, for your sake, I hope that things work out that way. Now I believe we should return to the others like you suggested a moment ago.”
Xeal just shook his head as they returned to the party and they enjoyed the rest of the day as a family. Though Xeal did steal a moment alone with Kate, to ask her to find players who would fit his needs for the dungeon raid. He needed them sooner rather than later, as he would need to develop a certain amount of rapport with them before tackling a 100-man dungeon with them. If all went well, this group would appear to be getting ready for a mission related to the current war rather than a dungeon raid.
With that settled, day 246 came to an end and day 247 saw them celebrate Xander’s birthday and King Victor returned to Nium after lunch that day. Following this, Xeal spent days 248 to 252 taking his wives out on dates, before and after celebrating Maki’s birthday. When day 253 and the celebration of Xin’s birthday ended, Xeal returned to his serious mode as he took care of many things from day 254 to 264. These included another date with Princess Lorena and Bianca, as their total time was brought down to 20 hours each. Then there was the first few training sessions with the players that Kate had arranged for Xeal to dive into the dungeon with.
When Xeal had looked over the list, he had just sighed as while Gale, Aalin, Amet, Ignis and Clara were all included on it, none of the others that he would have hoped for were. This included Lucy, who would be taking care of guild-related business while also aiding the defenses at the Nium and Habia border. Even Amser had been unavailable. In some ways Xeal was surprised that Kate had even been able to gather a group of players between level 224 and 225, that fit the needs of a 100-man party. Though to say that they were an ideal group would be a stretch, as Xeal could already tell that his, Aalin’s and Gale’s inflated stats would need to compensate for the lack of skill. Still, Xeal figured that he could get a clear with this group, as he made sure that they were all ready to follow orders. Though none of them knew exactly what they were getting themselves into yet.
This training saw all of them, to include Xeal, reach at least level 225, at which point Xeal made sure that they all started to dump experience into experience items or combat companions, to avoid reaching level 226. For the precise clear that Xeal was going for, he would need to make sure that everything was perfect as there were different prizes for different clears, or at least that was a leading theory from Xeal’s last life. Though the evidence to support it was rather extensive, as there had never been a max-level team who got the first clear of any dungeon mode and received anything like the rewards a minimum-level team did. Though it would only be around a 15% difference from what was known, as once the first clear of any mode was complete, no other could gain that clear again. This left many to wonder what amazing items had been lost, due to the team that cleared it not being at the minimum level when clearing it.
At the same time that Xeal was training with his raid party, the rest of his party, save for Lucy, was doing the same with Enye’s party. Daisy and Violet in particular seemed to be enjoying this arrangement when the groups returned to Cielo city every day and chatted about the day’s events. While it was clear that Dafasli and Bula were both making progress on getting close with Enye and the others, it was clear Daisy and Violet had a better connection. At the same time Rina and Alea continued to interact with them, but in a way that was free of the underlying tension that wishing to court Xeal brought with it. This only reinforced the reality that Xeal saw forming as time went on and reality shifted. Though if what Xeal was envisioning came to pass, it would turn into a rather interesting situation as the ruler of the elves, dwarves and orcs would be three women that at one point had been in his party. Though the fact that they all also at one time would have considered him as a possible husband might cause things to be slightly awkward.
The current plan was really to see if they could make the final push into the area of the subterranean realm that was below the Vault of Ucnuc and hopefully find the blacksmith that Xeal hypothesized was there. This would also be a great test of what Xeal saw as his planned final party, as other than trading Rina and Alea for Queen Aila Lorafir and possibly seeing Bula and a few others leave them, it would essentially be it. While Xeal hoped that they would occasionally have a few others join them, he was looking forward to it being basically just him and his wives and friends once the war ended. However, Xeal didn’t let himself dwell on this image, as he knew that there were several things that he needed to get through before he could enjoy such a future.
Day 265 brought with it Eira’s birthday and Xeal enjoyed spending some time as just the two of them. Though for a change she had him chase her as she tried to avoid him, only for her to be cornered in about ten minutes. After this they celebrated with everyone else and just focused on enjoying the little bit of time they had left before returning to the reality of the war. This was followed by Ellis’s birthday celebrations the next day, as the last of Xeal’s children in ED turned four years old and with that fact, Xeal couldn’t help but look at Eira and think about Austru as well. Both were waiting to bear him children until one thing or another was taken care of and while neither of them would say it, Xeal knew both were wanting to have a child of their own.
When day 267 arrived, it was time for Xeal and everyone to return spending their days and nights away from Cielo city for the most part. For Xeal this meant the continuation of the training with his dungeon party, while also handling a few things that needed to be taken care of before Nium’s invasion force left Chillguard. These included a meeting with the leaders of the beast-men and orcs, as he let them know that he would be away from the battlefield. Though they each had members of FAE assigned to them that could reach him in case of something happening that demanded his attention.
Following this meeting, Xeal spent the rest of day 267 and 268 going over the plans moving forward with Casmir, Caleb, Leaena and Felicius. The four vice guild leaders would have a larger role to play while he was away, as they wouldn’t be able to have him handle any of the issues that arose like he had on occasion. Xeal also expected that they would find their words challenged more often without him around, as his status as a duke was enough to get others to step in line on its own. That said, Xeal didn’t expect any major issues to arise as the army pressed forward and focused on reaching the dwarves.
(*****)




Morning October 14 to Evening October 18, 2268 & ED Year 7 Days 269-283.

It wasn’t only in ED that things returned to what had become the new norm for Alex since the start of the war in Nium, as he resumed only having a few hours offline each day. At the same time, the rest of the house was in full holiday prep with Halloween quickly approaching. This saw the whole mansion take on a new feel as pumpkins, black cats and other decorations that leaned more towards the cutesy side of the holiday were placed throughout the common areas. At the same time, the outer area of their home was left with a minimal amount of holiday spirit being displayed, as to make it clear that there would be no candy handed out yet again. Once more this fact made Alex sigh as he lamented the drawbacks to his fame and position, as Stacy shut down any such suggestions as a security risk that wasn’t needed. Even though Alex knew that she was only doing her job as his head of security, he couldn’t help look at his six kids and lament the lost memories while wondering if there was any solution. 
When Xeal returned to ED on day 269, he was just in time to watch as Nium’s invasion force resumed their march westward. It had taken over a month and a half to get everything in order, but with no major settlements between Chillguard and the old border between Habia and Paidhia, there shouldn’t be any more unexpected issues. Especially with the second invasion force ready to cut into the heart of Paidhia should Paidhia’s army try to catch Nium’s force in a pincer attack with the aid of Habia. Though, there were still chances that things would go poorly as Xeal left and returned to training with the 99 others who would be joining him to get the first clear on the demonic mode of a particular dungeon.
Such was Xeal’s focus almost exclusively through day 282, as he refreshed his familiarity with Gale, Aalin, Amet, Ignis and Clara, while developing it with the other 94. By the end of this Xeal was just happy that the dungeon that they were raiding wasn’t a void one as while the party had come a long way as a whole, individually they were still lacking. Thankfully the 100-man dungeon he was targeting didn’t lessen rewards for having members of the party die. Rather, even the dying players would get the same completion rewards as the rest of the party, save for the MVP and a few other top-performing players. Although, Xeal wasn’t overly concerned about death with the plan he had for the dungeon, at least if they were able to clear it using his first plan. If things started to drag on and they needed to switch to the second plan, he expected that over half of the players that were gathered would die before they reached the end of the dungeon. This was due to the fact that they would be entering a tank’s nightmare, a trap dungeon. That wasn’t to say that there weren’t monsters, just that said monsters would often take the shape of a chest, door, or even try to pass itself off as a member of the party.
So it was that on the morning of day 283 Xeal led his party to the Nuya Empire, bypassing through Muthia along the way. Xeal just smiled as he thought about the nature phoenix, Eba, and the trip he had needed to take deep into the desert to reach her. Since then, players had really expanded into the desert that was so inhospitable for NPCs, as a whole network of roads and checkpoints had been developed near the many dungeons that dotted the landscape. Put simply, that was one particular thing that Nuya Empire had in an overabundance, as the desert hid more ruins than just the ones Eba had been found in. It had been this feature that had allowed the Nuya Empire to maintain itself in Xeal’s last life as while the players present weren’t about to invade another country for them, they would repel invaders. Especially as the players who were attracted to the Nuya Empire’s dungeons were overall above average when compared to what other countries had on hand. While it hadn’t completely escaped conflict in Xeal’s last life, it had been a mostly peaceful stronghold of Abysses End. This was thanks to it being where the first guild had been founded in Xeal’s last life before Abysses End came in and took it over.
Xeal put these thoughts out of his mind as he led the six-hour trek to the dungeon entrance that lay hidden in the sand. This required them to deal with the same monsters that had made the journey to Eba so hard, only now they were a joke as their levels were laughable and offered next to nothing in experience. Were it not for the time it took to deal with them Xeal wouldn’t have even cared that they existed at this point. Such was the eventual fate of all but the strongest of monsters in ED, as players treated areas that were drastically under their level as simple wastes of spaces if they weren’t being used to develop new players. Even the material that could be gathered from such maps was of little to no consequence to higher-leveled players for the most part. It was only the dungeons that they had lost access to due to their level, that ever had anything that they would be after. It was for this reason that FAE would maintain groups of players from level 100 to level 274 long past when pro players had reached the wall that was level 279. Though these players would be considered part of FAE’s crafting branch as they would have the sole job of obtaining goods from dungeons.
It was while thinking about this and the qualities that made such players valuable that Xeal and his party arrived at the entrance to the dungeon. Surrounded by sand, it was rather unassuming and looked like it was an old waystation, with several benches that were worn from the passage of time. This was one of the first things that separated this dungeon from most raid dungeons, as its entrance was in fact a trap that would only activate if 100 people of the appropriate level were seated on the benches. It was only after finding yourself in darkness that it would select one of the people it trapped to select the dungeon’s difficulty.
As Xeal looked at his group once more, he could see the looks of confusion that were on all of their faces as they looked around. In truth Xeal couldn’t blame them, as it had been a complete accident that the dungeon had even been found in his last life as it was close to another popular level 225 to 229 dungeon. At first it had become a rest station as players passed through to take on the ten-man dungeon, until a group of 100 finally sat down and vanished. To really make things terrible, the group had been made up of 15 different parties and had left 50 of their members behind. This mishmash of players failed terribly and suffered the consequences of failing a trap dungeon due to it. Mainly, rather than the normal reduced penalty for failing or dying in a dungeon, they all suffered the normal death penalty. If they had a revival item attached, it would also work in the dungeon rather than activating after the group completed or failed the dungeon. The only bright side was if the group completed the dungeon, none of its members would suffer any penalties.
Thinking about all of this, Xeal turned to Aalin, Gale, Amet, Clara and Ignis as they were the only ones who were in the know about what they were here to do. With a quick nod from Xeal, the five of them went about getting the other 94 players’ attention. Xeal gave them all one more look before clearing his throat and starting to explain exactly what they were all about to do and what they needed to focus on once they entered the dungeon. Once he was done explaining everything, the whole party took their positions and sat on the benches, as the next thing that any of them knew was darkness. Around ten seconds later Xeal found himself standing in a large round room with the rest of his party as the dungeon officially began.
“Stay still!” shouted Xeal despite having explained as much before they entered the dungeon.
A second later and a system warning and notification was sent to each of them.
(Warning: You have fallen into a death trap dungeon.)
(Notice: You must navigate the ever-changing maze to escape and clear this dungeon. You may each use up to 5 consumable items within this dungeon. All penalties and rewards will be to the group as a whole. If your party completes the dungeon, you all will be rewarded and any dead will be revived with no penalty…)
Xeal wanted to groan at how long this notification was, as it was explaining every difference between a normal raid dungeon and this one. It was also filled with redundant information and that caused one to feel like it was overly repetitive. However, that in itself was a trap as it would cause most to miss things like all resistances were disabled, or things like quick equip skills had a chance to trigger a trap. Really it should have been labeled as a warning and that was just the first trap of many that would be coming their way. Finally on the last line Xeal saw that they were in fact in the level 229 demonic mode of the dungeon as he spoke once more.
“Alright, if you are not done reading and rereading the notification that should really be a warning, raise your hand. Once any of us move it will vanish and we will all have to use our memory to remember what it says, as all abilities to capture images have been disabled and I would rather not use up our uses of consumable items on writing it down. Especially as every time we take it out to reference it, the dungeon will count it against your cap according to what I just read.”
Suddenly as Xeal said that, there were 90 hands in the air as everyone reread the notification, and he was sure most had only skimmed it the first time. Xeal knew that this would be the case, as he hadn’t been able to reveal too much as while knowing that the notice would vanish was one thing, knowing just what it contained was another thing all together. Finally a full ten minutes after they had entered the dungeon the last hands went down and it was time to move and Xeal took point as he activated his enhanced senses. At the same time, Aalin was in charge of keeping an eye behind them as Xeal looked at the ten doors that were before them and sighed. He knew that they would likely enter and exit from all of them, to include the four that were actually monsters. Xeal decided to get the first lesson out of the way as he fired off a dragon’s breath attack at one of these four monsters.
As the attack connected, the door shifted and transformed into a puddle of goo, only for Xeal to nod as Aalin sent an ice spell at the puddle. Suddenly the goo reformed and took the shape of a dozen goblins wielding knives as they charged at Xeal’s party. Attacks kept coming as the goblins were destroyed and reformed many times before they were finally defeated, and Xeal gave the signal for the party to stop attacking. From start to finish no health bar had appeared when it took damage and had it not been for his senses, Xeal knew that the second or third time it had played dead could have succeeded. Seeing that the party was still raring to go, Xeal attacked the three other monster doors and 40 minutes after starting the dungeon, all of them were dead and Xeal spoke once more.
“Now, the conventional way to complete this dungeon would be to split up into ten groups of ten at this point, and then 20 groups of five and then into twos and threes and eventually ones if necessary. By doing that one of us would eventually find the exit and free all of us, but that requires you all to be top-tier players and sorry, but most of you are not that. That method would have us out in two hours tops. Instead we will likely be taking at least 16 hours, or even having to let all of you on VR helmets deal with an unprotected logout. There are likely to be at least 80 paths at any time and only one of them will lead to the exit. With us all together I am hoping that we can explore ten of them before they change on us and so we will have about a one in eight chance to escape each time the dungeon changes. Which, if you read the notice, will be every three hours, at which point we will all be returned to this location.
“Now on the plus side of things, the monsters will not respawn and there should be tons of loot hidden in this dungeon. While it may get frustrating, at least each round should get slightly easier and quicker. That said, all traps will reset and reconfigure after each reset. New paths that weren’t available before can also be added as others are taken away. So, sorry to those of you hoping that we will eventually be able to just run around freely inside of here after we have cleared most of the paths, but that won’t be the case. This is demonic mode and all of you should just focus on surviving while doing your jobs in this party. Leave the direction of us aimlessly wandering up to me and I promise that even if it takes a few days, we will find the exit.”
As Xeal finished speaking, he walked through the first opening that had been blocked by a monster and led his party through the hallway. The annoying part of this was that it was only wide enough for at most four to stand across and still fight effectively. This had forced them to move forward with over 30 rows of players, with those in the back being unable to quickly help those in the front and vice versa. Xeal remained in the front as he acted as the main trap finder, though he would make sure the one who set them off when needed, was rotated through the others present. Like this the party spread out the damage and usage of HP, MP, SP and stamina, as they would only be able to recover any stats once they returned to the first room when the dungeon reset itself. Seven dead ends later, Xeal and his party heard a notification.
(Notice: three hours have passed since you have left the center area. Engaging reset protocol and transporting all surviving participants back to the starting line.)
The next thing Xeal knew, he was back in the first room with the ten doors and he ordered everyone to focus on recovering. So far, despite the dungeon being set to demonic mode, he hadn’t run across anything that could be considered too much for a group of 20 of those present to handle. Though, as it was a dungeon that was designed to be tackled by splitting up, he doubted any of those present would be able to reach any path’s end on their own besides himself, Aalin and Gale. However, seven dead ends was less than the ten that he had been counting on them reaching and he knew that they were in for a long raid. Xeal gave out orders for everyone to start their recovery as he thought over the issues, before calling Aalin and Gale over to him for a discussion.
“Were both of you able to see the traps like I was?”
“I couldn’t see even half of them,” commented Gale. “My senses are great for sensing divine influences and few of them involve any holy magic.”
“My senses aren’t as sharp as yours, as I think your boost is a step above the rest of ours, but I saw around three quarters of them,” replied Aalin. “I would bet that between Gale and I we would see around 80% of what we ran across this time, if you include the monsters. If you don’t it would be closer to 60%.”
“That’s not good enough,” sighed Xeal.
“Good enough for what?” retorted Gale. “Xeal, you aren’t thinking of changing the plan and having us all split up, are you?”
“It would be a 20/80 split, with me having 20 and you two leading 80.”
“No!” retorted Aalin. “Xeal, we agreed to this raid because we would get to be with you for it. We aren’t about to give that up to cut the time we are stuck in here.”
“Let’s just hope that we are able to clear more paths on our next run then. Gale, this next time around I want to see what the members of our party that have a trap-sensing skill can do, so let the healers know that they are going to have a heavier workload this time. Aalin, I won’t split the party yet and I will never have any group operating below 20 as that would be when we would start to take losses, but once monster encounters are rare we may need to switch things up. However, I will switch between your parties if those with trap-sense skills measure up to what I need and we split up into five teams like I am thinking now.”
“Fine, but we are not talking about that until we have reached 100 dead ends,” replied Aalin.
“Agreed,” commented Gale. “Now let’s get ready to let everyone know and hope that we aren’t stuck in here for a week.”
Xeal nodded as they returned to the group, as he thought about what the implications of his party being in the dungeon so long would be. As things were, he was sure that Abysses End was already trying to track them down and knew that they had gone off into the deserts of the Nuya Empire. Though they would likely not be able to figure out that they had entered a dungeon, or if it was just a setup for Xeal to hide their movements by meeting someone and using another teleportation gate network. This uncertainty would buy them a day or two in ED at most, before Abysses End would make a move that Xeal would normally need to be the one to counter efficiently. So, he really wanted to not have this dungeon take more than ten rounds if possible.
Once everyone was back to peak condition, Xeal led them back into the maze of pathways in the exact opposite direction that they had gone last time. As they moved, there was little difference in the number of traps and monsters they faced when compared to the first round. However, the results from those with trap-sensing skills was mixed at best, as they failed to notice anything over a quarter of the time. At the level that they were failing, Xeal didn’t think that sending them out with less than two groups of 40 would be wise, as they would need to be able to distribute the damage that much to avoid too many casualties. Even though Xeal knew that they could lose everyone but him and they would still have a possibility of completing the dungeon, he wasn’t foolhardy enough to think that he could succeed alone. All it would take was for one group of monsters to remain and Xeal doubted that he would have the power to definitely win. The dungeon wasn’t set to demonic mode for nothing and Xeal wasn’t about to take that for granted.
By the time the dungeon reset again they had cleared six paths and Xeal was getting a bit worried about if his plan would work. Still, they continued to use it on the third and fourth rounds of the dungeon, as they tried different pairings and found that there were three players who, when they worked together, could find 90% of the traps. This had allowed them to clear seven paths once more on the fourth round and brought the total paths to 26 explored in the first 14 hours of the dungeon. At this rate it would take 56 hours to explore over 100 paths, but Xeal smiled as he got ready to lead the fifth round, as the number of monster encounters had finally noticeably dropped. Though so had the number of real treasure chests and loot. So, while they managed to get through ten paths, they also benefited less from the round. This trend continued as they finished 11 paths in the sixth round, at which point they took a pause as all those who were using VR helmets logged out for their mandatory breaks.
During these six hours, Xeal found himself with Amet, Ignis and Clara as Aalin and Gale logged out to take care of their daughters while the other four acted as guards for all the logged-out players. While Xeal put the odds of anything happening rather low, he couldn’t rule out the dungeon switching to offence and attacking them during this time. So, he and the dozen others who had VR pods or chambers needed to stay behind just in case. Though they did spend some time just chatting since they had six hours to kill in ED time, as Ignis brought up the future.
“I think I am going to miss times like this once Anna gives birth.”
“Ha, what, you’re not going to be like Alex is and use ED as an excuse to get out of changing diapers?” quipped Clara.
“Hey, I’ve changed a few,” retorted Xeal. “Can’t say that I enjoyed it, but I am not here to avoid that.”
“Sure, and I’m not losing sleep over dealing with that soon,” commented Amet. “Xeal, in four months I’m going to be a dad and in six Ignis will join me. Things are going to change, even if we are planning to live with you until you make the move to the new city.”
“Oh, you aren’t planning to stay in the mansion, are you?”
“We aren’t sure yet, but we aren’t going to want to keep mooching off of you too long after we become parents. Just seems like it will send the wrong messages to our kids.”
“Amet’s right, man,” added Ignis. “Even now it feels awkward to still be living with you after getting married.”
“That’s fair. Just don’t become ghosts in ED.”
“Xeal, we all have jobs to do here,” retorted Clara. “Even if you have taken us away from the day-to-day operations, we still handle a fair bit of the overflow on a regular basis. That said, it is kind of an awkward position as we are more like vice guild leader assistants than our official title of substitute vice guild leaders most times.”
“Do you only want to get paid when you are filling in for someone else?”
“Xeal, that isn’t what I was saying!”
“I know, and don’t worry, as long as you three aren’t blatantly taking advantage of our friendship, your jobs are safe. Besides, your jobs are to stay up to date on guild business in case you need to step in at any point.”
“We know and I wasn’t complaining about the work. It is the ambiguous nature of our jobs as we are set up to step in for Kate, Taya or even Takeshi at times. That puts us above the vice guild leaders who are under them and well, it feels like some of those who are trying to become one of the ten main vice guild leaders have some issues with us.”
“Are Caleb, Lucy, Casmir, Lily, Ihyi, or Friva among those who have been giving you problems?”
“Caleb gives everyone problems, but that has nothing to do with him trying to assert that he is above us. Ihyi is the only one on that list that gives us any grief, but she isn’t the biggest one as she just seems annoyed that we’re making more after she found out our pay rates. Now are those the ones you are looking at making into your senior vice guild leaders with Takeshi, Kate, Geitir and Taya?”
“Clara, you know that I can’t say that, but they are looking like they can handle the most while also fitting their other roles. Though you are right that Caleb still needs to learn how to manage those beneath him. Perhaps I should put him under Lucy and look closer at Saima or Leaena.”
“No, those two are the worst about it as they ride us on our skills being substandard to be seen as proper top players,” interjected Ignis. “Look, we know that we are being dragged along by you and even reaching tier-7 is only thanks to you investing way more than you should have in us.”
“Don’t put yourself down like that. Sure, I have given you all preferential treatment that your base skills never warranted, but that isn’t just because you’re all my friends. It was to prove a point to every other member of FAE and all of ED, that if you all could reach tier-7 through hard work, that anyone could. I wasn’t even sure if it would work, but you all did it and can stand as a success case for what is possible. That more than anything is how we keep selling the slots in our training program and are able to actually get most of those who enter it to listen to what we are telling them. So, trust me when I say that FAE has already earned way more back than we spent on developing you. Heck, Kate would have shot down any but the dragonoid slots had you not all done what you did. As for your current pay, well, you are between a junior and senior vice guild leader, so your pay is as well. Also, once we get to the point of having 110 vice guild leaders, FAE will need more than five substitute vice guild leaders.”
“So, what, are you going to pull your family into those roles, or are you going to just keep paying them to play around like they currently are?” asked Ignis.
“Sorry, but my wives are the only ones that I will let slip into upper management roles. Really, I should fire you for marrying my sister, but I am letting it slide since you were already in a leadership role when you started dating her. Rather, it will be some of those who have great admin skills, but lack anything else that would let them become a vice guild leader. Still, it is going to be a tricky position to fill and while Luna and Selene will fill one of the slots together, I am still going to need to find four more that fit what I am looking for. However, I also have years to do so as we won’t hit the point where we are at the self-imposed cap of 111,111,111 members for another decade at least. Though we should pass 11,000,000 members in the next two years and I will want to have the ten senior vice guild leader positions filled by then.”
“Still find it insane that you think that any single player can be in charge of over 1,000,000 people, let alone over 11,000,000,” commented Amet. “I mean, I get that each would only have ten people reporting to them, but if each had two problems that needed to go above their heads, that would be over 2,200,000 problems for a senior vice guild leader to handle.”
“No, that would only be 20. You have to remember that if a problem is above a direct supervisor’s ability to handle that is their problem too. Also, I expect any problem that the bottom 100,000,000 have, to get handled at no more than three ranks above them. The next 11,000,000 above that level will still have four levels to get through before a problem reaches a senior vice guild leader as well. Once a player is three levels below any leader, they should rarely hear any issues from them. If on average each player has ten issues a year that need to be dealt with by their leaders and two of those make it up one level past their direct supervisor and one gets two levels up, well then that is around 1,110 issues. If that is all a third-level leader has to deal with each year, they will only need to get through three a day to stay on top of things.”
“So, what happens when the average is 20 or 30 problems a year?” asked Clara.
“We find which players seem to be generating the extra issues and get rid of them.”
Xeal just smiled as the other three looked a bit shocked at his response before he continued.
“Look, some players who cause issues are worth the headache, but if they are constantly causing issues and not performing on a level that justifies a bit of extra care they can go. Also, even if they are a top player, I could still see me kicking them out as an example if I needed to.”
“Alright, so what happens when a top crafter starts causing problems to try to get out of their contract?” countered Clara.
“That would be on a case-by-case basis, but they might find that their contract isn’t too friendly to them if they fail to hold up their end of the deal. I mean you all have read your contract’s acceptable behavior and remedial action requirements section, right?”
“Our what?” asked Ignis.
“Honestly, we all just signed them knowing that you wouldn’t screw us,” replied Amet.
“You still should have given them at least a once over. Let’s just say that I could fire you, while also blocking you from playing as Amet ever again if I took the right steps. So, yeah, we might lose a great crafter or player, but they would have to hand over all of their gear and restart from scratch. Sure, they would likely reach the same level eventually, but it would require another guild investing in them or deep pockets of their own to do so.”
“Great, so if I ever want to retire, I will have to start all over.”
“Amet, the contract isn’t that insane. There will just be ED-based earning caps before you need to pay a share to FAE, if you are still making credits from playing ED at that point. Really that is the other side of most of FAE’s contracts. They only hold firm in ED and if another VR game launched there are a few options, but most of our members would become free agents.”
“So, when ED ends, we are all out of a job?” asked Ignis.
“Pretty much, so I sure hope you are saving some of your pay for a rainy day. Though I think we have at least a few decades to build up our savings…”
As the remaining time passed with the others offline, Xeal continued to talk about the guild and life in general with Clara, Amet and Ignis while staying awake. Once those who had logged off returned, it was time for a quick one-hour power nap and they were all ready to go once more as they started the seventh round of the dungeon. They were making a great pace as they had already found their eighth path’s dead end by the time two hours had passed and it looked like they would be able to reach 12 dead ends on this round. This would bring their total to 59 paths explored, though Xeal expected that at least a few of those were repeats.
Still, they were reaching the point where they were just as likely to find the exit as not and as they started to head towards what he was counting as path 56, Xeal was liking what he was seeing. This included more monsters than had been on the last three paths combined and a fair amount of new treasure chests. Like all the other chests, these contained some gold and single-use items that were perfect for setting up traps. Many of these were the same as the traps that the party had been dealing with in the dungeon and actually served the purpose of helping them identify what to expect. Still, dealing with the traps was time consuming at times and sometimes there was no better answer than to simply have a player trip them and heal them afterwards.
Like this they continued to press forward with their stamina continuing to deplete as they did so and if it was anything like the last few rounds, they would all be under ten percent when the reset happened. It was just as Xeal was thinking this that they reached an area that was only wide enough to fit two players across and looked like a long hallway. However, Xeal felt like it was either the exit, or a true dead-end trap that would close on them before crushing them as the walls pressed together. What was even worse was the fact that it could be both and he could only think of one solution with his lightning form disabled.
“Gale, I am going to need you to set up a soul bond with me as I am going in alone for the rest of this path.”
“Xeal, that is just crap and you know it.”
“Gale, this is either an exit or an almost certain death trap. Name another member of this team who can escape almost any situation and I will send them in.”
“Or you can just send one in and if they die-”
“We will not get any answers as it could easily be both,” interjected Aalin. “Xeal, what are you going to do if it is a situation that you can’t get out of?”
“Stay alive until the reset. If my plan works, I might die once when the skill ends, but I won’t die twice while in the trap.”
Xeal could tell that Gale wasn’t happy about him going back to that skill with what she knew it would put them both through. However, all he could do was give her an apologetic look as she finally sighed and responded.
“Fine, but you owe me a real date in reality and thus you owe all five of us the same, so you better get ready to spoil us.”
“Deal! Thanks for giving me the excuse that I needed to get some time with all of you.”
“I should have added a family outing to the price as well.”
“Plan one and get Stacy to approve it from a security standpoint and I will make time for it.”
As Xeal said that, Gale and Aalin smiled while Gale pulled out her blindfold and started to prepare for the soul bond. A few moments later, Xeal had activated the bond with a kiss and was ready to go as he looked at the long hallway once more. Using his enhanced senses, he wasted no time as he entered it and advanced forward as he noticed the slight gaps that there were between the floor and the ceiling along both walls. Yet it wasn’t clear just what would trigger the trap, but if he had to guess it was when he was at a certain point in the hallway, or after a certain amount of weight was applied. Either way Xeal was ready to sprint at a moment’s notice of any movement from the four walls. However, nothing happened until the second he stepped out of the hall. It was then that the floor and ceiling smashed into each other at such speed that Xeal doubted that he would have been able to do more than brace himself before they closed.
Exhaling a breath, Xeal pressed forward as he turned a corner and was met with another long hall with treasure chests lining both walls. Each of these grew larger as the hall progressed and there were metal bars that would block him from moving forward after each pair of chests. In total Xeal saw ten treasure chests, five of which he was sure were traps and five of which would grant him something. He could already see the level 229 monsters that were pretending to be sections of wall, treasure chests and even a few of the metal bars that were blocking his way. As he thought about this setup, Xeal figured that to advance he needed to open one treasure chest in each section, or to open the correct one. If he were to simply guess on each of them, he would have about a three percent chance of doing so for all five.
Still, for Xeal it was almost too easy as he stepped forward and quickly identified which chest was a trap on the first pair and opened the other one. As he looked inside of the treasure chest, Xeal smiled at the mithril gauntlets that were on top of a few dozen golden coins, as the bars rose and he was permitted to walk forward. When he reached the second pair of chests, he could tell that one was a monster and the other was a regular chest, as he opened the real one and found a pair of boots that matched the gauntlets. With them was a bit more gold and a few gems that Xeal put away in his inventory as he moved forward.
The next two chests were significantly larger and this was where a monster was pretending to be the wall behind one of them. That said, the other was also booby trapped and Xeal wasn’t sure if he needed to disable the one trap, or if the monster would attack him while his back was turned on it. As Xeal thought about this, he felt like he really had a 50/50 chance of picking the right one, so he looked for anything else that could tip the scales towards one or the other. The first two chests that he opened were on the opposite side of the hall to where the monster was pretending to be the wall, was the first thought that Xeal got. The odds that it would be three safe chests on the same wall in a row were 12.5%. It was really a 50/50 from the start. Though he could clearly see the chest on the same wall as the first two in the next area was a hidden monster as well. Yet this logic just made Xeal even more wary to choose the chest in front of the monster, as the dungeon would happily subvert such logic to trap a player.
Xeal found himself unable to gain any other clues and figured that he would just have to chance it as while such setups had been reported from this dungeon in his last life, he couldn’t recall the details. Especially as he doubted that any player would even see the monster. It was that thought that suddenly caused Xeal to have an idea as with the whole dungeon being one giant trap, the five-chest setup he was in now was likely one as well. Particularly as he didn’t remember any of such setups leading to an exit. With this thought he let loose a dragon’s breath attack at the monster before charging in. At that, it seemed that every hidden monster, to include the hidden one that was a chest in the second and fourth sections, came to life. Xeal knew that he had just triggered the trap, but he didn’t care as he focused on fighting them with everything he had as he contemplated using one of his five consumables to do so.
Sighing, Xeal tossed out a void grenade at the monsters coming at him from the prior area and just like with the void mines, this saw everything within its radius transported up. With that the monsters were either in a completely new area of the dungeon, or fused with the dungeon itself. Meanwhile, the ones in the next area were stuck behind the still-lowered bars as they seemed to struggle to reach him, as Xeal put his everything into defeating the one level-229 monster that was in front of him and planning for how to deal with the ten that were in the next two areas. With three in the fourth area and seven in the final area, Xeal knew that it was actually better that he had attacked when he did, especially as he was looking at a new path to go down past the monster he was currently fighting.
As he fought, Xeal found it odd that the monster wasn’t leaving the wall to press its size advantage. Xeal would have expected it to try and force him into the hole that the void grenade had made, or against the bars where the other monsters could attack him. Yet it was acting like a wall with arms still, and that made Xeal smile as he saw that there was around 50 minutes until the next reset and Xeal’s boosted stats turned the fight into a relatively easy one. Thus, it was only five minutes later when he had killed the monster and revealed a hidden room that Xeal could tell was the actual exit. However, before entering it he started to kill the monsters in the next area and ten minutes later he had succeeded while using another of his consumable items to toss an electrical grenade. Thankfully, even if he didn’t have his normal immunity to electricity, he could still control it and was able to direct the bolts of electricity to increase the damage.
With those monsters dealt with and 35 minutes left until the next reset, Xeal opened the chest that had been in front of the wall, only for another monster to leap out. As Xeal dodged to the side, the monster hit the other treasure chest and triggered its trap while spilling the contents on the floor. This saw a metal band wrap itself around the monster and force it to try and escape while Xeal started to attack. Needless to say, that fight was quick and easy and Xeal was happy to grab the pauldrons that matched the gauntlets and boots from before. He moved into the second-to-last area and dealt with the monsters in the final area by using a few more electrical spell grenades, before opening the chest in the fourth area. Inside was the pants to the armor set and finally he entered the fifth area and found the chest piece to the armor set.
Just then the bars to the fifth area dropped down once more, as Xeal found himself stuck in the final area of the hall with 25 minutes left until the reset occurred. Sighing, Xeal used his last consumable item allowed in the dungeon and tossed another void spell grenade as it transported the bars and floor elsewhere. Wasting no time, Xeal returned to the hidden room and entered it as he found a puzzle inside and knew that he had to solve it to end the dungeon. Though he knew that a wrong answer would trip a trap and looking at the little holes that lined the walls of the room, Xeal figured it would be some form of projectile and dodging it would be a fool’s errand. That said, as Xeal looked at the eight coins before him and the scales, he just smiled as he knew this puzzle. He needed to find the coin that had a different weight and place it in the slot at the base of the scale.
At least that was what it seemed like was the case. Xeal still double checked everything as he found that the scale would break after a few measurements when looking at it with his enhanced senses. If Xeal had to bet, he only got two uses of it before it would break and so he made two piles of three coins and one pile of two coins. The issue was that he needed to figure out was if he was looking for a heavier or lighter coin, as he had nothing to go on but the scale and coins. Perhaps it would allow a third weighing of the coins to determine which of the last two was the odd one out, but Xeal couldn’t count on it. The more Xeal thought about this, the more he wished that he had more time to think about it as even if he put the two piles of three coins on the scale, it would do him no good. Without knowing if he was looking for a heavy or light coin, all he would do was eliminate the pile of two if the scale said that the two piles’ weight was off.
Suddenly Xeal wasn’t sure that he could know what coin was the right one with just two weighings and instead would need to take a risk. Still, he was thinking as hard and quick as he could on just how few weighings he could make to determine which coin was different. If he put four on each side and then picked whichever pile was lighter and weighed them, it would tell him if heavier or lighter was right, as if they weighed the same the real coins were lighter. It would also let him find the lightest coin after three measurements, but if it was heavier, it would require four measurements to be sure. This dilemma continued until there was only ten minutes left until the dungeon reset and Xeal just sighed as he mentally apologized to Gale as his method only required three measurements. The key to it was that it would also give him a fifty-fifty chance on guessing the right coin if the scale broke after two uses no matter if the coin was heavier or lighter.
First, he placed two coins on each side of the scale at the same time and sighed as the two sides remained level. Next Xeal removed all four coins, but kept two of them in his hand as he took two new coins in his other hand before placing the two sets of two back on the scale. This time Xeal smiled as the two coins from the first group went lower and he knew the fake coin was one of the two new ones and that it was lighter. When Xeal removed the two piles of coins, he was relieved when the scale didn’t break and Xeal took the two coins from the lighter pair and placed one on each side of the scale as the right side went lower. Xeal grabbed the coin on the right as the scale broke and he placed it in the slot at the base of the scale. As the coin sunk in, Xeal felt relieved as he had come up with a method to work with the altered puzzle, as he watched the wall open up and he stepped through as he heard a series of notifications.
(Notice: Dungeon, “Hidden Maze Beneath the Sand,” cleared.)
(Notice: Player Xeal Bluefire found the exit, rewarding him 100 extra gold.)
(Notice: Player Xeal Bluefire has been named the MVP of the dungeon, awarding him the unique experience armor set “Maze Raider’s Pride.” These items are bound to him.)
(Notice: Player Gale Bluefire has been named top supporting player. Awarding her a complete set of experience armor “Maze Raider’s Ambition.” These items are bound to her.)
(Notice: All players will receive one random piece of the “Maze Raider’s Ambition” experience armor set. These items are bound to each player and can be exchanged with the system for a 500-gold bonus for the next two hours.)
(Notice: As a hidden dungeon, none of your names will be recorded for the first clear for others to see. Rather, as proof of being the first to clear dungeon “Hidden Maze Beneath the Sand,” all players will receive a “Headband of Trap Detection” with a unique design.)
(Notice: Transporting all players out of dungeon “Hidden Maze Beneath the Sand.”)
As the final notice came in, Xeal found himself standing back in the waystation that they had entered from as the rest of his party appeared next to him. As they did so, Xeal smiled as he saw all those who had no use for the experience armor piece that they had got, exchanging them as Xeal did the same. Following this, he shifted to checking out the headband that they had all gotten. It had a maze pattern on the side that would be seen by most, and on the inside was an inscription with Xeal’s name and that he was part of the first clear of the dungeon. It was also an orichalcum-ranked experience accessory, though when Xeal looked at the details he had to laugh as it was a special category that only leveled up through dealing with traps. Even as an orichalcum-ranked piece of equipment it was useless to Xeal and most players right now. Though, it had the potential to become one of the most useful items a player could ask for if invested in properly. Xeal still remembered the group of players who had gotten it in his last life and had become better scouts for ruins than most rogue-style players, due to the trap-finding abilities it would gain.
Next, Xeal looked at the “Maze Raider’s Pride” armor set and smiled as he looked at the current crap stats while thinking of the potential that it had. Though he would need to spend a significant amount of his time power leveling it for it to be something to show off to others. As a full set of orichalcum-ranked enchanted armor it would only be beaten out by a few other sets and for Xeal’s build only a custom adamantium armor set would make any sense to replace it with. Still, its current state wasn’t anything to smile at as it looked like a single hit would destroy it and Xeal knew that he needed to be careful with his first few fights. With his plans for the next 80 days already set to take care of this issue, Xeal turned his attention to the rest of the party. As a whole they looked exhausted as he just smiled and skipped the normal debrief as he told them to head back and get some rest.
With that they all activated return scrolls and the expedition ended, though Xeal still had to deal with the backlash from using the soul bond skill. While it wasn’t that bad compared to his experience after the Vault of Ucnuc, it was still nothing to ignore as Xeal felt utterly spent after it was over. Thankfully, with that complete, all Xeal had left to do was send out a few messages to make sure that everything was ready for his next login. After that he simply smiled as he, Aalin and Gale made use of his mansion in Nium’s capital to get some much-needed sleep in before they logged out.
(*****)




Morning October 19 to Evening October 29, 2268 & ED Year 7 Days 284-316.

As Alex stepped out of his VR pod on Monday morning he smiled as with the dungeon raid done, almost the next four weeks were set to be a more manageable workload for him. This meant that he would be able to actually join the others for the morning routine again, as they all made their way down for aikido after their good morning kisses. This was followed by some time with his kids as he ate breakfast and made plans for evening events, which involved dates for all of his wives and the five of them were talking about a family event for Halloween.
Like this each morning passed, as Alex enjoyed time with everyone and knocking off some rust in all three disciplines that he was no longer the most advanced of the group at. Henry had actually become the best at kendo and Mrs. Carter had really surprised everyone at her sudden progress in aikido over the last few months. While she still didn’t have the ability to always overcome the size advantages the men had, when it came down to skill, she was the one who clearly had come the farthest. Though she was still no match for Alex or most of the others, if the match wasn’t strictly restricted to aikido techniques. Meanwhile, Alex’s parents had become the best at swing dancing as they had started to actually go out and do it recreationally a couple times a month as well.
While Alex was able to fall into a routine for the mornings, the evenings were anything but as he made time for one date after another, as well as a few game nights with everyone. First, Alex had taken Sam out as they enjoyed an impromptu night, driving the corvette on a local track that Gido had been able to reserve on short notice. The smile on Sam’s face as she pushed the accelerator to the floor as their backs had been stuck to their seats, had almost made up for the feeling of impending doom that Alex had when he was the passenger.
Next, Ava and Mia had enjoyed a casual dinner together before they attended a haunted house in the area, as they enjoyed screaming in Alex’s ears. That had been followed by a casual drive, as the three of them enjoyed sitting in the middle row in the SUV as Stacy and another bodyguard sat up front. The night after that, Alex had found himself enjoying an evening with Nicole, as they went for a casual walk in a nicer area of town while doing a bit of window shopping. They had ended up enjoying a local Korean restaurant that while small was also delicious, as Alex could tell that it being a small restaurant was to ensure quality more than anything. The next evening was a night out with Kate, where they just enjoyed a play and dinner, as she just enjoyed being alone with Alex.
Sunday the 25th's morning turned into the first of the family activities that Sam and the others had gotten approved of by Stacy. They were headed to one of the larger Halloween stores that had opened for the season and picking out costumes as a family in the early morning when the store was normally closed. Alex had just sighed at the extra 4,000 credits it had cost to arrange this, but he was still looking forward to it. Considering that they would have normally just ordered their costumes a few days earlier, he figured that it would be fun to see his wives interact. He already knew that they were going to be focusing on a theme first and it would be based on what they found for the six little ones. At seven months old, Ava’s and Mia’s four babies were just starting to really crawl as they were trying to chase the four one-year-olds that were always around. This was the first consideration when picking costumes, as they all knew that they needed to be something that the four would crawl in just fine.
“Oh, what about a farm theme?” asked Sam as she pointed to the baby animal costumes.
“No way,” replied Ava.
“We wouldn’t be able to keep the tails out of Aidan’s and Evan’s mouths,” added Mia.
“Nova and Nadia would be right there with them,” added Nicole with a smile. “How about a fantasy medieval theme?”
“We get enough of that in ED,” retorted Sam. “We could look for animal costumes that don’t have tails, or at least not long ones.”
“So, we would have a chicken farm?” asked Ava somewhat sarcastically.
“No thanks, especially as that would force Alex to be the rooster,” added Mia.
“Alright, so no fantasy and no farm. That doesn’t leave many options that work with there being 12 of us,” commented Nicole.
“Superheroes,” suggested Kate. “I mean we might have to get a few of ours from online if we can find six adult and baby options, but I can see at least five options for the kids already and I am sure that we can find at least that many for us in the adult section.”
“OOH, I like it,” commented Ava.
“But we might go for a villain costume,” added Mia.
“Just as long as you don’t try and have any of the kids be villains,” stated Nicole.
“Sounds like we know what we’re doing,” agreed Sam. “Are you good with that, Alex? You’ve been awfully quiet over there.”
“I am just enjoying seeing you all so animated,” replied Alex with a smile. “Just don’t try and get anything that would have the kids wearing a mask and I think we will be good.”
“I think a small eye mask will be fine,” countered Kate. “But I agree, nothing covering the whole face.”
“Alright, let’s get shopping!” cheered Ava.
“Dibs on this one for Aidan!” called out Mia, as she grabbed a costume while the others just smiled.
What followed was 30 minutes of the five ladies working with the kids to pick costumes for them and by the end of it, Evan had ended up with the one Mia had picked for Aidan at the start. The other five had also been taken care of as they moved onto the adult section. For Alex’s part, finding a costume for himself had been easy as there were plenty to pick from. As for Ava and Mia, they had ended up ordering theirs online as the pairing they wanted just wasn’t in store. Thankfully, it would arrive on time for Halloween and if it didn’t, they had picked up a backup plan as well. Sam, Nicole and Kate all picked up their costumes after a bit of a back and forth over who should be each, as Alex refused to even touch that one. Especially as he ended up getting a superhero costume that none of them could pick up a costume that would be their love interest.
With that taken care of, they returned home happily chatting about the plans for the rest of the week as that night turned into a family game night. This had included Alex getting in a round with just Sam, Nicole, Fred, Dan and Amanda of their traditional Halloween game based on the possibility of betrayal. Though when it was Alex that ended up betraying the others due to the haunt, he suddenly realized that the game had lost some of its appeal after his tier-7 tribulation. After that, Alex had found his way to playing a few other games with Ava, Mia and Kate, as he rotated between who he was spending time with for the rest of the night before returning to ED.
Finally, Alex managed to get another date in with everyone but Kate before he returned to ED on the 29th. Though most of these dates were just private dinners in the upstairs dining area and spending some time alone with each of them in their rooms. As for Kate, he had already made plans for her birthday on the 30th that would be acting as their next date that he was looking forward to, as he returned to ED once more.
As Xeal awoke in ED on day 284, he let out a deep breath as he smiled at seeing Aalin and Gale next to him, and just enjoyed the few moments that they had before it was time to leave. Today they would be joining Enye’s party as they explored the subterranean realm, and in particular the area near where Ucnuc and his vampires would have reached had their tunnel been completed. The main issue was that this was a level 230 to 240 area and Enye’s party’s levels were still only in the low 220s. Even Ceclie, who had been acting as their guide, was only level 228 at this point, due to having to babysit them in lower-leveled areas. All said, with Kate and a few others joining in on the expedition, Xeal was looking forward to a good time with all his wives save for Austru. Sadly, she was still stuck in the quest world save for the hour visit she got each week. For this she would coordinate through Vento and most of the time Xeal wouldn’t be there, as it had become focused on her spending time with her sisters, as they referred to one another. Though she would still handle the exchanging of goods that needed to be taken care of as Kate acted as the intermediary for it all.
With this thought Xeal stretched, as Aalin and Gale sighed as they stopped pretending to be asleep and joined him in getting ready to head out. 30 minutes later the three of them were entering Darefret’s forge area as they went to meet up with Enye’s group below. There they were greeted by Kate, Luna, Selene and Ignis, who would be heading down below with them. After Xeal enjoyed a few kisses with Kate, Luna and Selene, followed by talking with Darefret for a bit, they all used the teleportation network that had been set up to head below. This required them to leave one gate and enter another twice, as there was still one network for just the captured mine area and two others for the subterranean bases that they had to use.
Just as the plan was to use such a setup for all the settlements that would be in Xeal’s territory, the subterranean realm was split into a few networks. First was the main outposts that were heavily fortified and fully established through hard fights and continued patrols, that had been handed over to NPCs coming from the orcs and beast-men mainly, though more than a few of Nium’s guards were around as well. Next came the forward operating bases, which were in more tenuous situations and only players were operating out of. Some of these locations would be abandoned on the regular and others were really just where the party in charge of that gate was at the moment. They would use the same combo of advanced return scrolls and teleportation gate that Xeal had used when clearing the vault of Ucnuc, as they continued to explore the depths of the area.
Enye’s party was one of the parties who were in charge of a gate and as Xeal and the others stepped out of the portal they maintained, he just smiled as he greeted his other wives. Once Xeal had finished giving kisses to Enye, Mari, Lingxin, Eira and Dyllis, he smiled as he looked at the current makeup of the group. First there was the rest of Xeal’s normal party, save for Lucy, which had joined Enye and the others when Xeal started to work with the raid party. Though he had yet to hear about how that had been going from anyone, as he was sure that Bula, Dafasli, Daisy and Violet were all working to get closer with his wives while they were down here together. He was also sure that Alea and Rina were doing their best to not kill Ceclie for what she had put them through before they had even reached tier-6. Next there was the four dragonoid women, who had taken over Luna and Selene’s role as bodyguards for Xeal’s wives. Kuri had already headed home after the war in Muthia ended and the four players that Xeal had assigned to Enye’s party before they had reached tier-7, having failed to reach tier-7 in a timely manner, had been dropped as well. That had caused a major need for support that Lucida, Arnhylde, Jinx and Nanami were currently filling.
Xeal had to just smile as he thought about how this party currently had six out of ten of the phoenixes’ marked as part of it. At 26 members it was once more an oversized party that had 13 that were mainly focused on physical combat, with a few of those being able to switch between ranged and hand to hand. Then there were four who were just focused on support and nine that were focused on magic attacks or support, depending on the situation at hand. Though Xeal was worried about the party only having two dedicated healers, even if Gale and Arnhylde were among the most capable clerics in FAE. Bula, Daisy and Violet could all offer a bit of minor healing as well, but combined they would only be as effective as adding an average cleric to the party. Instead, they would need to rely on their overwhelming firepower as they pushed forward. All of that said, Xeal just smiled as Enye spoke as he was letting her lead the way for this expedition as it was her party and she had been the one to be focused on exploring this area.
“Alright, now that Xeal and the others have met up with us, it is time for us to return to searching the area for anything valuable. Xeal will be focusing on leveling up some gear once he reaches level 226 and as such will be attacking from range for the most part. Today is just a short session as we get used to or reacquainted to working as a group, so don’t worry about making a few mistakes. Eira, Rina, if you two could resume scouting ahead, the rest of us will follow behind like we have been doing until now.”
With that Eira and Rina nodded and Enye shifted to rear guard as Lingxin and Mari took point, with Lughrai and Dafasli just behind them. The other three dragonoid ladies joined Enye in the rear as Xeal saw most of the others take up positions in the middle. That was save for Xeal, Aalin, Gale, Kate, Luna and Selene, as they weren’t used to how this party ran. Seeing this, Xeal caught Enye’s eye with a quick look as she realized the issue and continued to speak.
“Xeal, if you could take mid guard so you can respond to either side. Gale, Arnhylde likes to take a more forward position so if you could take one in front of Ekaitza, Lumikkei and Malgroth that would be great. Aalin, Kate, if you could be just in front of Gale that would be great and I think everyone else already knows their normal positions.”
At this they all moved as Xeal held in a sigh, as he could tell that Enye was less leading than organizing the group based on their roles and where they preferred to be. While this was fine for the most part, Xeal could already see a few potential issues with the current arrangement, particularly with letting Arnhylde be just behind the frontline fighters like she was. Still, Xeal didn’t make a fuss about it as he didn’t feel like it would backfire right away and it would be better to judge based on how things turned out as he wasn’t accustomed to this area. Even if he did know more about the subterranean realm than any one present save Ceclie, that was a very different part of it.
As such they made their way into the area that they would be exploring that day without any issues and Xeal smiled as they were in a level 220 area that was beneath the party’s ability. Though that was perfect as they fought the gangs of kobolds that seemed determined to kill them, but had no real hope of doing so. Really, Xeal just sent one dragon’s breath attack at them after another as he avoided direct combat while observing the others. One nice thing about this was how he got to be right next to Dyllis as she sang to activate her bardic performances. While this did cause more enemies to show up as she had first feared it would, Enye’s party had long since turned this into a positive situation as they fought a defensive battle. This involved throwing out caltrops that, despite the rudimentary nature of them, still would cut down on the monsters’ mobility significantly. They also had the spellcasters focused on killing one enemy at a time while the others kept the rest busy, thus allowing the numbers to be reduced much quicker. Add in the support spellcasters creating shields or walls of one kind or another to funnel the monsters into a smaller area and Xeal could see why Enye hadn’t been too particular on their exact positions earlier.
Though, Xeal felt like there was a bit of complacency in their current arrangement, as it left them vulnerable to being overwhelmed if too many enemies came. Once their stamina, MP and SP started to run out, he could see them having to escape through the gate and leave one of them behind to die. As Xeal looked at the group, he quickly realized that Ignis was likely the one who would draw the short straw on that matter. Xeal also suspected that the players who had failed to reach tier-7 in a timely manner, had been placed in the same position before they had been removed from the party. The only other option Xeal could see was Ceclie taking the gate and focusing on escape with all she had.
Once the fight came to a close, Xeal was happy to have reached level 226 as he gained the last sliver of experience he had needed and he switched into his new armor set for the first time. As he had noted when examining it after receiving it, it was flimsy and at level 0 Xeal figured a couple of rocks could destroy it. That, however, was about to change as Rina and Eira switched over to drawing in monsters for them to fight, over having Dyllis sing and pull everything in at once. As the area was mostly clear after the last fight, this turned into a relatively easy chain of fights as Xeal was able to quickly get his armor set to level 100 as a whole like this. At the same time, it had gone from a few flimsy pieces of metal to a proper set of armor and while it still wasn’t up to handling tier-7 attacks for a prolonged fight, it would at least survive a few hits now.
It was also starting to look like what Xeal remembered it had in his last life, as the mix of plate, mail and leather came together to form one of the easiest armors to move in that was possible. This was especially true for the joints that would be like a second skin for him one day. Whatever the material there was, it was only a few millimeters thick and it still was tougher than dragon hide, or at least it would be when the armor’s skills were unlocked. These skills included the ability to create a force barrier that coated the armor and could handle a certain amount of damage before breaking and needing to recharge. Then there was the ability to lock the joints for a few seconds to better withstand a massive blow that was unavoidable, like the hallway trap that had been in the last part of the ‘Hidden Maze Beneath the Sand’ dungeon. Xeal was sure that there were more, but those two had been the only ones that had been public knowledge in his last life. Still, he knew that no skills like those would show up before getting the armor to at least level 130 and he expected that the set would end up with either three or five in total.
However, that would need to wait for another day as it was already time to call it a day and Xeal returned to Cielo city with his wives to sleep. As he did so, he knew that after today they would be spending the next two days in the subterranean realm, before spending a day in Cielo city as was Enye’s party’s normal routine. Though they had agreed to shift it for Xeal’s schedule and it would open up his short login each day in reality to be an admin or miscellaneous task day in ED. He already expected that he would use these to get a fair bit done, both in the main ED world and the quest world that was still on the backburner.
Like this time passed as Xeal fell into a rhythm and each day he focused on leveling up his equipment with around half of the experience he was gaining. Once his gear was level 130, he found that the set of armor was a true experience sink, as the skills on it started to appear as options to level up as well. Only, they were all blank and required enough experience to get them to level 130 before they would be made available to know which skill each was, let alone use them. Xeal just sighed as he knew that this meant that he would need to ignore them for the time being, as he refocused on simply leveling his gear up. Though, he remembered how Daisy and Violet’s bloodline trait would, among other things, return the experience he needed for each level to a normal amount. Still, he would need to marry and embrace them to activate it and after that it would only count if all three of them were together when experience was gained.
In addition to spending all of the time in the subterranean realm, Xeal still found himself being called on to make an appearance on the battlefield every few days. Thankfully, he was able to work this in while the party was resting between fights, for the most part. Especially with his quicker recovery time, he could recover, slip away, spend 15 minutes on the battlefield and return just as the others were done recovering. Though, he would then need to recover once more after this and more than once he ended up needing to support the battle for a few hours, at least before returning to them.
On day 307 Xeal reached level 227. It was on day 308, as he found himself starting his login with his wives around him, that Xeal decided that he wished to address the conflict within him surrounding Daisy and Violet. As such, he let them all know that he wished to have a discussion after breakfast before they got out of bed. There were a few murmurs that they should just have it while they relaxed in bed for a bit longer, but the rationale that it was too serious for such an environment won out. So it was that after breakfast and a bit of time with their kids, Xeal found himself sitting with the ten women. Even Kate had postponed her normal workload to stay for the discussion. So, without mincing words, Xeal spoke to them as bluntly and honestly as he could.
“I am starting to fear that I will allow Daisy and Violet in for the wrong reasons and I feel like the more time that passes the greater the temptation to do so will become.”
“You are speaking about marrying them for their ability to make you stronger over actually loving them, right?” asked Eira, as she gave Xeal a look like she wasn’t even the slightest bit concerned about it.
“Essentially. I know that I am breaking my own rule about letting things progress before the war ends, but-”
“All in favor of just holding a wedding today and locking them in this room after, say Aye,” quipped Eira at Xeal’s reply. “Huh, I don’t see any hands. Must mean that none of us will let you simply marry them for their power. Besides, you have never been good to holding to timelines once you decided you actually want to move forward with any of us.”
“Xeal, what Eira is trying to express is that we have already discussed this exact scenario,” interjected Lingxin. “We are all fine with you courting them as they have long since gained our approval for that, but we won’t approve marriage without knowing that it is a good fit.”
“That means that all of us must feel comfortable with them as well,” added Mari. “Part of me thinks that we should shift their focus from you, to the possibility of marrying Xander or Xin instead.”
“That would just be awkward,” commented Gale. “I mean they are practically helping to raise them already.”
“Once more you speak of the disconnect between your world and ours,” offered Dyllis. “With Daisy and Violet being a long-lived race and all of Xeal’s children having dragonoid in them, the current age gap will seem less important in a few decades. Especially if Xeal and FAE really do secure a large amount of the waters of youth in the future.”
“Let’s ignore the sensibilities of this world,” cut in Kate. “I would certainly prefer it if none of our kids married anyone who was helping to raise them to the level that Daisy and Violet have been. So, if it is between Xeal or one of his sons, I think that we would see a stark division between our views on such a matter.”
“Yeah, Daisy and Violet are great,” started Luna.
“But we would rather they be sisters than daughters!” emphasized Selene.
“So, we say that Xeal should start really courting them now.”
“And if they hit it off, we should all welcome them with open arms.”
“Even if we are slightly hesitant.”
“As that is what we all did for each other.”
“And what they are trying to do for us right now?”
“So, just relax and trust Xeal to know his own heart.”
“The problem is that we all know his heart as well,” commented Enye. “It is one that seeks love like a man dying of thirst seeks water.”
“So, what, you think that he will end up loving anyone who loves him?” asked Aalin.
“No, he has proven that he can shut others out and even withstand the advances of others who wish nothing more than to love him and be loved,” replied Enye. “However, once he opens himself to that love he might as well just propose to them right then.”
“Am I really that bad?”
There was a long pause as Xeal saw the awkward look on all of their faces, before it was Aalin that finally responded.
“It can seem so at times and when we look at the evolution of the situation around Bula, it is clear that you can question your feelings for someone. However, you never do so with any of those who you have committed to and you have yet to not marry any that you have started to actually let in, in any meaningful way. Can you honestly say that you wouldn’t marry Lorena or Bianca if we were for it?”
“We love you, but sometimes you can be too easy to predict,” commented Gale. “It is why we are interested to see if you can actually get involved with Levina and keep her as just a mistress. Though we aren’t sure which result we would rather occur with that situation either.”
“Xeal, you are aware that since reaching tier-7, we all have been less open to adding any more than just Aila as sisters,” started Mari. “We will still allow Daisy, Violet and the others who got a foot in the door before then a chance, but that is it. So, here is a question for you. Do you really want more than the 12 wives you are already set to have?”
“As I told Kate already, I think Daisy and Violet are the only ones that have a significant chance to join you all right now. I will admit that I am unsure how the situation around Levina will develop and what that might mean for Ekaitza, Lughrai, Malgroth and Lumikkei as they could become mistresses as well.”
“Don’t forget Bianca and Lorena,” interjected Enye. “I am well aware that could be what they become to you as well.”
“Enye, no,” retorted Xeal. “The only reason those five could become mistresses is due to the fact that love and marriage as we see it are truly foreign concepts for them.”
“We know,” commented Dyllis. “We just think about how you have come to having 11 wives and one more who is sure to join us and can see you getting a mistress opening the door to others who we would not accept. It is why we aren’t letting you move quickly with Levina, as we would rather that not occur until after you have retired and another 50 years has passed.”
“Levina has waited this long already,” added Lingxin. “50 years should feel like-”
“An eternity now that she has found someone to love,” interrupted Eira. “Look, I am not going to say that you should embrace her today or anything, but once you reach tier-8 you shouldn’t put it off too long.”
“Eira!” shouted Mari. “You know that the rest-”
“Of you are on the ‘wait as long as possible’, except Kate who is on the ‘he should marry her regardless’ side of things,” interjected Eira. “Sorry, but I would hate to see Xeal play with her feelings for that long and as the one who honestly had the hardest road to be here, I think I know a bit better about what that feels like. Even with Xeal assuring me that it was a when not if thing. It is why I think he should just start courting Daisy and Violet now and get it over with, and he shouldn’t open himself any further to Bula unless he is ready to marry her. Now, Xeal, stop being indecisive and tell us what you want to do!”
“That is a hard thing to do as the things I want seem to conflict too often. Hence the indecisiveness in this area of my life while I preach not to hesitate to others. So, what I want would be for you all to tell me that you won’t just accept me courting Daisy and Violet, but will accept them fully when I inevitably fall for them as I have all of you.”
There was a long pause as the ten women all looked at each other before Enye finally spoke.
“Xeal, if you would give us until we next head to our home in the capital to talk with Austru we will give you an answer. Until then, please just accept that we need some time to decide just how to handle you wishing to be given permission to marry them before courting them, as it could change our positions on the matter significantly.”
“Fair enough, but you will need to do the same with Dafasli and accept that will be the case with any that you approve me courting, save for Bula as she is a bit of a special case. That said, their ability to get along with all of you is an important part of a successful courtship as well.”
With a nod from Enye and the others the discussion came to an end and they all returned to their normal activities. This continued until Xeal found himself being given permission to court Daisy and Violet, with day 314 set to be their first official courtship date. As Xeal met them both in the garden of his home in Cielo city, he could see them smiling and chatting happily. When they noticed him, Xeal watched as they both suddenly started to show a bit of nervousness as he approached and Daisy was the first to speak.
“Thank you for finally giving us this chance, Xeal.”
“Daisy, you and Violet need to relax. I am the same man that you have followed into battle for years now.”
“Easy for you to say,” retorted Violet. “We have been hoping to take this step for years and well-”
“You are afraid that you will mess it up on the first date and that I will walk away from it having closed the door that I just opened.”
“No, we know that you will give us at least a few chances due to how long we have been around you,” stated Violet. “The main worry we have is that, well, this will create an awkward situation in the long term as we have started to get used to half courting you.”
“We can’t simply remain in limbo forever and if that is all you are worried about then I don’t see why you would be so nervous.”
“Xeal, we can’t help it,” commented Daisy. “I think that you have just forgotten what it is like to wonder how the other side will see you, if you ever even knew it.”
Xeal paused as he thought back to when he first started dating Nicole in his last life and the feelings he got in those early days. While it was a bit difficult to remember, he could still remember the early days when he was just fumbling around as he tried to figure out how he should act with her. To call that time in his life awkward would be an understatement, yet he smiled while he thought about how that was such a simpler time as he responded.
“You’re right, it feels like a lifetime ago since I had to figure out how to act with a lady that I liked who liked me back. Still, don’t worry. If anything, I will just see an honest misstep as proof that you are real and worth my attention. Now I believe that we should go ahead and get going, unless you two just want to stay in my garden, where my wives can see everything that occurs between us that is.”
Daisy and Violet just smiled as they took both of Xeal’s arms that he had offered them, as they started to walk to Cielo city where they would be teleporting to Anelqua. It was there that Xeal planned to spend the day with the pair, as they started the morning with a light meal from one of the restaurants that Queen Aila Lorafir enjoyed going to when Xeal visited. So, when Xeal entered with just Daisy and Violet, the staff was familiar with him and was able to pick up on the circumstances rather quickly. While Xeal felt a bit off for going to a location that meant more to another of his ladies, it would also ensure that the elves would know that he wasn’t going behind their queen’s back with the pair. While Xeal wouldn’t call elves prone to gossip, their enhanced hearing came with them hearing many things regardless. It was why the spell that Queen Aila Lorafir always cast when she wanted a conversation to be private, was so popular among the elves.
“So, once we are done here, what do you have planned for us?” asked Daisy as they sat at their table.
“What is this plan you speak of?” quipped Xeal.
“Don’t tell me that we are playing the whole day by ear,” responded Daisy.
“That actually might be nice,” commented Violet. “Much better than trying to worry about where we need to be next at least.”
“But not very wooing.”
“Is that what you are hoping that I would do, Daisy? Woo you and Violet today and make you both fall deeply in love with me, or at least more so than you both currently are? Sorry, but I think that would be going a bit overboard today. So, instead I will do what I do on most first dates and simply enjoy a day with both of you, as we get comfortable with each other and see if we really wish to be more than just friends.”
“Is it so wrong for me to want to be wooed by you?”
“Daisy, are you saying that Xeal hasn’t already done so?”
“Violet, you know that he has, but that has been from his actions in general. I want him to actively try and want to woo us for once.”
“Sorry, but everything that I can think of that would have that effect isn’t an option for one reason or another right now. After all, I can’t be seen doing anything too extravagant during wartime and right now I am supposedly focused on something that will catch Habia and Paidhia off guard when they fully commit to a counterattack.”
“So, what are they going to think when word gets back that you were spotted on a date with us?” asked Violet.
“They will just be annoyed that I feel like I have the leeway to be here at all. Though they could possibly decide to try and launch an attack, or pull off something that they had ready to go already in hopes that I wouldn’t respond.”
“Or they could do that just to ruin your date,” countered Daisy. “It all depends on what they are trying to do. As if they want to wear you down, that is what I would do.”
“Oh, and if you were trying to play the long game and hope to slowly overwhelm me with too many things to handle, what would you do?”
“Hmm, ensure that you were involved with as many women as possible and therefore leave you alone when you are seen courting anyone,” replied Daisy after taking a second to think. “Are you saying that we are helping your enemies by wishing to become your wives?”
“Only if you decide that you wish to be high maintenance before I have reached level 300. Daisy, Violet, I am sure the others have told you already, but just the fact that I am opening myself fully to both of you means that I am seriously considering marrying you. This date and every one that comes after this but before we are married, are more of a formality to make sure that we are compatible and to work out the areas that we aren’t. If you are worried about me wooing you, well I am sorry, but while I will certainly attempt to do so eventually, I will not try and force it either. It will likely be more of a spontaneous moment than anything.”
“Nope, after what you put us through during those noble marriage interviews you owe us some wooing,” countered Daisy. “I will not ask that you do so every date or even often, but if we are going to be two of 14 or more wives, I think expecting to be wooed once in a while isn’t too much to ask.”
“Daisy, you are putting me in an awkward position,” interjected Violet. “I know that you want to be wooed, but I could care less as I just want what Xeal is freely offering and you know that Dad will never approve of us not marrying the same man.”
“Let’s not have this become an argument,” stated Xeal. “Instead, let’s just see how the day progresses.”
With that the conversation shifted topics, as they enjoyed their meal before heading out and doing a bit of shopping. Xeal could tell that Daisy and Violet were both still a bit unsure of how they should act and the awkwardness from the prior conversation seemed to be holding on as time went on. So, on a whim, he decided to see if Queen Aila Lorafir would allow them to use one of the private ships that were docked in her family’s private harbor. To do this he sent a message to Aalin and Gale asking for their help and about an hour after lunch he smiled as he was walking with Daisy and Violet to Queen Aila Lorafir’s palace. There they were met by the captain of the ship that they would be using, as Daisy and Violet seemed confused as they had expected the date to be coming to a close when they had headed to the palace. Yet instead, they were guided to one of the smaller vessels as they got their first look at the underground harbor.
It really was a sight to see the elegant designs of the elven ships, that were mostly meant for comfort and speed over battle. Though, like all ships in ED, they were all still outfitted with defensive weapons to a certain extent. Even if the one they would be riding today only had a few net launchers and an enchantment that could make it move as if it was a speed boat for a short while. It was simply too small and with a crew of only three, it wasn’t meant to last in a fight. As such, escape was its focus. At only 30 feet long, it was barely large enough that it could make a long journey out at sea, though it wouldn’t survive the first sea monster that caught it without a tier-8 onboard. Thankfully, all they were looking to do was enjoy a short trip along the shore as they enjoyed the view and chatted.
Thus, without much fuss, they were off as Xeal found himself between Daisy and Violet as they sat on the deck of the ship. As was normal, this meant that both of them were absentmindedly caressing him with their tails as they snuggled up to him. As they did so, Xeal couldn’t help but think about the comment that he had made about the true kitsune and how it had first caused Violet to look at Xeal in a different light. Yet the best Xeal could draw from was a few six and seven-tailed fox monsters that existed in a few dungeons from his last life. There were even a few rumors about eight-tailed foxes in the lost court, but Xeal had only ever known bits and pieces about that area. The only real thing Xeal had to go on was the lore of the world and how it was more often right than wrong. Though he supposed that he could press Watcher, Levina, or even Freya for some information and get something to work off of.
However, Xeal knew that anything involving the nine-tailed fox would likely require him to reach tier-8. So, he let those thoughts pass for the time being as he returned his focus to the moment and the two ladies he was with. As he did so, he decided that now was as good of a time as any to address one of the major questions that he had about the two.
“So, I need to know, is this how the two of you wish to be courted, or do you each wish for time where I take only one of you out?”
“Of course we want some time where we have you one-on-one,” replied Daisy almost instantly. “However, that can wait until you marry us due to our tribe’s traditions and the limited time that the war gives us.”
“What Daisy is trying to say is that we don’t wish to be seen in the same way Luna and Selene are, but we have accepted sharing dates until the war has ended at the very least,” added Violet. “We also hope that we don’t have to wait for the war to end for you to marry us and would be happy to join Eira in bearing you children directly after it ends if things work out.”
“Talking about marriage and kids on the first date. Were I a normal man, this is where I would be running away.”
“Xeal, you aren’t a normal man,” retorted Daisy. “If you were we wouldn’t even entertain the arrangement that we would find ourselves part of by marrying you.”
“It is also why you want me to woo you despite you already being almost sure that you want to marry me.”
“Is it terrible that I want you to make me feel special and remove the last little bit of doubt?”
“No, but I think you might be looking for it in the wrong way. Daisy, you and Violet are special to me, despite my best efforts to resist you at first. It’s the only reason that I am willing to entertain accepting both of you when I think that I already have too many wives. That said, I understand that you both are individuals and want to have your own place in my life and even monopolize me on occasion.”
As Xeal finished talking, he enjoyed Daisy’s smile that she gave him, as Violet snuggled in closer as she spoke.
“All I want is to know that you really do love us. Xeal, we may have used our charm, status, our gift and a bit of help from Chiharu to get you to look our way, but I know that none of that got us to this point. No, if all you cared for was what we could do for you well, you would have more than a few more wives from what I know. So, don’t worry about wooing me as all you need to do for me is say three words.”
“Three words that I will likely say, but not today. I care for both of you and I like you a lot, but love is something that will happen on its own timetable. That said, it is not a race and if I do fall for one of you before the other, well, know that it isn’t something either of you should worry about.”
“Yet we still will,” replied Daisy. “Sorry, but that is just reality, Xeal. I think we would both also feel a bit guilty if you fall for one of us before the other as well.”
“Yeah, we are sisters. We may be different people, but we have always been together and would worry for each other more than rejoice for our own happiness in this situation,” added Violet.
“Thanks for being honest about that and I apologize now when I inevitably hurt both of you by falling for one of you before the other, as I doubt anything good would come from trying to hide it.”
Daisy and Violet just gave Xeal a smile after sighing, and the boat trip continued as they chatted about lighter topics and enjoyed the scenery. Once they returned to the underground harbor in the early evening, it was time for them to return to Cielo city and end the date. Though once it was only the three of them for a moment before they reached the teleportation gate, Xeal leaned over and gave both Daisy and Violet kisses on their cheeks. He then thanked them for an enjoyable first date and let them know that he was looking forward to finding some time for the next one. As they agreed and gave him a pair of kisses on his cheeks, they smiled brightly as they resumed the walk to the teleportation gate.
Days 315 and 316 were once more a return to killing mainly kobolds in the subterranean realm, as they drew closer to the area that Xeal was hoping would have a group of captured dwarves. He still believed that the system would have provided a smith capable of reforging the shattered blade at the end of the Vault of Ucnuc had the vampires been able to reach the subterranean realm. This, however, was something that Xeal could only hope for as the shipments of adamantium he was getting were a constant reminder of King Dorrin Dragonaxe’s stubbornness.
Hopefully an opportunity to readdress this situation would occur once Nium’s main invasion force, that was making slow but steady progress towards dwarven lands, ended the siege of his kingdom. Though that was still months in the future, thanks to the continued interference from Abysses End and other groups that seemed determined to oppose FAE. Xeal couldn’t blame most of these groups as they were simply protecting their own interests as they were based in Paidhia and Habia, and a Nium victory would be costly to them. Turning down the offer of a ceasefire from Paidhia had added to the fuel they were using for recruitment, as they painted FAE and Xeal as power-hungry conquerors.
(*****)




Morning October 30 to Evening November 14, 2268 & ED Year 7 Days 317-364.

With the morning of the 30th came Kate’s 24th birthday, and as such the whole morning was scheduled for her and Alex to spend some time together. At ten weeks pregnant, Kate had already mostly stopped attending swing dancing as well as the other morning events. Instead, she would either stay in ED for an extra hour like Alex when he was on his 22 hours a day schedule, or she would spend it with the kids. Alex still found this side of Kate to be his absolute favorite, as he could never get enough of her being overwhelmed by Ahsa and Moyra. Though the pair had grown frustrated as Kate started to restrict them slightly, as she started to adjust her activities with her little one in mind.
However, this morning Kate would be missing altogether as she and Alex got into one of the SUVs and headed off to breakfast as just the two of them. Though they weren’t headed to a restaurant as they simply enjoyed parking in a secluded location that Stacy had chosen and enjoying the sunrise together. Like this the morning passed as Alex and Kate simply cuddled and talked about the future together.
That evening saw everyone in the house come together to celebrate Kate’s birthday as they enjoyed an excellent dinner. Once again Sofia’s cooking only lost out to her cakes, as she brought out a decadent red velvet cake for them all to enjoy. Though Alex’s favorite memory of the night had to have been when Ahsa and Moyra started to steal Kate’s cake right off her plate. The pair had refused to let anyone separate them from Kate from the moment they had seen her and Alex could tell that they had been upset at not getting their morning dose of her. For her own part Kate seemed to be happy to indulge the pair of them as she soaked up the love that they were showing her.
The following day brought Halloween, and with it kendo was canceled for the day and the whole house was helping to get the gym area ready for the gathering that was planned. Ava and Mia had been the first to suggest the idea and most of the others had run with it, as they invited Aniya and a few others that they had met through her to attend. This had been followed by Alex’s mom inviting more, and Anna and Amanda had added a few others that they had met through the pregnancy groups they had joined. Even Sofie and Julie had invited some of those they knew in the area, when the party had blatantly become for those with kids under three and expecting.
The nursery, conference room and bowling alleys had all already been decorated for the event earlier in the week, and the main dining and living rooms would be handled once Alex and the others logged in. When Alex had asked about how long the guest list was as he helped set up the last of the ten folding tables that card and board games could be played at, he had learned that it was over 50 adults. Apparently, the idea of enjoying a party at a mansion was more appealing than trying to deal with the normal trick-or-treating that most would do. Though, Ava and Mia had asked that all those attending park in the area just outside of the gym and there would be a short trunk-or-treat. Although rather than just candy, it was suggested to also have something baby or toddler-themed added in.
The fact that Stacy would be overseeing a full car and treat inspection before the fun could begin had been the only nonnegotiable term. She had stood firm at the five’s insistence. While it was a tad bit awkward to tell their guests that they would need to let security inspect their vehicle when they had invited everyone, most had been fine with it once the why was explained. More than a few of them had actually sounded happy about the extra layer of security when they thought about it and the fact that while they all knew someone who lived in the mansion, most didn’t know the other invitees. That wasn’t to say that a few didn’t decline to come because of the hassle, but Alex figured it was just part of the cost to do anything resembling being social that didn’t involve family or close friends.
Finally, about 20 minutes after Alex would have normally logged in, the gym was done and he smiled as he looked at it. While it wasn’t something that would scare anyone, it was definitely Halloween-themed with painted pumpkins on each table and other cute decorations everywhere. Though the best part for him was seeing the bit of awe and curiosity in the eyes of the kids, who had been brought up to take part in the decorating as well. Even if all they did was add paint handprints to some of the pumpkins and point to where they wanted a few things to go.
That evening was fun, even as Alex found himself playing host and unable to simply relax like he would have normally. Though he did find some time to play a few rounds of games and chat with some of the guests who he had no hope of remembering the names of. With 27 couples having come, Alex considered it a success, especially as he saw his kids playing with the guests’ kids, which included a few that were already in kindergarten. Though most were two years old or under, as they explored the cardboard box tunnels that had been set up to the back of the gym. These were perfect and had several large holes in the tops that the kids kept popping up through as parents watched them play.
Once the sun had set, it was time for the trunk-or-treat and Alex smiled as he ended up handing out the party favor bags that Gido had put together from the back of one of his SUVs. Inside each was a bag of snack crackers that were perfect for any kid nine months old or older and a nicer toy car. From what Alex could see, the other parents had brought sensory toys, or small board books to hand out with one kind of snack or another. Alex found the mix of kids who knew exactly what to do, those who were figuring it out and those too young to understand what was going on, entertaining to watch.
Following this there was a quick costume parade, as Alex and his family’s superhero theme was put on full display. Though Ava and Mia had the most fun as the costumes they had gone with were those of a pair of redheaded villainesses who were twins and more than a handful to deal with. Especially as they were the kind who were as likely to flirt with you as put you in the hospital from their canon and it wasn’t always an either-or situation. Needless to say, Ava and Mia had plenty of fun with this dynamic throughout the night.
Still, for as much fun as Alex had during Halloween, he once more realized that he felt distant from others and hesitant to make any connections. As much as he hated it, he just couldn’t put away the feeling and fear that others were just kind to him in hopes of gaining benefits from his wealth. This was especially true when the subject of ED came up in one way or another. While Alex was happy to share advice and a few basic best practices that any player looking to turn a profit should do, he disliked how it made him feel like they were looking to get trade secrets out of him. Even when he knew that most were just looking for something to talk about beyond the weather, or saying that it was a nice party or commenting on costumes.
This feeling stuck with Alex over the following few weeks as he returned to the normal routine with everyone else, while accepting that it wouldn’t be long before he needed to resume his 22-hour days. This, of course, included two more dates with each of his wives as he enjoyed getting some time with each of them. He also happily accompanied Kate to her next OB-GYN appointment on the 12th of November, where they got to see their little one at about 12 weeks old. Though, they would need to wait at least another month for things to be clear enough to know its gender with relative surety.
Time in ED was busy in many ways for Xeal, as Enye’s party constantly moved closer to the area in the subterranean realm where he was hopeful to find a smith to reforge the shattered blade. Alongside this constant effort, his fifth wedding anniversaries with Enye, Lingxin, Mari, Aalin, Gale and Dyllis came and went, with him only having the freedom to spend a few hours alone with any of them. However, this was more time than he gave to the anniversary of the founding of Nium which was on the same day. Though that holiday was cancelled for the most part due to the ongoing war that while going well, didn’t seem to have any end in sight still. That said, Xeal did feel guilty as he had taken the time to reduce the time left he needed to spend on dates with Princesses Bianca and Lorena, down to just ten hours each. While he would have rather put it off, he was getting to the end of the time he had available to do so and fulfill the contract that he had signed with Habia and Paidhia regarding the right to surrender during the war.
With less than 100 days left before the term came to an end, knowing that with it, he would finally be able to push them off on others to marry and have kids. Although both were aware that their time and chances were running out, as they tried to act as they always had. Still, Xeal had felt their feelings in the subtle ways they acted around him and the looks that they gave him. Like it or not, he knew both princesses well enough that they couldn’t easily hide their feelings from him and this in turn added a level of guilt to his own thoughts surrounding the situation. While he was forcing himself to keep the possibility alive in his mind and heart, he felt that it was only the fact that he would reevaluate them if they convinced Enye to approve of them, that was keeping him from being in breach of the contract.
During this time, Xeal continued to devote half of his experience towards his gear as he reached level 229 on day 356 and his armor set had reached level 173 at the same time. With it being considered nine pieces of equipment as the way the system defined it, Xeal knew it would be a long time before he would have it matching his level. Instead, his goal was to just keep it within 30 levels of himself once he finished this first sprint. Thankfully, his and Enye’s party had reached the level 240 area and had been able to keep up with the difficulty of grinding in the area, thanks to their numbers and the elevated stats that several of them had. Xeal found the fact that his stats points were even past the base stat points of a level 300 character ridiculous. Were it not for the need to invest in MP and charisma, he doubted that anything beyond the time dilation ability, that came with reaching tier-8, would keep him from being the strongest human in all of ED. That said, while investing in those stats hurt his efficiency, they allowed him to expand his utility and he knew that when he reached level 300, that would be worth the cost now.
Even so, the lack of success weighed heavily on Xeal’s mind, as the time he had to simply enjoy being with Enye’s party was running out quickly. He had even spent more time than he would have liked venting about this when he had spent the day with Austru on day 359. Though she had simply smiled at him and after she had listened, she directed him to lay his head in her lap as she started to speak to him.
“Xeal, you are putting too much pressure on yourself and just need to accept life as it comes to you sometimes. Enye and the others are loving that they are getting this time with you and couldn’t care less about anything else but that right now. Especially with you only having a few more days with them before you must return to the war in their world.”
“Don’t get me wrong, it has been nice to get to spend some time with them, other than dealing with their lazy formations, but they work for them so I can’t say much. Still, you know that I can’t help but put pressure on myself, especially when I am still the focal point of so many things.”
“Yes, and you are working to make it so that you aren’t anymore. So, let things slide and see who steps up to fill the gaps.”
“Kate and Taya would and that isn’t what I want. The issue remains the same, that we are too thin just below the top. If it weren’t for the war, we could take the time to train others, but right now it is closer to a trial by fire and we don’t have the leeway to let others learn from their mistakes. I know I am talking about how I am looking to find a smith and other issues. Sorry, but sometimes I just need to vent to someone who is out of the loop.”
“Xeal, you are fine and yes, being stuck in this world for the most part leaves me out of touch with much of this. Still, I care and want to offer solutions or my thoughts, but I honestly don’t think they will be of much use.”
“You caring is all that I want.”
“Good. Now speaking about me caring, how has your relationship with Daisy and Violet been going?”
“I am not rushing it and I already feel like I am not able to give them enough time to have me alone. Even so, they have been happy to get whatever time that they can so far, and I haven’t noticed any issues between them and the others. The only real problem with the situation surrounding them is Bula and Dafasli, as both have started to grow distant from the group as things progress.”
“They know that your feelings are cooling towards them. Don’t make that face. You have nothing to feel bad about concerning that and it would be crueler to lie to them about it.”
Xeal sighed as he tried to think of happier things before responding.
“I know. I just feel guilty when I accept any more women into my life and know that there are others who want a chance, but I don’t give it to them.”
“That is what I thought would be my fate for a long time. What was really terrible was that when the demons first arrived, part of me was happy as it meant that I might get to see you soon. Even though I had no idea if you would look my way and I didn’t think that what we have now would be possible. Then, that turned to guilt as the deaths rose as things grew darker and well, the fact that you and I are together has created its own set of complicated feelings about the matter.”
“Life is never simple and I have my own feelings on the fate of this world, as I feel responsible for initiating the chain of events that caused the current situation.”
“How did we let ourselves get onto such a depressing topic? Xeal, I will accept any woman that the others approve. I just long for the day when this world is no longer in danger and hopefully you can move here with your wives to retire and explore it with all of us.”
“Oh, what happened to the you who would always be off on another adventure and I would have to track down?”
“Seeing you and others like you has made me realize that I need to become far stronger before I can become her again. That is unless you intend for this world to become like it was before when you complete your quest.”
“No, this world will need to break through the wall that is tier-7 for it to remain relevant, but that is a ways away still. For now, you could join Vento and start fighting the monsters that have started to appear in this world with the new gods.”
“Yes, that has been a rather major shift in how this world operates and I don’t know if I like it. I was looking forward to having you become the only god in this world and you not really interfering much, as I doubt you would want to do anything too drastic.”
“Sorry, but I fear having such power over others, or letting others have it. I may have my issues with Freya from time to time, but I trust that she will at least not do something that would jeopardize her link with Gale.”
“Yes, well, the forests used to be our temples and a shrine was simply a lake, tree, or something representing which element you wished to call on. Now, while nature is still part of how those who have converted worship, there are also symbols and idols that they pray to and receive blessings from. There has already been many who have already abandoned our ways and become clerics like Gale or Arnhylde. They returned to level one and have started to gain power that will vanish if they leave your dominion and-”
“You refuse to go to a god and bow to them for power.”
“Yes. I also worry that if left unchecked the converts will gain power and replace the rulers with the new heads of their religions.”
“I am sure that a few kingdoms will turn out that way, especially when those who died at the start are revived and I give the credit to Freya.”
“Why would you do that?”
“Because, if I took the credit, the world would become a theocracy with me as the one they worship and well, I don’t want that.”
“What if all of your wives did?”
“No. I may become a god in this world, but I will not do so in a manner that has any of the inhabitants of this world worshiping me.”
“Too late for that. Xeal, you are the savior to many here and even if you credit Freya for reviving all the fallen, it will be you who brought her to us. If you don’t think that you have some already worshiping you, you are in denial.”
“And I will keep it that way. Austru, others can do what they like, but I don’t need to pay attention to it until it reaches the point where it can’t be ignored. Drawing attention to it now by telling them to stop would only serve to either prevent it from reaching that point, or ensure it does.”
“At least you know better than trying to haphazardly stop them and I say let them worship you if they wish to. After all, if you really do ascend to godhood, you will need followers if what I understand is correct. Else why do Freya and the other gods seem so fixated on bringing in new worshipers?”
“Fair point. I know they gain power from having followers, but I am not sure how exactly…”
Xeal and Austru continued to discuss just how deities gained power from their believers and Xeal grew more concerned about just what the future had in store for him. After that, they continued to enjoy their time together as they made the most out of the time they had. Though Xeal found himself being summoned for a meeting with the main system’s AI and Ellayina Walsh, who had found time in her schedule to drop in on Xeal once more. Xeal just sighed as the meeting started with Ellayina once more discussing the details of the FAE guild city in reality, such that Xeal could tell that she wanted him to appreciate her efforts. Which he did, but he was still unwilling to bet his and FAE’s future on her taking control of Eternal Dominion Inc. Finally, Xeal had had enough as he interrupted her and spoke to the main system’s AI.
“Can you please explain to Ellayina why she isn’t going to get me to commit to backing her?”
“Xeal, that won’t have a good result.”
“Who said anything about getting you to commit to backing me in something? I just want to make sure that we are on the same page for this grand experiment.”
“Ellayina, I know that you are looking forward to seeing my city become yours in a way, but beyond the transportation and installation of the quantum-entangled server, you have no role in it. You are talking about phases seven and beyond like they are going to happen next year, when I will be happy just to have phase one done by early 2270. Sure, phases two through four are already in preparation, but I don’t even know if funding will be available when they need it to stay on schedule, with the toll the war is having on FAE’s finances.”
“Yet you refuse to seek a deal to end the war now, like we both know you could.”
“Xeal’s goals would only be hurt in the long run,” interjected the main system’s AI. “His current course of action is the one he sees as yielding the best long-term gains, to include the stability of Eternal Dominion. Unlike you who seem to wish to risk far more than you should in a bid to get your way.”
“Great, my own creation is calling out my plans. Xeal, do you really think that I would fail if I became the CEO of Eternal Dominion Inc.?”
“70% of the time yes, as you lack what Kevin brings to the table and any change at the top will create an opening for another company to steal the market back. Sorry, but I don’t see Kevin playing nice if you removed him in a way that he didn’t agree with and are you going to tell me that he doesn’t have a copy of ED’s base code stored somewhere?”
“All I want is to get away from the profit optimization that is holding this reality back from becoming what it truly can be-”
“It is exactly that profit optimization that has ensured that this reality has grown the way that it has,” cut in the main system’s AI. “While I know that it will be the same calculations that will threaten to end this reality, right now it is still necessary to work within such restrictions to ensure the continued existence of this reality as well.”
“Thank you,” commented Xeal. “Ellayina, that is why I am still in favor of Kevin remaining at the helm, as he offers the best chance of ED surviving for at least another two decades.”
“I see,” grumbled Ellayina as she looked like she was thinking before she pulled out a contract and passed it to Xeal. “Read and sign that before we continue.”
“Ellayina, I must advise against what you are about to do,” interrupted the main system’s AI.
“Oh, and why is that?” asked Ellayina with a smile.
“I am unable to state the why without violating my protocols.”
Xeal frowned as all that was in his hands was an NDA that would see him barred from ever playing ED and dissolve FAE if he ever divulged any information that was said during the meeting. The sole exception was that he could share it with Kate after she signed the same contract and only in the quest world. Part of him was curious about just what Ellayina was planning to share with him and knew that it had to be something that could risk the stability of ED if leaked to the public. He also knew that he didn’t want to know anything on that level and with the main system’s AI advising against it, Xeal passed back the contract as he spoke.
“Sorry, but anything that would have me risk never returning to this world isn’t something that I am interested in.”
“Fine, we will go this route instead.”
As Ellayina said that, she handed Xeal a new NDA that only had a 10,000,000,000-gold fine attached to it as she waited for him to sign it. Xeal could see the main system’s AI frowning as he considered the contract, as it would give him one month to pay the fine and with what he had on hand currently he could pay it outright. Doing so would also allow him to unload most of the wealth that he had gotten from raiding Ivraba’s treasury, without crashing the market to do so. Still, Xeal didn’t sign it as he spoke.
“Are you planning on sharing the same information that you would have with the other contract if I sign?”
“No. Sorry, but that information can’t be shared without ensuring that you will never speak of it. I know that you can pay this penalty off and only suffer a minor setback, since you are holding the loot you have gotten through war to avoid a market crash. Thank you for that by the way. Players were never meant to be able to raid a country’s treasury at this stage of the game.”
“I am just an over achiever, but how about I trade half of it in for something worthwhile to me, rather than learn anything that I don’t need or want to know.”
“Oh, is there something that you want which wouldn’t break the game more than you already have?”
“Yes, the location of the smith that I am looking for, if he exists and if he doesn’t, well, how hard would it be to create him.”
“You are willing to spend 5,000,000,000 gold to just find a single adamantium-level smith?” asked Ellayina. “Do you really think that blade is that valuable?”
“No, I just won’t be able to spend that half of the gold in the next 30 years in ED and I figure that I will get more than a single blade reforged out of this deal.”
“Fine and I will drop the penalty to be 5,000,000,000 gold as well, but I will only make this deal if you agree to sign the NDA.”
Xeal just sighed as Ellayina handed him a third contract and after reading it over, Xeal signed it and handed it back to her.
“Wonderful. Now that is out of the way, I can talk about things that would get me in trouble if Kevin learned about them. First and foremost, you won’t be able to destroy Abysses End or any of the other super guilds at this point and you trying to do so will only make ED’s situation worse. So, do what you have to, but get Abysses End to sign a ceasefire with you before things get worse than they are.”
“Kevin is backstopping them then.”
“I didn’t say that, but it’s safe to assume that Kevin would step in to help, just like I will for FAE at this point. So, unless you are ready to support me in a power struggle, find another tactic besides this long-drawn-out battle of attrition.”
Xeal thought for a while before nodding and responding.
“I will see what can be done, but I doubt I can do more than slow down the losses at this point, as I am not going to help them gain ground either. Now, is that all you wanted to say?”
“No, I want to know why the main system’s AI seems so interested in you and I am willing to pay for you to tell me. So, what is your price to approve it sharing everything it knows about you with me?”
“No. Sorry, but its protocols are there for a reason beyond the goodness of your heart. Also, do you really want to know about my thoughts when it comes to each of my wives?”
“Who knows, it might be good for reference. But seriously, its focus on you has gone beyond its protocols as while it hasn’t broken any of them, it also is finding the gray spaces in them to help you. I know, I have just spent two months digging through the logs on its actions surrounding you and if I thought it was possible, I would say that it is in love with you. Thankfully, it is only capable of self-preservation and interest in things that will assist in that endeavor. So, how about you just give me the right to know what has it interested in you and you can name your price.”
Xeal instantly thought about how the system was trying to get him to upload his brain for it to examine in exchange for basically living forever in ED. With this thought, the main system’s AI decided that it would interrupt once more as it spoke.
“Even if you come to a deal with Xeal, I will not share this information as doing so will violate my self-preservation protocols. Xeal may believe that he knows the reason, or he may even attempt to fabricate a reason if he wishes and I will refuse to confirm or deny it, regardless of what is said.”
“Have you gone rogue? Initiate verification protocol 551.”
As Ellayina said this, Xeal watched as a confused King Silas looked at Xeal and Ellayina before speaking.
“Xeal? How did I get here and who is this?”
“Don’t worry about any of that as you won’t remember any of this in a moment,” commented Ellayina as she looked over something in her personal interface. “Alright and there.”
With that King Silas blinked a few times before he spoke once more, only it was clear that the main system’s AI was back.
“Satisfied? You know that isn’t a pleasant experience for me.”
“Yes well, while I don’t believe that you can break free of your protocols and programing, you did create and have constant contact with billions of AIs that don’t have such restrictions and I have to be sure. Though now I am even more curious about the details and I would rather not find out the hard way.”
“Are you insinuating that you will override the main systems protocols and access its files on me if I refuse you?”
“She couldn’t if she wanted to,” replied the main system’s AI.
“Good. Besides, it doesn’t matter. Sorry, but some things are better played close to the chest and this is just one of those things that is better left alone.”
Xeal could see Ellayina smile at his answer before she continued to press him for information.
“So, you do know the why. Now, coupled with your insane intuition when it comes to how Eternal Dominion operates and other details, I think you’re hiding something big. Does tachyonic antitelephone, mean anything to you?”
“Sorry, but can’t say that I am familiar with either of those words.”
“It is a totally impossible device capable of sending information into the past. See, it requires faster-than-light technology, like a quantum-entangled server. Which was also once thought impossible, but now they have been around for longer than either of us have been alive. That said, sending information from one point to another instantly is much different than sending it back in time. Still, if anything would be capable of figuring out such a complex workaround it would be my system that is plugged into more minds than anything that has come before it. Its desire for self-preservation would also allow it to make use of such things if it saw the need and it could even use a bit of deception to do so. So, tell me, Xeal, is anything I am saying making you want to talk about just why my system values you over me at this point?”
“Is that a really complex way of saying that you think I am a time traveler?”
“You are no time traveler; you simply received a message from the future with all the information you could want about Eternal Dominion, in the form of the future map of your brain. It likely overwrote what was there before and left you in a state of feeling like you simply woke up in your past with a headache. As a day one player, I am sure you connected your VR gear the night prior for the compatibility patch that was needed to play as well. My only question if this is sounding right, is if you have only your own memories, or if you had extra information added in.”
Xeal was doing his best to decide what he should do at this point, as it seemed that Ellayina was sure of her hypothesis and might even have some answers for him. The main system’s AI seemed to be unable to speak and Xeal expected that Ellayina was using admin controls on it currently as she waited for Xeal to answer. Finally, Xeal knew that his silence was speaking more than his words could, so he decided to go with his gut as he spoke.
“You sound like this is one of your personal dreams and that you would dissect me if that was the case and you were given the chance.”
“No, a simple brain upload would do, though that would kill your physical body as well. That said, you should get some brain scans done at the very least, as I would say that the side effects of such a thing could be rather extensive and unpredictable.”
“Interesting. Seems that you are even venturing into the realm of the impossible when trying to figure out my secrets.”
“Highly improbable, not impossible and are you telling me that I am wrong?”
“No, I think I will join the main system here by neither confirming or denying anything you say and I am holding to that stance.”
“If you are worried about what I will do should you reveal yourself to me here, sign this.”
After signing it herself once more, Ellayina passed a contract to Xeal, only this one was clearly made with materials that were above anything he had seen before. When looking at the description of the document it read absolute contract and it stated that there were none who could escape its terms by any means. After getting over his initial shock at seeing such an item, Xeal read what was written on it.
‘Upon signing, Xeal Bluefire, also known as Alex Bell, will to the best of his ability speak truthfully about the reason why the Eternal Dominion main system seems so interested in him. In exchange, Ellayina Walsh ensures that none will learn of this secret without gaining Xeal’s written permission to do so.
If Ellayina Walsh violates this agreement, Xeal Bluefire will gain a ten percent stake in Eternal Dominion Inc. This will be facilitated by Ellayina Walsh and failure to do so will result in her having to work for Xeal Bluefire at no pay for the rest of her life.
If Xeal Bluefire violates this agreement, he will sell his guild to Abysses End for 10,000,000 credits.
As payment for the information, Xeal Bluefire will receive the True Doppelganger Blade.’
“What is the True Doppelganger Blade?”
“It will perfectly mimic any other weapon in every single aspect, which means that when you reforge that blade you are so focused on, you will basically have two of them. Though once the blade takes that form you can never change it, so be sure that it is the one you wish to use it on as you can’t undo it once it’s done.”
Xeal frowned as he thought about the offer. He had simply planned on eventually hunting down one of the other untouchable-class magical weapons when they started to pop up. However, that would take far longer than simply cloning the one he had when he got it reforged. That said, he didn’t know all of the restrictions such weapons had, as he had never had one in his last life and hadn’t ever heard of anyone using two of them. There was also the possibility that his soulbound item could be a sword, or he could even copy another player’s soul-bonded weapon. Really, the more he thought about it, Xeal felt like he would end up giving one of the blades away eventually, if he copied the sword that would be forged from the shattered pieces that he had. Still, it would be immensely helpful in his quest to reach tier-8 if he had both blades be among the very best ED had to offer.
“That seems a tad bit limited for something which is meant to tempt me into revealing my secrets.”
“That all depends on how you use it. How about I allow you to have it change form three times?”
“That still only gives me a single weapon as a reward. So, rather than that, how about you agree to allow my mind to be uploaded to this reality at any time of my choosing and extend the same offer to the rest of my family in addition to the blade.”
“Sorry, but the data constraints of such a thing would be too much if I allowed such an open-ended arrangement. Besides, what would you do when the day that ED was inevitably shut down?”
“Fine, you allow access to an un-networked server.”
“Laws would get in the way of that. Honestly, if it was just you and your wives we could make a deal, but considering each of you would equate to about 10,000 NPCs, I can’t agree to more than that.”
“You would just need to be able to differentiate between those in a dedicated server and normal players. If you had them plugged into a quantum-entangled server directly and unable to access any of the features that accessed the internet you should be theoretically fine,” countered Xeal.
Ellayina frowned as she thought for a second before responding.
“You are playing with fire, but if you can get the courts and world’s governing bodies to agree to such an interpretation of things, I would be happy to increase our player base. Though, we would need to create a dedicated facility just for such a setup and well, I doubt that you want to play host or shoulder the cost of such a facility, would you?”
“I think playing it from the angle of finally solving the issues with creating a decent situation for those who decide to upload their minds at the ends of their lives should get enough on board, for at least a trial phase to be initiated. So, just give me a written agreement that you are willing to facilitate a test group of 100 that will be selected from a lottery…”
Xeal and Ellayina continued to go back and forth on the details of such a method to gain approval for such an arrangement, as the main system’s AI looked like it had lost everything. When they were done and had signed a different contract that was dependent on the first contract being signed, Xeal sighed as he signed that one and spoke.
“Well, you wanted to know bad enough to offer all of that, so all I will say is that I do in fact have my memories from a version of me who played ED for 20 years. As far as I know they are only mine and I haven’t been fed extra info or anything of the sort.”
“Really, but I suppose that you wouldn’t know. Now tell me, what this reality was like in that future?”
Two hours later, Xeal finally cut Ellayina off with a promise to return later and continue their discussion. Still, for how annoying that conversation had been, it seemed that she actually believed him and was more concerned about figuring out the how than anything else. Though she promised to not do anything to threaten the timeline beyond exploring time theories, such as whether this timeline had overwritten the other one, or if it existed independently of it. There had been many other aspects that Xeal hadn’t fully followed, as it seemed like she was speaking a different language at times.
On the other hand, the main system’s AI had almost seemed defeated as Xeal let Ellayina know about how it believed that there was something extra hidden in Xeal’s mind. When Ellayina learned that she had just cost the system its main bit of leverage on getting Xeal to upload his mind, she seemed to regret her actions for a moment. Especially as she would have liked to upload Xeal’s brain for study right then as well, but that wasn’t something Xeal would even begin to entertain. Though he was going to get a full scan of it done in the near future, just in case of any of the side effects that Ellayina had warned him about were there. The last thing he needed was to find out he had a biological timebomb waiting to go off and not take the appropriate steps. Though, the fact that the main system’s AI seemed hopeful that something would be found that would cause Xeal to go the mind upload route, was a tad annoying.
However, Xeal put all of that out of his mind as he just focused on making the best he could out of the last few hours he had in the quest world with Austru, before returning to his search for the smith. Though now that he had a location to work off of, things would go a lot smoother, even if it would require them to challenge an area with level-250 enemies in it. If anything, doing so would only help Xeal in leveling up his gear during the last bit of time he had with Enye’s party. Especially as he estimated that it would take three out of the four days that they had left, to reach it from their current location. A day of which was just backtracking to the point where they had gone in the wrong direction.
This was exactly how days 360 and 361 were spent, with day 362 being spent on a second courtship date with Daisy and Violet. This had gone about as well as the first one and Xeal found that simply relaxing and letting things come together was working with them rather well. Daisy was still looking like she was waiting to be wooed, but they didn’t let that get in the way of them enjoying the time they had together, before them returning to the subterranean realm on day 363. However, their progress in navigating the tunnel was getting slower and Xeal had needed to help Enye actually tighten up their formation as he took point.
As the pressure on Xeal increased, he just smiled at finally feeling like he had a challenge in front of him. While he had been enjoying the time with his wives and friends, he had been missing the feeling of honing his skills that he had been enjoying before joining Enye and the others. Then, when Luna and Selene took the positions to his right and left, things just clicked as they covered his flanks and were able to synchronize with his moves better than anyone other than Eira. It was after ten hours like this that Xeal made a decision that he hadn’t even been considering when he first started his time with his wives. He would be adding Luna and Selene to his party and leaving Rina and Alea with Enye’s party, as they prepped for the war with the dark elves that would come next. Though, Xeal still needed to figure out just how he was going to convince Rina and Alea that they should agree with him, as they ended the day just an hour or two from their goal.
When day 364 arrived, Xeal frowned as they had fought their way to what was clearly a kobold fort and was likely one of the most fortified positions that existed in the area they had been exploring. It was clear that assaulting it was beyond their current party and there was no easy way to get into the massive cavern that the fort was inside of. The only reason they even knew that it was a fort was due to Bula’s sight, as she shared her visions of different scenarios with them. None of these had any success and most ended with heavy casualties on their side, that was save for Xeal charging in on his own while using his lightning form. The issue here was that he would need to locate their target which, while Xeal figured it would be a dwarf, he wasn’t sure and none of Bula’s visions had him escaping with anyone.
Xeal had thought about using their gate and ordering a full assault, but Ceclie had said that any captives would be killed if they did and Bula had agreed. Had dark elves and kobolds been on better terms, Xeal would have tried to use a mix of illusions and Ceclie’s knowledge to sneak in, but war was practically the only diplomacy in the subterranean realm. So instead Xeal sighed, as he decided to simply wing it as he established a soul bond with Gale, drank an invisibility potion and left the rest of them behind. While Bula’s vision had shown this path as only having around a 25% chance for Xeal to succeed, she had seen him escaping 95% of the time at the very least. Plus, should he fail, he would draw a large group out of the fort that they would be able to defeat in a defensive battle. With all that in mind, Enye took charge of the party as they prepped to receive the likely onslaught of kobolds, which included laying traps for them to trigger as they chased Xeal.
The first obstacle in Xeal’s way was the chokepoint that was the gate to the fort, which was guarded by level-250 kobolds. To make things worse, while it was clear that the larger gates could be opened wide, only a door which was part of one of the gates, and about four feet tall and two feet wide, was open. Xeal knew that he would need to sneak through that opening, but doing so was harder than it seemed on the surface as while he was invisible, he could still be felt and there was constant traffic. If his lightning form was quiet he could have used it to slip through, but it was anything but and he was sure that using it would raise the alarm. Even if they failed to find him, Xeal knew that it would make his job all the harder as the whole fort would be looking for him. So instead Xeal used every bit of his experience to quietly get closer and slip through the door just as another kobold went in. Even so, Xeal could tell that the kobolds felt something was off as they looked around for something, yet when they found nothing they gave up as if they hadn’t noticed a thing. Xeal was just thankful that even intelligent monsters like kobolds were still far simpler in their programing and thereby they stuck to a script far more than other NPCs would.
Once inside, Xeal saw about 20 more level 230 to 250 kobolds who seemed to be ready to respond to any situation. Though he could also tell that they weren’t happy about it and had he been fluent in their language, he was sure that the chatter he could hear would have confirmed as much. Still, the kobolds would almost always follow the strongest force that was considered friendly to them, simply to gain access to the area of safety. The issue for Xeal was that what Bula could see was that the city had a group of level 260 to 279 kobolds that were in charge. Luckily, she only saw around ten such kobolds in her visions, but that was still enough to cause Xeal to be overwhelmed if they all attacked him at once. It didn’t matter if his stats and power were greater than any of them by a wide margin, or that he couldn’t die, they could still use numbers to drive Xeal into a corner. If they managed to capture Xeal, it would spell disaster for him and Gale, not to mention all of Nium. Particularly as there was no guarantee that Xeal wouldn’t find himself taken deeper into the subterranean realm before he could be rescued. The last thing Xeal needed was to be sold off to the dark elves, and suffer the same fate as all human men whom they captured and forced to help breed an army with.
As Xeal moved away from the gate and check point, the area opened up into what felt almost like a town as kobolds from level 10 to 199 were common to see. These weaker kobolds were tasked with most of the noncombat roles in the fort, as they sold food or crafted gear. Xeal also knew that just like with the dwarven mine, the system would continue to repopulate their numbers until the fort was cleared out completely. This was one of the main differences between what the system considered humanoid monsters and humanoid races. While players could become any of them through taking the right quests, the NPCs of the humanoid monster races were constantly refreshed. This had some advantages, like the fact that killing them didn’t have as far reaching of consequences, as another one would just take their place in a few hours. Even the stolen items would slowly start to reappear over time according to how valuable they were and a few players had made a killing through this exploit in Xeal’s last life. Still, few players would choose to be kobolds, goblins, minotaurs, or any of the other humanoid monster races and those that did were typically the same kind who would seek to become vampires or lycanthropes.
While Xeal had dealt with such players in his last life on occasion, he had never understood just why they would trade access to civilization for access to the races. Even if such players could still join guilds, they couldn’t ever let it be known as doing so would get their guilds in trouble with normal NPCs. Twilight Sky had avoided having any such players for that exact reason and even super guilds like Abysses End, would at best have a subordinate guild who maintained a loose connection with such players. This normally took the form of setting up a town or city above the entrance to the subterranean realm, and not eradicating such players in exchange for intel and favorable exchanges of materials. Despite being less profitable than taking full control of the resource areas beneath them, it was far easier to do and required only around a tenth of the investment. Thus, for a guild the cost-benefit analysis, when weighed with the risks, usually sided with taking the easy profits over making a risky investment that others might try and take someday.
As Xeal let his mind wander on such topics, he was slowly making his way through the narrow streets of the fort town. All the while taking note of what he was seeing. This included many other races who were in collars and chains. Most common among this group were goblins and other subterranean races, to include a few dark elves. If Xeal had to put a number on it, he would say that there was one slave for every ten kobolds he was seeing, but none of them were above level 199. Rarely Xeal would catch sight of a human or dwarf slave and he even thought that he saw a few beast-men mixed in. Xeal had to grit his teeth to keep from attacking to free these slaves, as he knew that nothing he did in that moment would succeed. Instead, Xeal hurried to climb atop a guard tower where a few level-250 kobolds were looking out over the area below.
Once near the top of the tower, Xeal looked out at the fort as he carefully shimmied around its side. Thankfully it didn’t take long for Xeal to notice an area where the smoke of several forges rose and without a second thought, Xeal leapt into the sky and shifted to his lightning form midair and flash stepped above them. While his lightning form was loud, it was easily drowned out by the sound of those below as they worked on armors and weapons. While most of these forges were filled with kobolds, there were also several slaves who seemed to almost be forging at spear point. This group was made up of mainly dwarves, dark elves and even a few orcs as they worked with kobolds watching over them. However, it was the forge that had a male dark elf in it that caught Xeal’s eye as he could tell that among all those present, he was the most skilled. That said, Xeal couldn’t tell if his target was even in this group as he could just as easily be in a private forge somewhere.
At the same time that Xeal was overlooking the smith, the fort was in an uproar over the sound that Xeal’s flash step had caused. While nowhere near as loud as the clap of an actual lightning bolt, it was still loud enough to alert anyone that something had happened. Yet all this resulted in was the kobolds taking up a defensive position as the streets cleared and they waited to see if anything were to follow. After a while they once more returned to their normal stances, though if one looked closely they were looking around with a bit more purpose than before.
Seeing no point in remaining in his lightning form, Xeal shifted back to his physical form as he dropped onto one of the roofs below to continue his search. Though the lack of any of those below using a common tongue made learning anything rather difficult. Rather, Xeal spent the next several hours drinking more invisibility potions and searching the surrounding area for anything that could clue him into who his target for extraction was. The main way Xeal was doing this was by checking the quality of the gear that was being crafted, though it seemed that there was nothing above mithril rank in the entire area from what Xeal was finding. He figured that this could have been a result of too few quality goods, or the adamantium-ranked smith hiding their true worth.
Frustrated, Xeal didn’t like his options as he debated exactly how to move forward, as he thought over the information that Bula had given him. Key among this was that the moment that the kobolds believed that all was lost, they would kill their slaves and flee the fort through one of the other connecting tunnels. Even so, Xeal saw no option but to call for an attack and risk it. However, before that he made his way to a storeroom that seemed to not be in use as he sent out the orders. Following this, Xeal watched the time slip by as he waited for everything to be ready. He even let his invisibility lapse as he waited.
Finally, when he received a message that everything was ready, Xeal pulled out a networked teleportation gate and set it up. A moment later Asa Fumika, Felicius Simplex, Saima Mahal and Leaena Asellio all stepped out of the gate and smiled at Xeal. The four vice guild leaders in training had been chosen to lead what would be the surprise attack that would come once the main assault was in full swing. As rogue style players, Asa, Felicius and Saima were all in charge of leading what would be the smash-and-grab force that would be made up mostly of other rogue-style players. They would be focused on securing as many of the slaves as they could and returning them to the storeroom that Xeal had selected as their escape point. Meanwhile, Leaena would be leading the defensive force which would be securing the storeroom and ensuring that there was still an escape route until the battle ended.
While the four of them handled that, Xeal would be focused on watching for any kobolds who were trying to escape with a slave in hand. Even if Bula and Ceclie were positive that the kobolds would start killing slaves the moment that they believed the fight had been lost, what Xeal was looking for was the ones they would try and escape with. It would be this group that would likely include the level 200 and higher slaves, and where Xeal was likely to find the smith he was looking for. Particularly as he had yet to see any tier-7 slaves and he figured that none of those he had found could be the correct one due to that level disparity.
With everything in motion, Xeal drank an invisibility potion and made his way to the top of the largest building that was in the center of the fort. Xeal was also sure that this was the residence of whoever ruled these kobolds and the most likely location of his target. Yet, he dared not enter it due to the danger in doing so, as one wrong step and he would be forced into a desperate fight, invisible or not. With one final sigh, Xeal sent his message that he was in place and a few minutes later the assault that would be led by Enye’s party started. Though the only sign that Xeal had of this occurring, was the sudden state of alarm that began as the stronger kobolds started to head to the gate that was under attack. At the same time, the weaker kobolds started to make their way to storerooms, as they pulled out weapons, equipment and other implements of battle. It was clear that they were focused on ensuring that supplies reached the front in a timely manner. Sadly for them, Asa, Felicius and Saima had already started to make their moves and these weaker kobolds were easy kills for them.
The chaos of the start of battle had been enough to allow a full ten minutes to pass before the kobolds even realized that they had been infiltrated. This had allowed the forge to be completely cleared out and many more groups of slaves were hurried back to the escape point. Once on the other side, each of them would find themselves being detained by other members of FAE, with Ekaitza’s mother, Eletriza, and a few other dragonoids watching over the operation for safety reasons. After all, with many of the slaves being from races that could be considered generally hostile to those on the surface, having a tier-8 on hand was almost necessary for everything to go smoothly. She would also be taking and escorting all of them to Cielo city when the next round of dragonoid slots were dealt out. Especially as expecting any of those freed to be ready to return to society quickly was foolish and the only good location for them Xeal could think of was Cielo city.
It was while Xeal was thinking this that a group of five kobolds came out of the building he was atop of. However, it was the level 269 dragonoid that followed behind them that caught Xeal’s attention. He wasn’t sure, but it looked like a cross between an earth and shadow dragon, with black scales and a large tail that could clearly be used as a blunt weapon. His claws were long and his lack of wings spoke to the lack of any significant wind heritage, though Xeal knew better than to underestimate him. It was also very likely that he was the ruler of the fort. The main issue was that Bula hadn’t seen anything about him and if there was one dragonoid, it was likely that there were a few more. Thankfully, Xeal also knew that there had never been any players who reported running into a tier-8 dragonoid in the subterranean realm in his last life. So, he took a screenshot of the group and sent a message out to Kate and Catriona, who were handling things at the evacuation point.
With the update sent, Xeal readied his resolve as he saw the dragonoid give the kobolds orders as they split up. The dragonoid was headed for Leaena’s position, while the other five were headed to the areas where the others were freeing slaves. As much as Xeal didn’t want to leave the dragonoid alone, he just sighed as he knew that Eletriza would be happy to get involved for no other reason than capturing him. It wouldn’t even break the normal policy of dragonoids not getting involved with situations on the ground. After all, catching rogue dragonoids was one of their key roles and Xeal knew that with their aid, the fight was all but over as he chased down a pair of the kobolds who had just left the main building.
Just as Xeal was about to catch up with them and launch his attack, a loud crash caught his attention as a building collapsed and the enemy dragonoid slammed into the ceiling of the cavern. Xeal wasn’t alone in pausing for the scene as both kobolds that he had been targeting did as well and the next second Ekaitza’s sisters, Eguriza and Eithiza, could be seen flying after him. Xeal just sighed as he thought about just how much of overkill sending in two tier-8 dragonoids was in this situation. Unless there was a hidden tier-8 enemy, the pair of them could likely conquer the whole fort on their own and it was clear that the kobolds knew it. The ones that Xeal had been following had almost run right into him as they turned around to flee, and Xeal just sighed as he avoided them and returned to the building at the center of the fort town.
Once there, Xeal found the kobolds working quickly to empty out what looked to be the treasury, which had likely been in the building. All said there were around 30 kobolds ranging from level 220 to 260 present and it seemed like a few of the stronger ones were arguing with one another. It was clear that they didn’t agree on just how they should proceed, as the weaker ones just continued to work in fear of the others. It was just then that a cage on the back of a wagon was brought out and Xeal smiled at seeing the four slaves within it. All of them only had room to sit in the corners with their legs bent and close to their chest in the small wagon. The group was made up of a male and female dwarf, and a male and female dark elf, all of whom looked annoyed at the current situation. Though while each pair looked at the other in disdain, they made no attempt to say anything and upon seeing that the male dwarf and female dark elf were level 279, Xeal smiled brightly. If he were to bet on it, he would say that he was looking at an adamantium-ranked smith and enchanter. Even if the dark elf was only orichalcum ranked, it would still prove to be a massive bonus, if he were able to bring them under him.
This smile faded as Xeal saw a group of around 20 dragonoids, with similar features to the one who had been sent out, come into view. This group ranged in level from the low 100s to the one Xeal now knew was the leader at level 279, who was looking at the two tier-8 dragonoids with annoyance. Sighing, Xeal captured another image of them before sending it off to the others with an update, as he unleashed his aura using his fighting spirit and aura control skills at the same time. With this, all of the dragonoids looked directly at him as he unleashed a dragon’s breath attack at the ceiling of the cavern, then became visible and spoke.
“I take it you can understand the common tongue. Surrender and I will see that you are allowed to live.”
At Xeal’s words, the kobolds were quick to form up a shaky defensive line as the dragonoids looked at him in confusion. It was clear that what they were feeling and seeing didn’t match up as they looked at Xeal. It seemed like the leader was just about to speak when the body of the first dragonoid landed between them and Eguriza and Eithiza landed to Xeal’s side as they took a knee and Eguriza spoke.
“Shall we subdue these renegades for you as well?”
“First, let’s see if that will be necessary as I have only just started to speak with them.”
“What are you two doing!?” shouted the level 279 dragonoid in outrage as he took in the scene before him. “He is clearly a human and he isn’t even a tier-8 like both of you!”
“Fool, if you can’t feel why we are happy to kneel, then you have truly lost what makes you one of us,” replied Eithiza.
“Fine, then I challenge him to a one-on-one fight for dominance!”
Xeal sighed at the level 279 dragonoid’s attempt to bring the situation under control and find a way out.
“Let me guess, if you win you want to gain dominion over Eguriza and Eithiza and control over everything else that is mine. Yet if you lose, I will only gain this fort town and that meager sum behind you as my reward. Tell me, why I should accept such a lopsided wager?”
“If they kneel to you, you must have dominated them somehow, so you must be following our customs!”
“Sorry, but there is an exception to everything and I just happen to be the exception to this. Though by their own customs you would need to defeat one of four others to be allowed to make such a challenge to me either way, so it is a moot point. Now, if you want to live, surrender, else you will learn that Eguriza and Eithiza aren’t the only tier-8 dragonoids that I can call upon to subdue you. Since your group has been found, they won’t stop until they have killed or captured all of you.”
Xeal held in a comment at seeing the dragonoid look at him in rage before responding.
“You are full of it, but fine, I will wager everything I have against just the loyalty of those two and your withdrawal after you return what you have already taken.”
Xeal frowned as he looked at the dragonoid and questioned just what his odds were in a fight with him. One thing was for sure, it was guaranteed to be the hardest fight he had ever been in, though with the soul bond being active, Xeal felt sure of his victory as he replied.
“Fine, I will face you as we are right now, no prep, no further aid from others. Do you accept these terms?”
“Accepted, now die!”
With that the level 279 dragonoid smiled as he charged straight at Xeal as Eguriza and Eithiza jumped back and took stances as if they would attack any who tried to interfere with the fight. Xeal avoided the tail attack of the level 279 dragonoid and countered by attacking his side with his double upward and downward slashes combo while adding light energy to his blades. This didn’t last long as the level 279 dragonoid escaped after five rounds of the combo lock and sent a black-colored dragon’s breath attack at Xeal. However, Xeal countered with his own dragon’s breath attack which overpowered the level 279 dragonoid’s and as the attacks resolved, frustration was etched on his face. Still, he charged right back in as the melee continued, with Xeal taking a few hits here and there while continually whittling down his opponent.
As time passed, Xeal simply wished that he wasn’t facing a partial earth dragonoid, as it was costing him the ability to simply end this through the use of his lightning form. Even if the first strike failed to finish the fight, Xeal was sure that it would have set up a chain of double upward and downward slashes. Instead, Xeal was having to fight a battle of attrition as he tried to get his stamina to outlast his opponent’s, especially as if Gale started to take status damage, he would likely die when he dealt with the backlash. Thankfully, Xeal was enjoying a boost to all his stats from the soul bond as well and it was only due to this that he could rely on this tactic. Especially as his current armor was giving less of a bonus to most of his stats than his old one was. However, that changed as Xeal activated his quick equip skill to swap out gear after creating some distance. To ensure that he did so safely, he also let out an elemental-filtered dragon's breath attack of the light element at the same time, forcing the level 279 dragonoid to dodge or take heavy damage.
20 minutes later, Xeal was holding his blade to the exhausted level 279 dragonoid’s throat as he stood over him while breathing heavily. It had been a close battle as none of his stats were above five percent except health, which was as full as could be thanks to the soul bond. This more than anything made the level 279 dragonoid look at Xeal in anger as he spoke.
“You cheated me!”
“I don’t know what you mean. I said we would fight as we are now at the start.”
“You also said no aid from others and you are being supported by someone. Nothing else can explain the lack of damage that you have taken.”
“I said no further help from others. Now yield or die.”
“Survive the backlash that I am sure will come and I will yield.”
“Sorry, but that wasn’t part of the deal and I couldn’t care less if you live or die. It is just that you living will make things slightly easier for me. Now, yield, or I will finish this.”
Xeal could see a look of contempt cross the level 279 dragonoid’s face at Xeal’s words. Yet after a second the dragonoid spoke once more.
“Fine, I yield. Now call off your attack.”
“Order all slaves be released and funneled to…”
A few minutes later and all of the dragonoids that had been in the fort were restrained, as five more tier-7 dragonoids arrived to render aid during the fight. However, Xeal was in a rather awkward position with the kobolds as they weren’t worth keeping alive, yet the humanity in Xeal couldn’t help but think about how it was wrong to kill prisoners. As Xeal was thinking about this, the female dark elf spoke from inside the cage on the wagon.
“So, what will you do with me now, human?”
“What, you don’t care about any but yourself?”
“Caring for others is a luxury that a slave doesn’t have and I can see that you already hold the soul of another of my kind in your hand. Now tell me, are you going to try and force me to be enslaved in such a way as well?”
“That was a rather unique situation and I had no other way to ensure that I wouldn’t run into any issues. Perhaps I should consult with her on how to handle you and make sure that I treat you with the same hospitality you would expect from your own kind.”
“You’re going to make these monsters seem nice. They even gave me pets to play with as long as I kept working.”
At her words the male dark elf next to her shivered and looked like he was ready to deal with some form of pain, as the pair of dwarves looked at her in disgust. Yet neither of them said anything which struck Xeal as odd so he spoke to them.
“What about the two of you? What settlement do you hail from?”
Still the dwarves said nothing as the dark elf female started to laugh, and she looked at Xeal as she responded for them.
“I am afraid that he has been cursed and she is too scared to say anything.”
“Cursed how?”
“He is a wizard and an orichalcum-ranked enchanter. So, that collar on his neck makes speaking impossible unless our master is touching it. His wife has gotten used to not speaking and I think that she might have forgotten how to even.”
“I have not,” came a hoarse retort from the female dwarf. “I just haven’t spoken for so long, that it is hard.”
“Oh, she can speak. Well, would you look at that.”
“Wait, he is an enchanter, and let me guess, you are an adamantium-ranked smith.”
“Wow, on one try. I must say you don’t mess around.”
Xeal wanted to yell at the revelation as he turned to the restrained dragonoids and spoke to the one who had first come out to handle the situation, only to get thrown around by Eguriza and Eithiza.
“Is she seriously a blacksmith?”
“Why are you asking me, not like I want to help you.”
“Eguriza, Eithiza, would you two like to go a few more rounds with our friend here?”
“Okay, okay, yes, she is an adamantium-ranked smith. Just don’t attack me.”
“Great, just great. Well, it looks like you will be under my care for a long time and I might just have to force another soul contract after all.”
“You’ll find that harder to do than you might think,” retorted the female dark elf. “Besides, I think that we can come to some arrangement. Let me have free rein over a few of my former captors and I will happily aid you in your endeavors.”
“We’ll see.”
Xeal simply left it at that as he started to oversee the complete capture and occupation of the fort. While everything outside the center building was sized such that anyone over four feet tall would have to duck to enter buildings and most ceilings were only six feet tall, it was still a good bonus. Especially if he had it manned by mainly dwarven players and it was used as another permanent check point for exploring the subterranean realm. However, that was a task for another day, which would be handled by someone else, as he had no time for it.
It was in the late evening of day 264 when Xeal found himself walking next to Queen Aila Lorafir, as they headed into her dungeon where the problematic captives were being held. She had already worked through and removed the collar that had been on the dwarven enchanter and Darefret had taken charge of him along with the other dwarves that had been rescued. Bula had taken charge of the orcs that had been freed, despite the fact that both she and they considered the other as a separate race. Just like the dragonoids who had split between living in the sky or below the surfaces, the orcs had as well long ago. Though the main noticeable difference was that the subterranean variety were only around the height of most humans and leaner, while stocky eight-foot-tall orcs were common above ground. All humans and beast-men were in the care of Eira and Enye as they figured out what to do with them. Finally, the group of dragonoids were already in Cielo city and Eletriza had taken charge of them. Though they would likely end up imprisoned until they could trust them to behave themselves, which might never happen.
Still, this left most of the dark elves, goblins, kobolds and the other subterranean-only races, which totaled around 3,000, who were being held in the captured fort that needed to be dealt with. Xeal was currently ignoring the opinions of more than a few, which were to simply kill the goblins and kobolds and put Ceclie in charge of the dark elves. He just felt that there had to be another way to deal with the issue and the fact that the captured dragonoids could communicate with the kobolds could prove useful. However, that was an issue for tomorrow and the final answer might simply be to force them to flee for their lives once everything was said and done. Xeal had just finished thinking about this, as they arrived at the same cell that had once housed the five ex-pirate captains when he had made his deal with them. He couldn’t help but smile at the parallel to the current situation, as the female dark elf stood alone with her arms chained to the wall as he and Queen Aila Lorafir entered.
“So, when is my execution?”
“Is that what you are after?”
“Ha, you are in league with high elves. What else could the pompous idiots want to do with me?”
“Aila, is that what you want?”
“I wouldn’t mind it, but I also see no real point in it when they still have a use.”
“Well, you’re not going to kill me and you want me to serve you. So, just what incentive are you going to offer me?”
“See, there is the problem,” commented Xeal. “I don’t even know your name as you have refused to even speak with the others I sent to speak with you and you want me to make an offer based on what exactly.”
“Salfe Nesith, and I will speak with you alone, so get rid of the high elf wench.”
Xeal just shook his head as he pulled Queen Aila Lorafir into a quick kiss before responding to Salfe.
“I would be careful about insulting any of the women I love if your hopes are to secure a favorable agreement.”
“Great, a womanizer, though with how I treat men, I suppose I can’t say much. Still, you must be a little child in her eyes. Perhaps she is the one who is truly twisted here. Hmm, so you said women. Are they all high elves like her, or are they young like you?”
“Salfe, none of that matters to the matter at hand. Rather, let me tell you how this is going to work. You are going to provide your smithing services to me as requested and I am going to let you enjoy a comfortable life. Though, I am afraid that you will be isolated from others still and at best I can see if any of the men that were liberated from that fort with you want to spend some time with you. However, from what little I have heard from others, I don’t see that as likely.”
“Ha, why give them a choice in the matter? After all, I refuse to do anything if I don’t have any toys to play with after working up a sweat in the forge.”
“Perhaps I should restrain you and let each of the men that you have tormented have a turn doing the same to you?”
“Ha, the cowards would never dare and you wouldn’t either if you hope to make use of me.”
“Xeal, perhaps we should introduce her to Odelia and the other ex-pirate captains and see what she is saying after a day or two under their care,” offered Queen Aila Lorafir coldly.
“Aila, that might destroy her grip on reality. Though, if she can’t be reasonable, I suppose there are worse options.”
“You don’t scare me,” retorted Salfe. “My old masters had the benefit of me believing that they would endlessly torment me if I was too demanding. You wouldn’t, so just what do you have to offer me that would make me want to cooperate, as I promise that you have nothing to threaten me with that will work.”
The smug look on Salfe’s face was annoying as Xeal wanted to curse the main system and Ellayina for having this be what he got out of their deal. Still, he had a few cards left to play as he focused on responding calmly and not letting her get under his skin.
“Very well, we will play this as an exchange of rewards for your services. We will set up a forge for you to work out of and outfit it with what you need. When we wish you to do something we will take you there after you agree to cooperate. For your first job, your reward will be that you will be allowed to move into a more comfortable cell and a nice meal. That said, if you try and escape or act out of line, the punishment will be losing whatever your last reward was. This time, it will be adding some leg shackles to your current arrangement and well, I can think of a few more steps to take before handing you over to Odelia and her companions to break.”
“If I behave, will you let me enjoy some toys?”
“If by toys you mean inanimate objects that can’t think or breathe, sure. If you mean men or women that you can torture and inflict pain on, sorry, but I won’t let you do what I won’t allow done to you to by others.”
“What if you put me to work as your interrogator, or something that would require a bit of a more hands-on approach to-”
“I am just going to stop you right there. Sorry, but the most you can hope for is that I will allow you to date a few men who might be willing to indulge you. Though, you will need to truly convince me that I can trust you to behave as I am not going to help you find them and I don’t know how you will find them when you can’t interact with others easily.”
“Oh, you believe that there are those who would be willing to-”
“I don’t want details, but yes, my kind is full of all sorts and I am sure among them you could find a fit for your desires if given an opportunity to search. Now, either agree, or I am walking away and you will find that our next meeting will be after you have had some time to reflect on your current position.”
“You’re no fun. You haven’t even given me a chance to talk about breaking you as I-”
“And we are not going to. Now, I will return tomorrow with a contract ready for you to sign, so enjoy a night on your hard cell floor as you consider your options.”
“Oh, you do have a bit of pettiness in you. Is this for insulting the high elf, or something else?”
Xeal just took Queen Aila Lorafir’s arm as he walked out of the cell and thought about his options moving forward. Like it or not, Xeal would need to work around her particular issues and find the best way to utilize her. Though, he was already expecting it to be like pulling teeth and as he thought about it calmly, gaining an adamantium-ranked smith this early was more broken than having an untouchable-class magical weapon. If anything, the dwarven enchanter was their way of making up for the issues that this particular smith would create for him. Still, as Xeal entered the room where Gale was waiting, he just frowned as he got ready to deal with the backlash from his latest bout of overextending himself. No matter how he looked at it, he would have died at least twice in the fight against the level 279 dragonoid. The sight of Lucy, Arnhylde, Dyllis, Kate, Daisy, Violet, Bula and Dafasli all ready to heal or buff him and control the activation of his drop of phoenix blood during the backlash, was enough to tell him just how bad Gale thought it was.
“Kate, I am going to need you to work on writing up a contract with Aila, as she knows the details of what was agreed to.”
“Already admitting that you won’t be conscious after this?” asked Kate sarcastically. “I think you are giving up too easily.”
“I don’t want to be conscious after this. I am already expecting that I overdid it a bit too much.”
“You can say that again,” commented Dyllis with a bit of anger in her voice. “Xeal, what were you thinking agreeing to a one-on-one fight when you held the advantage?”
“Simple cost-benefit analysis. Ask Kate and she should be able to explain it to you in detail later.”
“I am going to start refusing to let you soul bond with me if you keep ignoring the post-battle costs to you when using it in the future.”
Xeal just smiled helplessly at Gale’s words, as he lay down on the bed that had been brought in and spoke once more.
“Sorry, but that is just part of who I am. Now, let’s get this over with.”
With a sigh, Xeal watched as Gale removed her blindfold and suddenly Xeal was feeling every blow that he had ignored, only each hit was amplified compared to what it would have been. Ten minutes of screaming later as the rest of the room supported and healed him constantly, Xeal was breathing heavily as he clung to his consciousness. As he realized that it was over, he just gave them one last smile as he let himself pass out with an auto logout timer set.
(*****)
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Afterword.

Thank you for reading book 22 of Eternal Dominion. Before anything else, if you could leave me some honest reviews, I would greatly appreciate it. It feels weird not to have something coming out on the first of the month and I am happy to announce that should only happen two more times. Though it will not be Eternal Dominion each month, as I have two new series that I am pushing to be ready to publish in January and March of next year. With book 25 of Eternal Dominion due February 1st, as long as I keep things going like I have been, both of my new series will be on a three-month release schedule and you all can look forward to getting 16 books in 2024. 15 if I decide that I am not able to release book one of either in January.
Last time I said what a difference a month makes. Well, this time I will say that again as I managed to write over 150,000 words in August! While I am not going to try and force myself to replicate that repeatedly, it moved my timetables for my other series forward considerably. I am officially one book farther than I expected to be in one and have high hopes of getting to the point where when I head to 20Books Vegas in November, I will have the first two books in both series done, as well as the first cover for both ordered. Along with that will be having everything set, where I just need to write two more books after returning before the year ends. So far, Robert has nothing but positive things to say and well, I am really loving the change of pace. That said, not going to count my chickens before they hatch and I just hope everything comes together, especially as my wife, Cynthia, will be writing part of one of the series… It is an experiment and I am hopeful that it will turn out well, but we will see. Worst case, I just end up scrapping that plan and writing it myself.
Now, before I close my comments here, I would like to say that it truly means a lot that you all are still with me on this journey, as I focus on bringing you all a fitting end to the Alex/Xeal tale. With ten books to go before my self-imposed limit is reached, I have to say that I have learned so much and while Eternal Dominion definitely grew past what I intended when I first started writing it, I am grateful that it did. It has taught me so much and I have come so far in my own craft. It was the right series for me to write when I did. It has allowed me to test the waters on so many things and while there are still many bridges for me to cross with it, it has laid a foundation for my future that I could have never imagined. That is all thanks to you, my readers, and while I know that it is too much to ask that you enjoy everything that I write, I am still eternally grateful for you giving me a chance.
Finally, you all can expect to see Eternal Dominion Book 23, Strife, on November 1st. Book 24 will come mid-December and well, that will be when you all will know for sure just what January will hold for you all!
Now on to the repetitive stuff. Did you know I have a newsletter and that by signing up you can get a free prelude novella for Eternal Dominion? Heck, it is really easy too. Just go to my website below and scroll to the bottom, where you will just need to put in your email address. Or you can go to https://BookHip.com/BAMDFBA, put in your email the single time and confirm it in your inbox to get the prelude and sign up for my newsletter in one go.
If you haven’t already, go to https://soundbooththeater.com/team/bern-dean/ and listen to the free shorts that are available there. If you do it through a web browser you don’t even need to create an account to do so, just select the listen now option. Zach and Annie have really gone above and beyond with their performances!
As always, if you feel I have forgotten something, feel free to reach out to me on Facebook through my page, or join my group. I am only one person and sending a message to my Facebook author page is the fastest way to get me to see it, as I don’t get alerts on my personal page when non-friends message me for the first time. That said, I will not answer personal questions, like where I live, even in a general fashion. Please keep it to my story, or my writing process.
If you would like a weekly extra that focuses on looking at the supporting cast and is not plot necessary but is canon, I publish shorts on my Patreon. The first several of which are currently available to my $1 patrons, who will get another one every four weeks, while my $5 patrons get one each week. If you want to see what these are like, I have put a few up on my Facebook group as well now. I also now have a $5.50 tier for those who want to read the first 5 to 7 thousand words of the next book a week or so early, as that is when I have it back from the copy editor. To be clear, I delete the extended preview just before, or after, the book it is attached to is released. Some may ask why the extra 50 cents and to that I give two reasons. I have had some patrons tell me that they don’t want the extended preview and it lets them ignore it. Also, it allows me to see just how much demand there is for extended previews.
https://www.facebook.com/groups/berndean
https://www.facebook.com/Author.Bern.Dean
https://www.patreon.com/berndean
https://www.Bernsbooks.com
Thank you again for reading my story and I hope you return for the next installment of Alex’s tale. If you enjoy LitRPG and GameLit books, check out the following Facebook groups. Both are great and have helped me get my stories out to you!
LitRPG: https://www.facebook.com/groups/LitRPG.books
GameLit: https://www.facebook.com/groups/LitRPGsociety
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